CABINET
Date:

Monday 4 October 2021

Time:

5.00 pm

Venue:

Committee Room (B6) - Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton, London, SW2 1RW*

*In line with legislation and continuing Covid-19 precautions, committee members will attend the meeting
in person at Lambeth Town Hall, with members of the public and press, visiting members and officers
invited to attend virtually. Instructions overleaf.
Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov

Members of the Committee
Leader of the Council, Councillor Claire Holland
Deputy Leader of the Council (Jobs, Skills and Community Safety), Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Deputy Leader of the Council (Planning, Investment and New Homes), Councillor Matthew Bennett
Cabinet Member for Sustainable Transport, Environment and Clean Air (job share), Councillor Danny
Adilypour and Councillor Mahamed Hashi*
Cabinet Member for Housing and Homelessness, Councillor Maria Kay
Cabinet Member for Finance and Performance, Councillor Andy Wilson
Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, Councillor Ed Davie
Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care (job share), Councillor Jim Dickson and Councillor Lucy
Caldicott*
Cabinet Member for Equalities and Culture, Councillor Sonia Winifred
Cabinet Member for Voluntary Sector and Leisure, Councillor Donatus Anyanwu
*non-voting

Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Wayne Chandai, Telephone: 020 7926 0029; Email: wchandai@lambeth.gov.uk
Published on: Friday 24 September 2021

Queries on reports
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author are shown on the front page of
each report.
@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

How to access the meeting
In line with legislation, Committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.
Reflecting current government guidance to help prevent the spread of Covid-19, members of the public,
visiting Members and officers are invited to attend virtually. If you wish to attend the meeting in person,
public access can be made available for limited numbers, but please contact Democratic Services
(details on the front sheet of the agenda or Democracy@lambeth.gov.uk) before the meeting so that
arrangements can be made.

For Members of the Public
If you want to watch the live broadcast, this meeting is available to view as a Microsoft Teams Live
Event. If you are new to Microsoft Teams, clicking here will take you to the meeting page where you will
be prompted to download the app or watch on the web instead. Please follow the instructions to watch
on the web. On doing so, you can join the live event anonymously.
Members of the public wishing to make representations at this meeting must inform Democratic Services
(see front page for contact details) by 12.00pm on Friday 1 October 2021.

For Members of the Committee
In line with legislation, committee members will attend the meeting in person at Lambeth Town Hall.

For elected Members of the Council
Councillors who are not members of the Committee but wish to attend the meeting must inform
Democratic Services by 12.00pm on Friday 1 October 2021. Upon doing so they will be invited to attend
the meeting virtually.

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.

Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact
Democratic Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office).
Please note that the Chair of the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that
it can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the
website www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Speaking rights at Cabinet meetings











Cabinet normally has a large amount of business to consider at each meeting;
accordingly, the order of the agenda and time allowed for each item is decided by the Leader of
the Council beforehand;
Cabinet expects there to have been prior consultation with the public and other interested parties
on proposals and a summary of the results to be included in the report. Therefore, oral
contributions from members of the public at the meeting should not normally be necessary;
the time available may allow contribution(s) to be heard on reports on the agenda but this is
entirely at the discretion of the Leader of the Council. Anyone wishing to speak must inform
Democratic Services before the day of the meeting (midday), advising what aspect not covered in
the report they wish to cover;
any such contributions are required to be brief; a maximum of three minutes is likely to be
available;
speakers should ideally be on behalf of a number of people or a specific group;
speakers will be advised at the meeting whether and when they will be heard; and,
Councillors may speak at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items, and are entitled to speak
on matters that specifically concern their ward.

Security
Please be aware that you may be subject to bag searches and asked to sign in at meetings that are held
in public. Failure to comply with these requirements could mean you are denied access to the meeting.
There is also limited seating which is allocated on a first come first serve basis, and you should aim to
arrive at least 15 minutes before the meeting commences. For more details please visit: our website.
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

Directions to Lambeth Town Hall, London, SW2 1RW
Lambeth Town Hall is located at the southern end of Brixton Road and is a highly visible landmark. It can
be accessed via a number of bus routes and is a short walk from both Brixton Station and Brixton
Underground Station.

AGENDA

Page
Nos.
1

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Under Cabinet Rule 1.5.2, where any Cabinet Member has a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of
Conduct (para. 4)) in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the
Council, a committee, sub-committee or joint committee, they must
withdraw from the meeting room during the whole of the
consideration of that matter and must not participate in any vote on
that matter unless a dispensation has been obtained from the
Monitoring Officer.

2

Lambeth Made Safer Violence Against Women and Girls
(VAWG) Strategy 2021-27

1 - 46

3

Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy

47 - 108

4

Budget and Performance Report - Q1 2021-22

109 - 136

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

CABINET 4 OCTOBER 2021
Title: Lambeth Made Safer Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) Strategy 2021-27
Wards: All
Portfolio: Deputy Leader of the Council (Jobs, Skills and Community Safety): Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Report Authorised by: Merlin Joseph: Strategic Director for Children’s Services
Contact for enquiries: Rose Parker, Violence Against Women and Girls Programme and Commissioning
Manager – Safer Communities, 020 7926 9648, RParker1@lambeth.gov.uk
REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides a summary of the development of the new Lambeth Made Safter Violence Against
Women and Girls (VAWG) Strategy 2021-27, its contents, and proposed next steps.

FINANCE SUMMARY
None arising from this report.

RECOMMENDATIONS
To adopt the new Lambeth Made Safer VAWG Strategy, attached at Appendix C, which outlines the
Council’s commitment as a partnership to a six-year vision for tackling all forms of Violence Against
Women and Girls in Lambeth.
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

VAWG includes multiple types of violence and abuse that disproportionally affect women and girls
and are usually perpetrated by men. However, people of any gender can experience abuse of this
nature and the consequences affect everyone. The term includes:
- domestic abuse
- female genital mutilation/cutting
- forced marriage
- so-called “honour”-based violence
- sexual exploitation
- sexual violence
- stalking and harassment
This is not an exhaustive list and our approach must continue to recognise that there is significant
crossover in the types of abuse; for example, forced marriage and so-called “honour”-based violence
are forms of domestic abuse and most perpetrators of stalking or rape are current or former partners.

1.2

This is our third VAWG Strategy since 2011 and builds on ten years of significant progress and
commitment from partners. This puts us in a strong position to develop better processes to work in
partnership with our communities to strengthen our understanding of where there are differences in
reporting, responses, risks and outcomes for individuals experiencing VAWG.

Page 2

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

Communications are leading on the launch publicity and are developing a public facing animation
that will explain the Strategy and our work in an accessible format. This will be interpreted into
Lambeth’s key languages, including British Sign Language.

2.2

The animation, our Strategy and the first action plan will be officially launched to the public at an
event on 25 November to coincide the International Day for the Elimination of Violence Against
Women.

2.3

We will mobilise the strategic priority workstreams to lead delivery and align these with Lambeth
Made Safer for Young People. We are finalising the reporting structure to include quarterly update
to our Cabinet Member, Lambeth Made Communities, the Safer Lambeth Partnership Executive,
and Cabinet.

2.4

We are asking that the new VAWG Strategy is adopted, shaping our commitments as a partnership
to tackling all forms of Violence Against Women and Girls in Lambeth.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

None arising from this report.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

Section 17(1) of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 states that, without prejudice to any other
obligation imposed on it, it shall be the duty of the Council (amongst others including the Police) to
exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions
on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent:
(a) crime and disorder in its area (including anti-social and other behaviour adversely
affecting the local environment); and
(b) the misuse of drugs, alcohol and other substances in its area; and
(c) re-offending in its area.

4.2

This proposed key decision was entered in the Forward Plan on 31 August 2021 and the necessary
28 clear days’ notice has been given. The report will be published for five clear days before the
decision is considered by Cabinet. Should it be approved and following the publication of the Cabinet
minutes, a further period of five clear days, the call-in period, must then elapse before the decision
becomes effective. If the decision is called-in during this period, it cannot be enacted until the callin has been considered and resolved.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

Over the past year we reviewed:
- VAWG prevalence data and analysis
- learning from previous VAWG strategies
- benchmarking with other VAWG strategies (local, regional and national)
- asset mapping of services available in the borough
- findings from our stakeholder engagement.

5.2

We worked in partnership with experts by experience (those with lived experience of VAWG) to
develop a new model of consultation that included:
- interviews with those with lived experience of VAWG

Page 3
- events with community members, Councillors and MPs, and practitioners
- a public survey: residents and practitioners
- focus groups with practitioners from across statutory and voluntary services.
5.3

The development of the Strategy was overseen by a Project Board with representatives from across
the partnership who reviewed the evidence and engagement findings to agree the vision, goals,
priorities and governance, and to offer commitments on behalf of their agencies.

5.4

The five new strategic priorities are: specialist support; working together; community response;
children and young people; and reducing harm from perpetrators. Intersectionality and anti-racism as
principles underpinning them all.

5.5

The Strategy will run for six years and these strategic priorities will be reviewed at a half-way point.
The partnership will have annual action plans that are reviewed and agreed by a Strategic
Partnership Board and a panel of experts by experience. These will be published.

5.6

The draft Strategy was provided to specialist services for their expert opinion as ‘critical friends’. The
suggestions and edits were incorporated into the final Strategy which has received sign off from
Councillor Dyer as Cabinet Member for Jobs, Skills and Community Safety; the Safer Lambeth
Partnership Executive; and Management Board. The Strategy has received endorsement from the
Lambeth Safeguarding Children’s Partnership Executive and the Lambeth Safeguarding Adults
Board.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

The main risks that impede on the successful delivery of this are:

Item

Risk

Likelihood

1

Strategy is not adopted and no
framework for commissioning
1
and partnership working to
address VAWG from 2021

Impact

4

Score

Control Measures

4

Partnership development
and consultation.
Involvement of Cabinet
Member and presentation
to Cabinet.

Key
Likelihood
Impact

Very Likely = 4
Major = 8

Likely = 3
Serious = 4

Unlikely = 2
Significant = 2

Very Unlikely = 1
Minor = 1

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

VAWG includes multiple types of violence and abuse that disproportionally affect women and girls
and are usually perpetrated by men so is a product and cause of gender inequality. However, VAWG
but can affect any Lambeth resident and so all protected groups can be impacted by the new
strategy.

7.2

The strategy itself does not represent a change in resident facing service provision; however, the
strategy will produce a variety of deliverables and these may be individually assessed for their impact
on equality as necessary.

7.3

Full details of the EIA and Corporate EIA Panel feedback can be found in appendices A and B.

Page 4

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

VAWG sits under the Safer Lambeth Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP).

8.2

Addressing VAWG is a key priority, as identified in the Safer Lambeth Strategic Assessment 202021.

8.3

The new VAWG Strategy supports the Council’s duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. The
key outcome of partnership work is to safeguard victims and their children and protect them from
further harm.

9.
ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental
9.1 No current implications.
Health
9.2 The strategy will inform work across the partnership that contributes to improving the health and
wellbeing of all Lambeth residents who have experienced gender-based violence and that of their
children.
9.3

We monitor and review health and wellbeing outcomes as part of the annual action plans that will be
developed to support delivery of the commitments outlined in the Strategy.

Corporate Parenting
9.4 No current implications but the strategy has a new strategic priority of ‘children and young people’
and partnership work to deliver the commitments outlined will include consideration of the Council’s
corporate parenting duties/responsibilities for Looked After Children (LAC) and Care Leavers up to
the age of 25.
Staffing and accommodation
9.5 None.
Responsible Procurement
Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
9.6

The strategy itself does not represent a change in resident facing service provision; however, the
strategy will inform future commissioning of services and these will be individually assessed for
ensuring providers pay the London Living Wage to employees.

Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
9.7 N/A as the strategy itself does not represent a change in resident facing service provision.
Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030
9.8 N/A as the strategy itself does not represent a change in resident facing service provision; however,
the strategy will inform future commissioning of services and these will be individually assessed for
supporting the Council’s commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030.

Page 5
Single Use Plastics
9.9 N/A as the strategy itself does not represent a change in resident facing service provision; however,
the strategy will inform future commissioning of services and these will be individually assessed for
supporting the Council’s commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030.
Positive Health and Wellbeing
9.10 N/A as the strategy itself does not represent a change in resident facing service provision; however,
the strategy will inform future commissioning of services and these will be individually assessed for
Health and Wellbeing impact.
Other Offers (Innovation)
9.11 N/A as the strategy itself does not represent a change in resident facing service provision.

10.

Timetable for implementation

10.1 The table below details the stages and deadlines for implementing the recommendations:

Activity

Proposed Date

Date published on Forward Plan

31.08.2021

Cabinet Decision

04.10.2021

Minutes Published

08.10.2021

End of Call-in Period

15.10.2021

Strategy to be launched

25.11.2021

Page 6

11.

Audit Trail
Comments
in
paragraph:

Date Sent

Date
Received

Councillor Jacqui Dyer

Deputy Leader of the Council
(Jobs, Skills and Community
Safety)

21.09.21

22.09.2021

Merlin Joseph, Strategic
Director

Children’s Services

21.09.21

22.09.2021

Rachel Harrison, Finance

Finance and Property

21.09.21

21.09.2021

Legal and Governance

21.09.21

21.09.2021

4

Legal and Governance

21.09.21

21.09.2021

4

Integrated Children’s
Commissioning and
Community Safety

21.09.21

21.09.2021

Name and Position/Title

Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services
Dan Stoten, Associate
Director

Lambeth Directorate

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

Appendices

22.08.2019
30.09.2021
30.09.2021
No
Yes
31.08.21
3. Meets community impact test.
N/A
Appendix A – LMS VAWG Strategy EIA
Appendix B – Corporate EIA Panel feedback, LMS
VAWG Strategy
Appendix C – VAWG Strategy 2021-2027

Page 7

Equalities Analysis in Lambeth
Proposal Title:
Lambeth Made Safer Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy 2021-2027
Author:
Sophie Taylor – Head of Commissioning, Safer Communities
Rose Parker – VAWG Programme and Commissioning Manager, Safer Communities
Who will sign off the assessment?
Abi Onaboye – Director of Children’s Commissioning and Community Safety,

Q1a. What is changing? (What is the most significant or key change taking place? Can you
indicate
the
type
of
change in
your
response (e.g. policy/decision/strategy/
service/procedural/ geographic/procurement etc.) so it is clear what is being equalities
assessed? Why is this change happening? What do you aim to achieve? Can you clearly
indicate what decision-makers are being asked to take a decision on?)
This is a new strategy setting out a change in vision, strategic priorities, commitments and
goals to the previous strategy. This is happening because the previous strategy needs
updating and has expired. To produce the strategy we have reviewed: VAWG prevalence data
and analysis, learning from previous VAWG strategies, other VAWG strategies (local, regional
and national), what services are available in the borough and findings from our stakeholder
engagement, including residents, practitioners, expert organisations and victims of violence.
The strategy itself does not represent a change in resident facing service provision; however
the strategy will produce a variety of deliverables and these may be individually assessed for
their impact on equality as necessary.

Q1b. Who will be involved in approving this decision? (Who else will be involved in
signing-off this decision?)
EIA Panel

Q2a. What do we know about the people who will be impacted by this change? (What
does your information tell you about the people who will affected by this change? Are protected
groups impacted? What information do you hold on the protected characteristics of the people
affected by the change? (Age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity,
race/ethnicity, religion or belief, gender, sexual orientation, health, socio-economic, language)
Are there any gaps or missing information?)
All protected groups can be impacted by violence against women and girls and are therefore
can be impacted by the new strategy.
Lambeth Council and its partners hold various data sets on victims and perpetrators of VAWG
(and their children) and there is significant research into all strands of VAWG. This gives us a
robust understanding of prevalence, who is impacted by these types of violence and of their
experiences.
We know that there is over and under-representation of some groups of Lambeth’s residents
in services. For example, Black and disabled women are over-represented in our specialist
VAWG services when compared to the population of Lambeth (in 2020/21, of all engaged
clients supported by our community based VAWG support service, the Gaia Centre: 44%

Page 8

identified as Black and 40% identified as having a disability). National research evidences that
whilst Black and multi-ethnic women are disproportionately impacted by specific forms of
violence against women and girls – such as forced marriage and “honour”-based violence –
their experiences of violence are often intersecting and overlapping (Thiara, 2012). D/deaf and
disabled women are twice as likely as their hearing and non-disabled peers to suffer domestic
abuse (British Crime Survey, 2020). Trans and non-binary residents are underrepresented in
our specialist services (in 2020/21, only 0.2% of referrals were for trans or non-binary
residents). Current studies estimate that almost 80% of LGBT+ victims and survivors have
never reported incidents to the police or attempted to find advice or protection from services
(Galop, 2019) and that trans women are at particularly high risk from domestic and sexual
violence (Galop, 2019).
In 2020/21, of all engaged clients supported by the Gaia Centre:
• 95% were women, 5% men and 0.2% were trans and non-binary
• Ethnicity of engaged clients:
Ethnicity
No. of
clients
Asian or Asian British Any other Asian background
14
Black African - Nigerian
2
Black African - Other
5
Black Caribbean
114
Black or Black British African
92
Black or Black British Black or Black British
58
Black other
15
Central Asian Afghan
1
Central Asian other
1
Dual Heritage other
31
Dual Heritage White - African
6
Dual Heritage White Bangladeshi
1
Dual Heritage White Caribbean
26
Dual Heritage White Indian
1
Dual Heritage White Pakistani
1
European Other – Albanian
2
European Other - Hungarian
2
European Other - Lithuanian
2
European Other - Polish
11
European Other - Romanian
1
European Other - Slovakian
2
Latin American
27
Middle Eastern Iranian
3
Middle Eastern Iraqi
1
Middle Eastern Israeli
1
Middle Eastern Saudi Arabian
1
Middle Eastern Turkish
1
North African – Algerian
1
Not asked
8
Not Disclosed
5
South American - Brazilian
1
South Asian Bangladeshi
10
South Asian Indian
8
South Asian Pakistani
10
South Asian Sri Lankan
1
South East Asian Chinese
3

%
2.15%
0.31%
0.77%
17.54%
14.15%
8.92%
2.31%
0.15%
0.15%
4.77%
0.92%
0.15%
4.00%
0.15%
0.15%
0.31%
0.31%
0.31%
1.69%
0.15%
0.31%
4.15%
0.46%
0.15%
0.15%
0.15%
0.15%
0.15%
1.23%
0.77%
0.15%
1.54%
1.23%
1.54%
0.15%
0.46%

Page 9

Traveller - Bulgarian
Traveller - Russian
White British
White Irish
White Other
Total
•
•
•
•
•

1
1
128
2
49
650

0.15%
19.69%
19.69%
0.31%
7.54%
100.00%

7% required an interpreter
40% identified as having a disability
4% identified as LGBT+
6% were aged under 18; 10% were 18‐25; 37% were 26‐35; 25% were 36‐45; 13%
were 46‐55; 5% were 56‐65; and 2% were over 66.
63% were single; 20% married; 5% co‐habiting; 3% divorced; 1% widowed; 7%
separated; 1% not known.

The Gaia Centre does not routinely record data on socio‐economic status, religion, or
language, however, alternative measures and/ or national evidence are used to assess
impact in these areas.
Gathering evidence for the strategy development made it clear that the quality of data is
dependent on help-seeking patterns and the data source e.g., police reports, specialist service
referrals, social care involvement etc. Most data sources have provided evidence to inform
the development of this strategy and this does include information broken down by protected
characteristics. However, there are gaps in both recording and reporting of data and this
effects visibility of some groups. We are aware of these gaps and aim to address this over the
period of this strategy. Similarly, in terms of equalities considerations, we have committed to
further understand how experiences of support differs for residents based on certain protected
characteristics – this moves away from looking at data to monitor prevalence and
visibility/access and moves to a more complex and robust process to examine difference in
experience.
We consulted with survivors of all forms of VAWG through independent one-to-one interviews
and surveys as well as residents and practitioners from across the borough in the creation of
the strategy. We also utilised a ‘critical friends’ model in the development of the final document:
specialist organisations were asked to comment on the draft strategy, ensuring that this was
a robust, inclusive and representative as possible. The below organisation provided feedback,
representing specialist services based within Lambeth and pan-London services who work
with Lambeth residents:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Africa Advocacy Foundation
Asha
Black Thrive Lambeth
Disability Advice Service Lambeth
Fulfilling Lives Lambeth, Southwark and Lewisham
The Gaia Centre
Galop
Healthwatch
Lambeth Council Equalities Forums (Black, Asian and multi-ethnic staff forum; LGBT
staff forum; and Women’s staff forum)
Milk Honey Bees
RedThread
Respeito

Page 10

•
•
•
•

Signhealth
Solace Women’s Aid
Tender
Women in Prison

Q2b. How will they be impacted by the change? (Would you assess the impact as positive,
adverse, neutral? Do you have any uncertainty about the impact of your proposal? Is there a
likelihood that some people will more impacted than others? Can you describe the ways in
which they will be affected? How might this change affect our ‘general duty’)
We would assess that this new strategy is the most comprehensive to date in terms of
commitments to equality of access and experience.
The strategy commits to create equal access to support and ensure that the
outcomes achieved are equitable for all victims and survivors. To do this we need to better
understand the needs of all our communities. We need to better understand these differences
and individual experiences. We will improve our data collection and act on the expertise of
those who have lived experience to ensure that our strategy and delivery are inclusive and
representative. This includes people from Black, Asian and multi-ethnic communities; migrant
residents; those with no recourse to public funds; those with insecure immigration status;
Gypsy, Roma and Traveller communities; trans, non-binary and gender non-conforming
residents; those who are LGBTQ+; those with disabilities; working class residents; younger
and older people; and those experiencing multiple disadvantage.
The strategy has also made it clear that other wider forms of structural inequality,
discrimination and disadvantage impact on individual experiences of VAWG, access to
support, and experiences within services, and that these must be tackled alongside this
strategy in order to maximise its impact. This includes a commitment to align with the Borough
Plan in taking an anti-racist approach when tackling inequality within the borough.

Q3a. How do you plan to promote and deliver any positive impacts of the proposal?
(How might the principles of fairness, equality of opportunity and positive relationships be
further promoted as a consequence of this proposal? How do you propose to measure your
positive outcomes and the benefits outlined to find out if these have been achieved?)
The principles of fairness and equality of opportunity have been built into the strategy
commitments and this needs to be communicated to our residents; we have a comprehensive
communications plan in place in order to deliver this.
The strategy will sit alongside an annual action plan which, for the first time, will be published.
We will create multiple resident forums as well as utilising existing forums (namely Lambeth
Made Communities) to both inform our work, scrutinise the strategy delivery and report to on
outcomes. This aims to ensure we are held to account on the commitments to address
inequalities that we have set out and that we are required to regularly report to our residents,
stakeholders and communities.

Q3b How do you plan to address and mitigate any negative impacts of the proposal?
(What impact has this evidence had on what you are proposing? What can you do differently
that might lessen the impact on people within the timeframes i.e. developmentimplementation? Who can help you to develop these solutions?)

Page 11

N/A

Q4. How will you review/evaluate your proposal, mitigating actions and/or benefits?
Who will be responsible for this? (Who will you be accountable to for the above
actions/outcome? How will those responsible know these actions have worked? What
performance indicators will you use to demonstrate this? Are there any other forms of
evidence you can use to support this assessment of their effectiveness?)
We have a governance structure in place to oversee the delivery of the strategy; from a
Strategic Partnership Board, priority workstreams and forums. One of the first roles of the
Strategic Partnership Board, once established, will be to consider how we will evaluate impact
on protected characteristics.

Section to be completed by Sponsor/Director/Head of Service
Outcome of equality impact assessment
No adverse impact, no change required
Low adverse impact, minor adjustment required
Significant adverse impact, further action required
Significant impact identified unable to mitigate fully
Unlawful in/direct discrimination, stop and rethink

Comments from Sponsor/Director/Head of Service

Executive Approval
07.09.2021 – Abi Onaboye

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13
LONDON BOROUGH OF LAMBETH
CORPORATE EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT PANEL

FEEDBACK FORM
DOCUMENT TITLE:

Lambeth Made Safer Violence Against
Women and Girls (VAWG) Strategy

PANEL DATE:
FEEDBACK ISSUE
DATE:

14.09.2021

Enabling evidence-based inclusive decision making
The primary objective of an Equality Impact Assessment is to determine the potential
impact of a policy, service or function on different equalities groups. The EIA must
consider any influence the policy could potentially have on individual equality
strands and socio-economic status. It should examine and clearly identify:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The aim/purpose of the policy
Relevant strategic objectives, local plans and population needs
Equality legal requirements
Improvement actions
The policy outcomes
How progress will be measured
Relevant data, research and consultation
Potential differential impact (adverse/positive) on equality groups
Measures to mitigate adverse impact
Monitoring arrangements
Publication arrangements













Promoting positive impact and mitigating negative impact
The EIA process should not be regarded as an end in itself, findings emerging from
the process and the outcomes are what is most important. If the assessment shows a
potential for adverse impact or unlawful discrimination, this must be addressed.
Recommendations made by the Panel aim to ensure compliance with the equalities
duties and demonstrate the Council’s commitment to tackling inequalities and social
exclusion.

Corporate EIA Panel Feedback Form, revised October 2020

1

Page 14

Equality Impact Assessment Presenting Officers:

Rose Parker, Violence Against Women and Girls Programme and
Commissioning Manager

Recommendations

Department Response to
Recommendations
(Please insert your response to each recommendation
here.)

How are we working with schools as
those with learning difficulties and
different cultures are targeted?

Schools are a priority area and we have
included children and young people as
a new strategic priority within the
strategy. This is in recognition of the
impact when the adults in their life are
experiencing VAWG and also that
children and young people can
experience VAWG within their own
relationships and from peers as well as
adults. Young people are at greater risk
of most forms of VAWG. For example,
16 – 24 years are more at risk of sexual
violence and are less likely to report this
to the police. Young men are also
subject to forced marriage and this can
be linked to disability and learning
difficulties. So the strategy considers
this and will has specific focus on
children and young people. There will
be a children and young people’s forum
to ensure we get their insight and hear
about their lived experience to inform
our delivery of the strategy. We are
working to ensure that we can
communicate the work to them.
Language has to be clear and
accessible as some survivors do not
see what they have experienced as
VAWG which then creates barriers, so
how we communicate is key. Additional
stigmas are something we also have to
address.

Does Redthread work around gangs?
There is an increase in young women
being in gangs and there is a sense that
it is normalized. There is still a great
deal more to do

Corporate EIA Panel Feedback Form, revised October 2020

Redthread were a ‘critical friend’ for
their expert input into the strategy. We
have also linked the VAWG Strategy to
the Lambeth Made Safer for Young
People Strategy in recognition of the
links. It is key to get the message to
young people about the work we do.

2

Page 15

Are we using community languages to
communicate?

Is the Gaia Centre information
translated and on social media?

Is there training for staff in areas such
as nurseries, youth clubs?

Older women suffer in silence due to
stigma and shame so it is important to
find ways to help them access the
support they need

Aligning with Lambeth Made Safer is
important as when violence occurs
between adults in children and young
people’s lives this can be a risk factor in
experiencing and perpetrating serious
youth violence. Also VAWG can be a
form of serious youth violence.
Yes, we ensure that all communications
are accessible and in the community
languages, including British Sign
Language.
All communications are accessible, and
this will be built upon as we engage with
communities in Lambeth to input into
the delivery of the strategy.
Other platforms are being explored as it
is known that younger people are using
platforms such as TikTok.
This is part of our current work and will
be built into the Working Together and
Community Response strategic priority
workstreams.
Older women are underrepresented in
our specialist services and it is being
explored how to support these members
of the community and to ensure our
interventions are accessible to older
victims and survivors.

NOTE:
Please sign and return the response to equalities@lambeth.gov.uk within 1 week of the feedback
issue date.
A copy of this completed form should be attached to your cabinet report.

A.Onaboye
Director
Date:

Rose Parker
Presenting officer

17.09.21

Corporate EIA Panel Feedback Form, revised October 2020

Date: 15/09/2021

3

This page is intentionally left blank

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 3

Page 17

VIOLENCE AGAINST
WOMEN AND GIRLS
STRATEGY

2021–2027
101990 (8.20)

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 2

Contents
Five Lambeth residents have
had their lives taken from them
because of Violence Against
Women and Girls (VAWG) since
the publication of our previous
VAWG Strategy in 2016.

INTRODUCTION / 7
VISION / 12
PRIORITIES/ 13
PRIORITY 1: SPECIALIST SUPPORT / 14
PRIORITY 2: WORKING TOGETHER / 16
PRIORITY 3: COMMUNITY RESPONSE / 18
PRIORITY 4: CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE / 20
PRIORITY 5: REDUCING HARM FROM
PERPETRATORS / 22
DELIVERY / 24
A DETAILED DEFINITION OF VIOLENCE AGAINST
WOMEN AND GIRLS / 26

For support and further information see Lambeth.gov.uk/VAWG

Page 18

We know that more needs to be
done. We dedicate this strategy
and all our work to those who had
their lives taken from them, and
we commit to making Lambeth a
safer borough for everyone.

FOREWORDS / 3

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 3

Acknowledgements

Throughout this document, you will see quotes from Lambeth
residents with lived experience of Violence Against Women
and Girls. We thank them for their openness in talking to us,
and promise them that we will do whatever is in our power to
improve the quality of their lives.

We would also like
to thank those who
have given their time
to provide feedback
on this strategy as
‘critical friends’.
Their knowledge and
perspectives have
helped ensure that we
reflect the experiences
of our residents and
communities:

• Africa Advocacy
Foundation
• Asha
• Black Thrive
Lambeth
• Disability Advice
Service Lambeth
• Fulfilling Lives
Lambeth, Southwark
and Lewisham
• The Gaia Centre
• Galop
• Healthwatch
• Lambeth Council
Equalities Forums
• Milk Honey Bees
• RedThread
• Respeito
• Signhealth
• Solace Women’s Aid
• Tender
• Women in Prison.

Page 19

We want to thank
all the victims and
survivors, residents
and people working
to protect those
experiencing abuse,
who shared their
experiences and
expertise to create
this strategy.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 4

Forewords

Five years ago, after a sleepless night, I was at
my lowest point and I couldn’t face another day of
physical and emotional pain. I had two choices: to
get help or to give up my so-called life. I was not
living; I was existing like a shadow. To the outside
world I was still there, at least a small part of me
was. The make-up and fake smile that had seen me
through several years was not going to be enough
any longer; now I was also fighting for my little son.
Before I could cope but now, he was talking and
began to understand the world around him.
That morning I chose life. While I didn’t feel I had
any energy left to carry on, a small light in the
darkness gave me the strength. I contacted the
Gaia Centre and at the beginning it was really hard

to share everything that I was going through and
to ask for help. But eventually I gained strength
and I slowly came back to myself.
While not all my problems went away, they
provided me with the tools to prepare me for the
long battle against my son’s father. I know that
if I had not made that choice my son would be an
orphan.
When I was offered the chance to become involved
as an expert by experience with this project last
year, I felt that it was a unique opportunity to be
heard by those that have the power to change
people’s lives. I met other ‘experts’ and realised
that my journey through this process, frustrating as
it is, was not uncommon and that we all had similar
experiences. Navigating all our problems in this
world of departments, agencies and institutions.
I can’t tell you the frustration and the pain that
comes with having to tell your story to someone,
it drains you. Unfortunately, sometimes you have

to tell your story so many times that you feel like
giving up. I have seen my now 10-year-old son
telling a number of different agencies over the
last three years, how he was abused by his father.
I have seen his frustration and hopeless feelings
of not being heard and I worry about him a lot.
I know so many women whose children are waking
up this morning hoping that their day will be better.
I also know some who will be putting on a shield
to face another day.
I think that we are lucky to be here now and with
this new strategy many lives could be safer and
improved. It is really important for our voices to
be heard and changes to be made.
It was hard for me to contact the Gaia Centre in
the first place but looking back it probably was one
of the best decisions of mine and my son’s life.
I wish you strength to reach out...
Expert by experience

”

Page 20

“

First, he took my smile,
then my energy, followed
by my friends, family,
money, dreams, motivation
and zest for life. Chip by chip
until I was no more.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 5

Forewords

“

All types of Violence Against Women and Girls too
often remain hidden and under-reported. When
women and girls feel unsafe it restricts their
participation in all elements of life and prevents
them from thriving.
Since the last VAWG Strategy was published in
2016, five Lambeth women have lost their lives
to male violence. VAWG is a product of gender
inequality and individual experiences of violence
and abuse reflect wider power dynamics within
our society. Other forms of structural inequality,
discrimination and disadvantage impact on
individual experiences of VAWG, access to support,
and experiences within services.

But it is not inevitable.
This strategy has been co-produced with
residents who have lived experience of VAWG and
specialist services across the borough who have
brought their expertise to ensure this strategy
is as representative and ambitious as possible.
The development of this strategy provided an
opportunity for us to review our progress in
tackling VAWG and have the views of residents
and stakeholders at the heart of what we aim to
achieve. Our role as a council is that of a facilitator,
putting our communities and their needs at the
centre of all we do. We will build upon our inclusive
approach, removing the barriers to participation,
and embedding collaboration with experts by
experience and residents in the delivery of
this strategy.
The priorities and goals that shape this strategy
were created by experts by experience, residents
and people working in services across the borough.
To achieve our vision and the ambitious goals

set out in this strategy we are clear that tackling
VAWG needs to be everybody’s business. This
strategy provides the framework by which we
will achieve this.
We want to keep talking with our residents and
communities about what is needed and how we
can improve. Our Lambeth Made Communities
engagement approach will be sustained and
harness our collective energies. The delivery of
this strategy will adapt and change over time in
response to those conversations.

”

Councillor Jacqui Dyer
Deputy Leader (Jobs, Skills and Community Safety)

Page 21

Making Lambeth safer
is our priority. We are
ambitious – our vision is
that Lambeth is a borough
where everyone is safe.
Too many women and girls are unsafe in public
and in private.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 6

Forewords
in how VAWG is experienced, access to services,
and experiences within services. We cannot
tackle violence and abuse without recognising
and addressing other forms of inequality and
discrimination and we must ensure that our work
supports all victims and survivors of VAWG.

We published our first VAWG Strategy in 2011
and over the last ten years, we have made real
progress in raising awareness of all forms of VAWG
and improving responses to victims and survivors,
their children, and perpetrators. But there is still
much to be done.

As a senior leader of Children’s Services over many
years I have seen the impact of VAWG on children
and young people. I welcome the new Domestic
Abuse Act and the explicit naming of children as
victims. This recognises the significant and longlasting impact of abuse on their safety, well-being
and development, and we must all work together to
ensure that children and young people are safe and
have happy and healthy relationships.

The prevalence of VAWG remains too high and
its impact on individuals and wider society is too
great. We have lost five Lambeth residents to male
violence against women since 2016 and many more
have their safety, freedom, and well-being limited
every day. We also know that there are differences

The council’s approach to tackling VAWG cannot
happen without our partners – police, the NHS,
justice, schools, faith-based organisations,

businesses and, crucially, our residents and
community groups who are the fabric of our
fantastic borough. This strategy is designed to
ensure collective action is taken to tackling all
forms of VAWG and to embedding the expertise of
those who have experienced violence and abuse
in the development and delivery of all our work.
We are committed as a partnership to invest in
specialist support, drive improvement across
all services, and creating a learning culture that
can evolve and respond flexibly to the changing
needs of the borough.

”

Merlin Joseph
Strategic Director of Children’s Services

Page 22

“

Tackling Violence Against
Women and Girls is a
council-wide priority as
we know the devastating
consequences for individuals,
their children, loved ones, and the wider community.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 7

1 Introduction
This strategy sets out our vision, approach and most importantly, our commitments to tackling
Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) in Lambeth. We know that these issues exist across
all of society and that we need everyone – residents, statutory agencies, communities, charities,
faith-based organisations and businesses – to work together to make our borough safer.
For now, and for future generations.

What is VAWG?

VAWG refers to multiple types of violence
and abuse, including:
domestic abuse
female genital mutilation/cutting

This is not an exhaustive list and our approach
must continue to recognise that there is significant
crossover in the types of abuse – for example, forced
marriage and so-called ‘honour’-based violence are
forms of domestic abuse and most perpetrators of
stalking or rape are current or former partners.
A detailed definition of each of these types of VAWG
is available on page 26.
All forms of VAWG are rooted in gender inequality.
Male violence is the result of deep societal beliefs
about gender roles, masculinity and femininity, and
the attitudes and social structures that maintain
these. These cause significant harm to women but
also hurt children and create additional risks and
barriers to support, safety and wellbeing for male,

Deaf and disabled women are twice as likely as
their hearing and non-disabled peers to suffer
domestic abuse (British Crime Survey, 2020).
In 2019/20 39% of those supported by the Gaia
Centre identified as having a disability (Gaia
Centre Annual Report 2019/20).

trans, and non-binary victims and survivors*.
Violence and abuse can happen to anyone but there
are differences in how people experience it, and the
multiple factors that affect people’s access to services
and their experiences within those services. To
prevent and tackle VAWG, we need to work together
to challenge myths and attitudes that excuse or
minimise abusive behaviour and to create services
that hold perpetrators of abuse accountable for their
behaviour.
We need to involve victims and survivors and affected
communities in the design and delivery of services
that can offer appropriate support to all those
experiencing VAWG so they are safe, able to recover,
and move forward with their lives.

* We use the term victims and survivors rather
than ‘victim’ or ‘survivor’ to recognise that VAWG is
perpetrated by another person or persons and that
some do not survive abuse, but also in recognition
of the great strength and resilience of survivors.

Page 23

Violence Against Women and Girls (VAWG) describes
forms of violence and abuse that disproportionally
affect women and girls and are usually perpetrated by
men so it is important to name this as male violence.
However, people of any gender can experience
abuse of this nature and the consequences affect
everyone. Male violence has a devastating impact
on victims and survivors, children and communities.
The cost to society is long-lasting and wide-ranging.
VAWG robs individuals of their safety in public and
private spaces, their choice and wellbeing, and can
cause significant trauma. VAWG can affect anyone,
everyone, and can occur at any point in life, but it is
not inevitable.

forced marriage
so-called ‘honour’-based violence
sexual exploitation
sexual violence
stalking and harassment

t

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 8

1 Introduction
What do we know about VAWG
in Lambeth?

t

80% of London women have experienced sexual
harassment and 88% of those did not report this
because they didn’t know how, didn’t think it was
severe enough to meet crime thresholds, didn’t
think any action would be taken, and/or did not
feel safe reporting (Lambeth Anti-Harassment
Campaign, London Harassment survey results,
2020).

Violence and abuse can affect all people, regardless
of age, class, disability, ethnicity, gender identity,
race, religion, or sexuality. However, additional
experiences of discrimination can have an impact
on victims’ and survivors’ experiences of VAWG.
Racism and other forms of discrimination create and
sustain inequalities in society and the trauma caused
by exposure to discrimination introduces additional
risk factors that can make it harder for people to
speak out and seek support. These challenges may
be deepened as services may not have been designed
with their needs in mind.

Lambeth is a borough of huge diversity, energy, and
possibility but we know that these opportunities,
access to services and support are not distributed
equally among different communities. In our work
and within the Borough Plan we have made a
commitment to take an anti-racist approach when
tackling inequality within the borough. We have also
considered how the different identities (for example:
ethnicity, religion, sexuality etc.) of residents in
Lambeth intersect or overlap with each other to
shape their exposure to and experiences of violence
within Lambeth and the community. By bringing an
intersectional perspective to this work we believe
that we will be better able to tackle VAWG and
support victims and survivors to recover and lead full
and happy lives. This requires us to understand and
respond to how male violence overlaps with systemic
discrimination and oppression to produce unique
experiences of violence, risks and barriers.

Page 24

Data tells us that domestic abuse, sexual violence,
female genital mutilation/cutting, stalking and
harassment are the most widespread forms of VAWG
in Lambeth. We have seen increases in reporting
related to these in the last five years. This may be
because people feel more confident in reporting but
we also know that these issues remain hidden and
under-reported by victims and survivors. For many
women, girls and gender non-conforming residents,
sexual harassment is a daily part of life – unwelcome,
frightening and rarely reported. The true levels of
VAWG in the borough are likely to be significantly
higher than the data tells us.

A reason why some forms of VAWG may be underreported is that people may not recognise their
experiences as abuse – often this is because of
‘myths’ that have become accepted over time. For
example, that domestic abuse always features
physical violence; that someone needs to have said
‘no’ for it to be rape; that it can’t be harassment if
what’s said is a ‘compliment’; or that some forms of
abuse (such as female genital mutilation/cutting,
so-called ‘honour-based’ violence, and forced
marriage) are ‘traditional’ or ‘cultural’ practices.
These may stop people from feeling able to seek
help or knowing where to get support. So, while we
will prioritise tackling those forms that are most
prevalent in the borough, we must also continue
to offer support and interventions to victims and
survivors of all forms of VAWG.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 9

1 Introduction
OUR JOURNEY SO FAR

t

Trans women are at particularly high risk from
domestic and sexual violence (Galop, 2020)
and 1% of the Lambeth Multi-Agency Risk
Assessment Conference (MARAC) referrals
were trans women in 2019/20. There were no
referrals for victims or survivors defining as
trans men or as non-binary (Lambeth, 2020).

We published our second VAWG strategy in 2016, building on the approach set out in
our first strategy and responding to the significant developments in the previous five
years. We spoke with victims and survivors, frontline practitioners (those working
to support victims and survivors), and other interested groups, to help us shape
our priorities and outcomes. They played a key role in supporting us to embed an
approach that centred the voices of women and girls specifically, and for services and
responses that understood the connected nature of the different types of violence and
abuse experienced. The consultation and data made it clear that we needed stronger
partnership working across all the agencies that are involved in tackling VAWG and
this has been a significant focus of the past four years.
This work has continued to be one of the key priorities for the Safer Lambeth
Partnership, the council, and its partners. Since 2011 many dedicated individuals,
services, and agencies have driven real improvements in the way we work together to
address VAWG in the borough.

Page 25

In 2011 we looked at all the data we had on reported cases, consulted with victims and
survivors, and knew that we needed to do more to address all strands of VAWG and the
relationships between them. We are proud that from this, Lambeth developed one of
the first VAWG strategies in the UK and created the pioneering Gaia Centre, offering a
single point of access for anyone experiencing any type of VAWG in Lambeth.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 10

1 Introduction

Lambeth has the fifth highest number of newly
recorded cases of female genital mutilation/
cutting in London (NHS, 2020).

Africa Advocacy
Foundation (AAF) have
provided culturally
appropriate 1-2-1
advocacy, casework and
counselling for over 250
Lambeth residents affected
by and/or at risk of
female genital mutilation/
cutting. They have reached
thousands of community
members across a range
of settings through their
community champions
and mentors.

We know that
specialist services
present cost-effective
ways to provide support; a
recent study showed that
specialist VAWG services
achieved a return of
£4.94 for every £1 spent.
Services specifically for
victims and survivors
assessed at the most
serious risk generate
a substantial return of
£7.14 for every £1 spent.

t

Our community
based VAWG support
service, the Gaia Centre,
receives an average of
1,500 referrals every
year. The service makes a
real difference with 94%
of victims and survivors
stating increased feelings
of safety, 92% noting
an improvement in
their quality of life and
99% feeling increased
confidence in accessing
help and support.

t

We have maintained
funding for the largest
refuge provision in
London. 85% of this
specialist accommodation
offers culturally specific
support for women
identifying as African and
African Caribbean, South
Asian, or Irish Traveller/
Traveller.

t

t

t

t

Since 2016 we have
trained over 2,000 people
from a wide range of
statutory, voluntary
and community settings
on how to identify and
respond to all forms
VAWG.

Page 26

The Sanctuary Scheme
has continued to support
victims and survivors
of domestic abuse to
remain in their own homes
through additional security
measures. A recent
review of the impact of
the scheme showed 90%
of recipients were able to
sustain their tenancy 12
months after installation,
generating a direct saving
of £846,500 in temporary
housing costs.

t

WHAT WE HAVE ACHIEVED

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 11

1 Introduction
What next?

Specialist support
Working together
Community response
Children and young people
Reducing harm from perpetrators
Intersectionality and anti-racism are principles that
must be embedded through each of these priorities.
Residents have told us that their experiences of
VAWG did not exist in isolation. Barriers to seeking
help and accessing services were much greater
when these overlapped with other experiences of
discrimination or disadvantage.
This strategy is just the beginning of our work.
We will also ensure that it aligns with our Lambeth
Made Safer Strategy, which focuses on reducing
violence that impacts on our children and young
people. Our Lambeth Made Communities approach
to meaningful engagement and co-production will
deepen our work with experts by experience and
our diverse communities in a sustained way. To

tackle VAWG effectively we need to create equal
access to support and ensure that the outcomes
achieved are equitable for all victims and survivors.
To do this we need to better understand the needs
of all our communities. We know that there is
over and under-representation of some groups
of Lambeth’s residents in services. For example,
Black and disabled women are over-represented
in our specialist services for high-risk domestic
abuse cases when compared to the population of
Lambeth. Trans and non-binary residents are underrepresented in all our specialist services. We need to
better understand these differences and individual
experiences. We will improve our data collection
and act on the expertise of those who have lived
experience to ensure that our strategy and delivery
are inclusive and representative. This includes people
from Black, Asian and multi-ethnic communities;
migrant residents; those with no recourse to public
funds; those with insecure immigration status; Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller communities; trans, non-binary
and gender non-conforming residents; those who
are LGBTQ+; those with disabilities; working class
residents; younger and older people; and those
experiencing multiple disadvantage. We want to
create a truly coordinated community response,
and for that we need to work together, listen,
learn and act.

Page 27

This is our third strategy and builds on the work
outlined above. Through all the hard work and
commitment over the past ten years, we are now in
a stronger position to develop better processes to
understand where there are differences in reporting,
responses, risks and outcomes for individuals
experiencing VAWG. We have reviewed our previous
actions and examined the data available to us
to understand our successes, gaps and lessons
learned. From the earliest stages of design and
development we have worked with those who have
lived experience of VAWG. Experts by experience
are best placed to advise on what solutions, support
and services will make a positive difference to their
lives. We worked in partnership to co-produce a
model for a public consultation which included focus
groups, events, one-to-one interviews and surveys.
We then used this model to speak with victims
and survivors, residents and practitioners from a
range of organisations to develop the priorities,
goals, commitments and actions outlined in this
new strategy. This model of experts by experience,
our communities, and agencies working together in
equal partnership will be built into the delivery and
evaluation of all our work going forward.

Our consultation has told us what our strategic
priorities should be and these will shape the work of
the Safer Lambeth Partnership in tackling Violence
Against Women and Girls:

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 12

2 Vision

t

There were 21,068
domestic abuse
incidents reported
to the police in
Lambeth between
2016-2020, an
average of 14 per
day (MOPAC).

in all public and private spaces and can meet their
full potential, free from violence or abuse.

Every victim and survivor of VAWG can access
specialist support, and we recognise and remove
barriers to that support.

We prevent VAWG from happening but when it
does, we hold those responsible to account.

We challenge and address all the forms of
inequality and discrimination that cause VAWG,
particularly among children and young people so
they are safe and have healthy relationships.

VAWG is understood in the context of wider
structural inequalities and discrimination. We
recognise the individual experiences of victims and
survivors and tailor support to meet the needs of
our residents.

We work in partnership with all Lambeth
residents, communities and practitioners to deliver a
truly coordinated community response.

We develop and deliver our work with and
alongside our residents, rather than ‘to’ them. We
create opportunities for meaningful participation with
our residents and experts by experience and act on
what they tell us.

Our strategy is reviewed regularly and our
work is flexible to respond effectively to changing
circumstances.

Page 28

Lambeth
is a borough
where
everyone
is safe

Lambeth is a place where every resident feels safe

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 13

3 Priorities
1: SPECIALIST SUPPORT
2: WORKING TOGETHER

4: CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE
5: REDUCING HARM FROM
PERPETRATORS

t

Current studies estimate that almost 80% of
LGBTQ+ victims and survivors have never
reported incidents to the police or attempted
to find advice or protection from services
(Galop, 2019).

Page 29

3: COMMUNITY RESPONSE

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 14

PRIORITY 1: SPECIALIST SUPPORT
Residents have told us how much they value
Lambeth’s specialist VAWG support services
and the importance of ‘safe spaces’ where they
know they will be believed and provided with
non-judgmental, holistic support to increase their
safety. Peer support and being able to speak
to others who had experienced VAWG was also
appreciated to help better understand the abuse
and its impact.

All victims and

GOALS

survivors know where
to go for help and can
easily and flexibly access
the right support, at
the right time, based on
their individual needs
and identity

Victims and survivors
of all forms of VAWG
know that they will be

believed and provided
with free, independent,
non-judgemental and
confidential support
at any stage of their
journey from any service
in Lambeth.

Support does not

stop after a crisis period
and there will be a
consideration of longer-

term safety, practical
help and healing
support for victims and
survivors.

The lived experiences
of residents who are
known to be more at
risk because of other
inequalities are central
to the co-design and
delivery of services.

t

Women involved in sex work/prostitution and
supported by services in Lambeth have all
experienced two or more areas of multiple
disadvantage (domestic and sexual violence,
problematic substance use, mental ill-health,
offending, homelessness, removal of children,
and experience in care) (Fulfilling Lives Lambeth,
Southwark & Lewisham (LSL), Women’s and
Equalities Committee Submission, 2019).

Page 30

Some residents with lived experience of VAWG
also told us that they faced additional challenges
such as poverty, substance dependence, mental
ill-health, homelessness, language barriers, having
no recourse to public funds, or having contact
within the criminal justice system. These impacted
on their experiences of violence and abuse and
created barriers to accessing services.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 15

PRIORITY 1: SPECIALIST SUPPORT

COMMITMENTS
We will ensure that specialist support services are
coordinated and high-quality, including ‘by and for’
specialist organisations.

All services will be accessible, flexible, tailored

We will ensure that services understand the
impact of trauma and promote a culture of safety,
empowerment and healing to repair the harm caused
by violence and abuse.

VAWG provision and mainstream services such as
police, social care, health and housing to identify and
respond to over- and under-representation of groups
of people, gaps in service provision, and areas for
improvement. This will seek to identify and actively
address the impact of inequality and discrimination
on access and outcomes for all victims and survivors.

Our work will be informed by the lived experience
of victims and survivors, community research, and
academic literature. We will embed community
engagement into the co-creation and delivery of
all our work. We will listen, learn, and act on the
expertise of those with lived experience of violence,
abuse, discrimination and disadvantage, to build
services that meet the multiple and intersecting
needs of all victims and survivors.

Page 31

to the individual, and available in a timely way to
victims and survivors and their children. These will
be need and risk-led and available at all stages of
their journey.

We will monitor the performance of specialist

To reduce re-traumatisation, victims and

t

More than 50% of migrant women who had
experienced VAWG feared that they would
not be believed by the police because of their
immigration status (54%) with more than half
feeling that the police or the Home Office
would support the perpetrator over them
(52%) (Step Up Migrant Women, 2019).

survivors will receive consistent support by retaining
staff across the partnership and improving safe
information sharing.

We will ensure promotional materials for
specialist services are culturally appropriate for our
communities and residents and are accessible in a
wide range of formats and languages.

Services will ensure that victims and survivors
feel safe and supported to disclose and seek help in
their own languages. This will include sign language.

“

Domestic violence specialists
understand your situation, others
say, ‘why don’t you just leave?’

”

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 16

PRIORITY 2: WORKING TOGETHER
Residents and practitioners have told us that it
is vital that more services can identify VAWG
and work together to make sure that victims
and survivors and their children are safe and
supported.

t

We heard that those with lived experience want
to be more involved in shaping change and
making sure that all services are working in a
coordinated way.

65% of those victims and survivors referred
to MARAC in 2019/20 identified as Black,
Asian or multi-ethnic (Lambeth).

Residents,

GOALS

communities, charities,
businesses, statutory
agencies and other
stakeholders work in
equal partnership to
provide a coordinated
response to preventing
and tackling all forms of
VAWG.

Practitioners in

services across the
partnership and
community:
• recognise abuse
• understand the impact
of trauma
• make the links
between different
forms of VAWG

• understand the
dynamic nature of risk
• understand the
specific risks faced by
marginalised groups
• provide an appropriate
response to
disclosures
• know what support is
available to victims
and survivors,

their children and
perpetrators
• prioritise keeping
victims and survivors
safe.

We identify and

promote good practice
and encourage reflection
and learning.

Page 32

There are lots of examples of good practice
but there is still more to be done to widen
understanding of, and responses to, VAWG in
key services.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 17

PRIORITY 2: WORKING TOGETHER

COMMITMENTS
We will lead on delivering a strong coordinated

t
the connections between VAWG, discrimination,
substance dependency, mental ill-health, involvement
in the criminal justice system, and the removal of
children.

Between 2016-2020, Lambeth made 82 referrals
to the National Referral Mechanism for victims
of trafficking. 94% were for children under the
age of 18 (Home Office, 2020).

community response that involves experts by
experience, residents, Lambeth Made Communities,
and practitioners in tackling VAWG together.

We will utilise multi-agency forums to share

We will ensure that the Lambeth Made Safer for

We will create an experts by experience panel to

relevant information and work in partnership to
safeguard victims and survivors and their children.

We will publicise specialist services and create

Young People and the Lambeth Made Safer VAWG
Strategy are aligned and that we work in partnership
to address domestic abuse as a risk factor for
perpetrating and experiencing serious youth violence.

We will be proactive in creating a learning culture
that is able to evolve and respond flexibly to the
changing needs of the borough. The partnership
will be open to challenge and hold itself and others
accountable for poor practice. We will utilise
examples of good practice to ensure services within
health, housing, police and social care are routinely
asking about VAWG to create opportunities for
disclosures and interventions.

We will be open and honest about the mistrust and
fear victims and survivors may have in seeking help
or disclosing to services and work together to actively
address these.

We will work in partnership to identify
intersecting inequalities for those experiencing
multiple disadvantages, to ensure services address

opportunities for disclosure and support through colocating specialist workers in mainstream services.

We will develop a workforce development
programme to build knowledge, skills and capacity
across the partnership and to create a wider range
of places victims and survivors feel safe to disclose
and seek help. This programme will have at its heart
the need for culturally relevant and appropriate
responses. This will include training with statutory
services such as police, social care, housing
and health.

We will conduct Domestic Homicide Reviews and
contribute to Child Safeguarding Practice Reviews
and Serious Case Reviews (where there are links
to VAWG) to identify and share learning and create
action plans to ensure sustainable change. These
learning spaces will include representation from
specialist organisations that can ensure reviews
consider the impact of inequality and discrimination.

Practitioners across VAWG, the criminal justice
system and offender support services will work
in partnership to raise awareness and respond to
the links between women’s unique experiences of
domestic abuse, sexual violence and offending.

Practitioners across the partnership will
understand the links between VAWG, serious youth
violence, contextual harm, and modern slavery and
are able to provide a safe and supportive response.

We will align our work with national, regional
and local developments.

“

A gynaecologist asked me if
I have experienced abuse, I felt
this was a real turning point
for me.

”

Page 33

be involved in the development, delivery and scrutiny
of the VAWG Strategy and annual action plans. This
will be representative of Lambeth and we will support
them to ensure their involvement is not tokenistic and
does not lead to re-traumatisation or further stigma.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 18

PRIORITY 3: COMMUNITY RESPONSE
Those with lived experience of VAWG have told
us that friends and family are often the first
and sometimes only responders to victims and
survivors and that more needs to be done to raise
awareness of what VAWG is and what help and
support is available.

and discrimination,
including misogyny,
are challenged at every
opportunity to prevent
VAWG.

and where to find
information and advice
if they are experiencing
VAWG or are supporting
a family member, friend,
neighbour, or colleague.

Lambeth residents

Everyone in Lambeth

All forms of inequality

GOALS

and communities are
aware of all forms
of VAWG, know how
to recognise abuse,

knows that violence
and abuse are not
inevitable and feel
empowered to work with

other members of their
community to prevent
and tackle all forms of
VAWG.

Our public spaces

are safe so women,
girls and gender nonconforming residents
can move freely
through our streets,
parks, transport hubs,

hospitality and retail
venues and other parts
of Lambeth without fear
of harassment, violence
or abuse.

t
Almost 20% of
women over the
age of 16 have
experienced
stalking, as well
as almost 10% of
men (British Crime
Survey, 2020).

Page 34

Residents and practitioners want to see
coordinated and targeted campaigns that support
prevention and early intervention and help us
to tackle the societal attitudes that are the root
causes of VAWG.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 19

PRIORITY 3: COMMUNITY RESPONSE

“

Get feedback from the community who have experienced
this type of violence. Maybe in the form of a focus group
of individuals, that can communicate to organisations to
understand and improve ways of helping the community
who face these issues.

Lambeth residents and communities will have the
support and resources to proactively respond to all
forms of VAWG at the earliest opportunity.

We will work with residents to understand what
different communities need to feel that services are
open to them and address the barriers that impact
on seeking help. We will tailor our services and
communications based on what we are told is needed.

We will work together to embed practices that
understand the impacts of trauma; are genderresponsive; culturally informed and anti-racist/
oppressive, in order to support recovery from
harm and prevent re-victimisation for victims and
survivors. We will raise awareness within our
Lambeth communities about the impact of VAWG
on children and the available interventions to
aid recovery.

We will consult and co-create with our residents

Page 35

COMMITMENTS

”

to learn what is needed for people to both feel and
be safe in our public spaces, and work with them to
deliver on what they tell us.

We will utilise the Lambeth Made Communities
approach to collaborate with our residents at a
ward level. This will ensure we have a strong
understanding of issues at a local level and what
solutions and interventions are needed to create
sustained change.

Agencies across the partnership will review
their own policies and practices with a view to align
their approach to reflect the values and approach
of the strategy, identify areas for improvement and
incorporate examples of best practice for responding
to VAWG.

t

Older victims and survivors experience abuse
for twice as long before seeking help as those
aged under 61 and nearly 50% have a disability.
Yet older clients are hugely underrepresented
among domestic abuse services (Safelives,
2016).

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 20

PRIORITY 4: CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

t

Those with lived experience of VAWG have told
us about the devastating impact of abuse on their
children and the need for specialist support and
coordinated responses to help them to recover.

62% of children living with domestic abuse are
directly harmed by the perpetrator of the abuse
(Safelives, 2014).

We must support them to understand VAWG,
consent and healthy relationships if we are to
prevent future abuse and promote social and
emotional wellbeing for all.

Children and young

GOALS

people who have
experienced or been
affected by any form
of VAWG have access
to specialist support
to recover and lead
positive lives safe
from abuse.

All Lambeth children

and young people
understand consent and

healthy relationships
and are safe from all
forms of VAWG.

Those working with

children and young
people in Lambeth
can identify VAWG,
the dynamics of
exploitation and abuse,
and respond rapidly and
appropriately based on
their individual needs
and identity.

Practitioners

understand the impact
of VAWG (particularly
coercive control) on
the parenting of nonabusive parents and
hold abusive parents
responsible for the
impact their behaviour
has on the safety and
wellbeing of their
children.

Spaces where

children and young
people experience harm
beyond their families
(such as schools,
parks, transport hubs,
neighbourhoods and
online) are identified and
made safe.

The impact of

children and young
people’s experiences
of VAWG is understood

in the context of wider
violence, structural
inequalities, and
discrimination.
Interventions are
culturally appropriate
and able to minimise
trauma and allow all
children and young
people to lead happy
and healthy lives.

Page 36

We also know that children and young people are
the victims and survivors of VAWG in their own
relationships, from adults and their peers, and that
these overlap with experiences of other forms in
inequality and discrimination.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 21

PRIORITY 4: CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE

COMMITMENTS
We will prioritise prevention of violence and abuse,
early intervention, and provision of support for all
Lambeth children and young people.

We will engage with children and young people to

We will utilise statutory changes to Relationships,
Sex and Health Education in schools to promote a
whole school approach to healthy relationships,
including LGBTQ+ relationships. This will aim to
ensure a consistent understanding of what VAWG
is and where children and young people can access
support if they are affected by or are subject to
violence and abuse.

Schools and Education partners will ensure that
they prevent and respond to gender-based abuse in

t

Nationally 43% of women supported by the No
Woman Turned Away project were from Black
and minoritised backgrounds, highlighting
the additional barriers faced in accessing safe
accommodation (Women’s Aid, 2020).

Those working in early years services, schools,
voluntary services, care and youth settings will
receive training to recognise, support and signpost
children and young people experiencing VAWG and
exploitation. This will be monitored and evaluated to
measure its impact.

We will work in partnership to identify and

Page 37

co-create a plan to develop interventions, resources
and services to prevent abuse and to help young
victims and survivors to recover.

and around schools so that all children and young
people have access to education that is safe.

respond to the links between VAWG and contextual
safeguarding, in recognition that children and young
people can experience significant harm beyond their
families. This will involve the expertise of children
and young people, their families and communities to
identify the spaces where young people experience
violence and abuse and to make them safer.

We will work to improve the response to girls and
young women involved in criminal activity with a
recognition of the links between VAWG and offending.

Lambeth Children’s Services will view children
whose caregivers are experiencing domestic abuse as
victims in their own right. They will review responses
to ensure that non-abusive parents are supported and
perpetrators are held accountable for their abuse.

The partnership will embed anti-oppressive
practice that seeks to address the inequalities gap
that exists for our children and young people and that
intersects with their experiences of VAWG.

“

I’m worried I’ve done the right
thing [fleeing], we had to transfer
school and my children didn’t get
a chance to say goodbye.

”

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 22

PRIORITY 5: REDUCING HARM FROM PERPETRATORS
Residents and practitioners have told us that there
is a need for a sustained and systematic response
to perpetrators as part of the coordinated response
in Lambeth.
We have also listened to the need to raise
awareness of the unacceptability of VAWG within
communities and to ensure perpetrators are aware
of where to seek help to change their behaviour.

Rape offences reported to Lambeth police
were 28% higher in 2019/20 than in 2016/17
(MOPAC).

Perpetrators, and not

GOALS

victims and survivors,
have their behaviour
(and the causes for their
behaviour) challenged
and are held to account
for their actions.

To prevent ongoing

violence and protect
future victims and
survivors, perpetrators
are encouraged to
access support to help

them to recognise,
address and stop their
abusive behaviour at
the earliest available
opportunity. These
responses will be
gender responsive,
trauma informed and
culturally competent.

When perpetrators
access support, or
approach services,
practitioners have the

knowledge and skills to
respond appropriately.
Practitioners know what
services are available
to perpetrators of all
forms of VAWG and
organisations actively
publicise these.

Wherever

appropriate,
perpetrators are
prosecuted and the full
range of criminal and

civil powers are used
to protect victims and
survivors, and those
experiencing abuse
have confidence in these
systems.

Communities

are supported and
empowered to raise
awareness of VAWG,
model healthy
relationships, and
challenge the harmful

attitudes that cause
and condone abusive
behaviour.

Services understand

and respond to the
additional vulnerabilities
a perpetrator may
experience while
remaining clear that
violence and abuse are
always a choice.

Page 38

t

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 23

PRIORITY 5: REDUCING HARM FROM PERPETRATORS

“

Perpetrators might be
arrested and charged and
go inside for a bit but then
they come out and abuse
someone else.

t

A total of 1,877 domestic abuse victims and
survivors assessed as being at high risk of
serious harm or homicide were discussed at
MARAC over the four-year period 2016-2020.
They had 1,683 associated children (Lambeth
MARAC – Annual Reports).

COMMITMENTS
Our work will be informed by the existing evidence
base and examples of good practice to support the
development of an effective multi-agency offer for
perpetrator interventions in Lambeth. This will hold
perpetrators to account for their behaviour, provide
opportunities to work through past traumas and
offer support for behaviour change when and where
appropriate.

We will acknowledge the intersections of VAWG
and other forms of discrimination and inequality,
and how this may lead to some perpetrators being
reported or subject to enforcement disproportionally,
so that our interventions are not discriminatory .

Services will work in partnership to disrupt
perpetration of abuse and to utilise all enforcement
options available to reduce the risk to victims
and survivors.

Our approach to perpetrators will be tailored to
each of the different forms of VAWG in recognition
of different dynamics and risks. Our primary concern
will always be safety of victims and survivors.

We will work together to promote an
understanding of healthy relationships and to
intervene early to challenge and change harmful
behaviours and attitudes.

Page 39

”

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 24

4 Delivery
Delivering the commitments to meet
our goals

The strategy will be delivered by a wide range
of partners, our councillors, council officers, our
residents, experts by experience, practitioners,
stakeholders, and our communities.
Lambeth Made Communities
Lambeth Made Community meetings and websites
allow residents and community groups to work with
organisations that provide local services, like the
police and the council. The aim is to build community
resilience, improve community safety, and reduce
violence. Lambeth Made Communities will be
embedded in all our work.

Experts by Experience – Survivor Forums
Whilst survivors will be involved with the Lambeth
Made Communities approach, we understand that
they may also need a safe space to share their
experiences. VAWG crosses public and private
spaces and impacts people in different ways; those
with lived experience, both adults and children and
young people, may need a separate space that is
survivor-led, inclusive, confidential, and appropriately
supported. A small panel of survivors will lead and
manage these forums and engage directly with the
wider structure on their behalf.
Strategy Priority Workstreams
Each priority in this strategy will be overseen by a
Strategy Priority Workstream – each workstream
will represent the relevant expertise in our borough,
collectively identify what action is needed and
own the delivery of those actions. Lambeth Made
Communities will be embedded and central to
their thinking.

Page 40

Violence Against Women and Girls impacts all our
lives and it will take collective responsibility to
address it. This strategy will be delivered by listening
to the needs and experiences of our communities and
we need a dynamic structure in place to reflect that.
Moreover, we know that our communities are rich
with assets that can provide solutions to many
of these needs, and we are open to considering
all possible solutions to meet our commitments
and goals.

Practitioners’ Forum
Practitioners working or volunteering in VAWG
services will have unique insight into needs and
solutions and as such will have a route in to
influencing and informing our work via the Lambeth
VAWG Forum.

The action plans they create will set out how we
will deliver on our commitments to meet our goals;
these will be shared and publicly available. Lambeth
Council will ensure there is officer resource available
to support these groups.
Strategic Partnership Board
The Strategy Priority Workstreams will report
regularly to a Strategic Partnership Board to
ensure there is singular and central oversight of the
workstreams, who will in turn report to the Safer
Lambeth Partnership Executive.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 25

4 Delivery
Lambeth Made Communities / VAWG Practitioners’ Forum / Children and Young People’s Forum / VAWG Survivors’ Forum

Working together
workstream

Community response
workstream

Children and young
people workstream

VAWG – Strategic
Partnership Board

Safer Lambeth Partnership Executive

Reducing harm
from perpetrators
workstream

Page 41

Specialist
support workstream

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 26

5 Definitions
VAWG is both a cause and consequence of gender
inequality in society. Locally we have adopted the
United Nations Declaration on Elimination of Violence
against Women, which defines violence against
women as:

We use the term VAWG in recognition that most
victims and survivors are women and girls, but
people of any gender identity can experience abuse.
The vast majority of perpetrators are men and it
is important to name this as male violence while
recognising that men and boys can be victims and
survivors. This abuse happens in all societies and
communities and affects people regardless of their
background, ethnicity, occupation, religion, sexuality,
or personal characteristics including disability. It can
happen to children and adults of all ages.
Many people may not recognise what they are
experiencing as abuse. To learn more about the
different forms of VAWG see our website:
lambeth.gov.uk/VAWG

The Domestic Abuse Act 2021 created a statutory
definition of domestic abuse:
Behaviour of a person (A) towards another person
(B) is ‘domestic abuse’ if:
(a) A and B are each aged 16 or over and are
personally connected to each other, and
(b) the behaviour is abusive.
Behaviour is ‘abusive’ if it consists of any of the
following:

physical or sexual abuse
violent or threatening behaviour
controlling or coercive behaviour
economic abuse
psychological, emotional or other abuse and it
does not matter whether the behaviour consists of a
single incident or a course of conduct.
‘Personally connected’ covers intimate partners or
ex-partners, or family members and as part of this
definition, children are explicitly recognised as victims
if they see, hear or otherwise experience the effects
of abuse.

Controlling behaviour is a range of acts designed
to make a person subordinate and/or dependent by
isolating them from sources of support, exploiting
their resources and capacities for personal
gain, depriving them of the means needed for
independence, resistance and escape and regulating
their everyday behaviour.
Coercive behaviour is an act or a pattern of acts of
assault, threats, humiliation and intimidation or other
abuse that is used to harm, punish or frighten the
victim for their behaviour and/or identity, perceived
or real.
We acknowledge that within the definition of domestic
abuse there are a wide range of different abuses
including: intimate partner violence and abuse for
people of all ages, genders and sexualities; adult
family violence and abuse; so-called ‘honour’based abuse; forced marriage; child to parent, and
adolescent to parent violence and abuse. While all
are gendered (most victims and survivors are women
and most perpetrators are men) and coercive control
is the main feature of the abuse, there are differences
and we need to ensure responses and interventions
are tailored and appropriate.

Page 42

‘Any act of gender-based violence that results in or
is likely to result in physical, sexual or psychological
harm or suffering to women [or girls], including
threats of such acts, coercion or arbitrary deprivation
of liberty’ (1993, Article 1).

Domestic abuse

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 27

Female genital mutilation/cutting
Female genital mutilation (FGM)/cutting is a
procedure where the female genitals are deliberately
cut, injured or changed, but where there is no medical
reason for this to be done. This is a traditional practice
in some communities and is sometimes portrayed as
a religious requirement although there is no basis for
this. It is also known as female circumcision, and by
other terms such as sunna, gudniin, halalays, tahur,
megrez and khitan, among others.

A forced marriage is a marriage in which one or both
spouses do not (or, in the case of some adults with
learning or physical disabilities, or those under the age
of 18, cannot) consent to the marriage and duress is
involved. Duress can include physical, psychological,
financial, sexual and emotional pressure. This is a form
of domestic abuse but can involve people other than
family or intimate partners and can be an element of
so-called ‘honour’-based abuse affecting victims and
survivors of all gender identities.

Sexual exploitation
Sexual exploitation is when one person or a group
of people abuse or attempt to abuse a position of
vulnerability, power, or trust, for sexual purposes.
This includes but is not limited to profiting financially,
socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of
another. It is child sexual exploitation when the victim

Modern slavery is the illegal exploitation of people for
personal or commercial gain. It covers a wide range
of abuse and exploitation and is a form of VAWG when
the exploitation is of a sexual nature.
Trafficking is also a form of VAWG when it involves
the recruitment, transportation and exploitation of
adults (without their knowledge or consent) and
children for the purposes of sexual exploitation across
international borders and within countries (‘internal
trafficking’).

Sexual violence
Sexual violence is any unwanted sexual act or activity.
There are many kinds of sexual violence that exist
including, but not limited to rape, sexual assault,
child sexual abuse (CSA) and sexual harassment.
Perpetrators range from total strangers to relatives
and intimate partners. It can happen to anyone,
anywhere – in the family/household, workplace,
public spaces, social settings – and at any point in
life. Sexual harassment is often first experienced by
women when they are girls and young women are at
increased risk of sexual violence.
Sexual violence can occur online in the form of
grooming, sharing intimate images of someone
without their consent and using technology such as
apps, websites and other online platforms to coerce or
distress a victim or survivor.

So-called ‘honour’-based violence
So-called ‘honour’-based violence is a collection of
practices used to control behaviour within families
to protect perceived cultural, spiritual, and religious
beliefs and/or ‘honour’. It is often linked to family
members or acquaintances who mistakenly believe
someone has brought shame to their family or
community by doing something that is not in keeping
with the traditional beliefs of their culture. This is a
form of domestic abuse but in most so-called ‘honour’based violence cases there are multiple perpetrators
from the immediate family, sometimes the extended
family and occasionally the community at large. It is
important to note that since the concepts of ‘honour’,
‘purity’ and what is ‘natural’ exist across cultural
borders, so-called ‘honour’-based violence has been
witnessed and reported in every community.

Stalking and harassment
Stalking is unwanted, repeated, obsessive and/or
controlling behaviours that make someone distressed
or scared. There are many ways stalking can be
perpetrated and it is most likely to be someone the
victim or survivor already knows well such as an
ex-partner. The law states that harassment is when a
person behaves in a way which is intended to cause
distress or alarm. The behaviour must happen on
more the one occasion. It can be the same type of
behaviour or different types of behaviour on each
occasion.

Page 43

Forced marriage

or survivor is under the age of 18 and can include
prostitution, trafficking and modern slavery.

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS / PAGE 28

ENDING VAWG IS IN EVERYONE’S INTEREST

The greatest impact of VAWG is felt by its
victims and survivors. However, VAWG presents
a significant cost to the taxpayer and the
economy. The Home Office estimates that the
total annual cost of domestic abuse alone in
Lambeth is over £27 million. This is the cost to
public services, including police, courts, health
and social care, but this increases to £107
million if we include lost economic output where
victims and survivors cannot work. If we were
to also include the physical and emotional harm
caused, the Home Office quantifies the total cost
of domestic abuse in Lambeth at £376 million.

Page 44

t

LAMBETH MADE SAFER VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN AND GIRLS
30
/ PAGE 3

Page 45

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 47

CABINET

Agenda Item 3

4 OCTOBER 2021

Report title: Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Voluntary Sector & Leisure - Councillor Donatus Anyanwu
Report Authorised by: Fiona McDermott, Strategic Director for Finance and Investment
Contact for enquiries: Yvonne Hardy, Head of Valuation & Strategic Assets, 0207 926 2984,
yhardy@lambeth.gov.uk
Report summary
There is a significant range of Council owned properties across the borough which are occupied by
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) groups covering a wide variety of organisations and partners.
The basis of these occupations has evolved over time with some paying rent, some paying no rent
and others paying reduced rents. This has led to a position where there is little transparency or
consistency in the management of the portfolio; responsibility for repairs and maintenance is not
always clear and there is a lack of investment in the buildings which has, in some cases, lead to poor
standards of Health & Safety with the associated risk to building users and reputational risks for the
Council.
This proposal addresses the core VCS portfolio of approximately 49 properties totalling approximately
85,000 sq. ft. of accommodation; these are listed at Appendix 1. The proposal seeks to adopt a letting
policy which will support a sustainable model for funding future repairs to premises whilst also
encouraging well utilised spaces delivering services and activities aligned with the objectives of the
Borough Plan. The letting policy will be underpinned by the introduction of a social value process and
supported by a new VCS assets liaison officer. The policy includes the adoption of a standardised
VCS subsidised rent matrix that recognises differences in location and size of premises across the
portfolio. This policy replaces the Council’s community asset transfer policy.
Key Changes following Consultation
1. To grant all VCS tenants an extra quarter’s rent free whilst we develop the VCS Asset Strategy, to help
alleviate some of the challenges from lockdown, at a cost of £70,593.75.
2. To extend the transition period from three to six years, where rents are due to increase.
3. To provide additional independent business consultancy to tenants that most need it.
4. To incorporate feedback from the consultation into the Liaison Officer’s job description, to ensure
frequent interaction with tenants and reasonable contact.
5. To grant longer leases, on a case-by-case basis, subject to the usual technical and financial due
diligence, including organisation governance and viability.
6. To promote a VCS Panel with wider VCS representation, to promote advocacy and support to those
tenants that require capacity building across a range of potential areas.

1

Page 48
Finance summary
The portfolio of 49 properties currently contributes approximately £290,000 per annum of rental
income to the general fund. The market rent for these premises is estimated to be £1.2m per annum
producing a subsidy of circa £900,000 per annum. The recommendation of a basic rent of £5.75 per
square foot, adjusted to take into account size and location factors, has been set at a level which, in
addition to maintaining the existing level of rental income from these properties will fund a new post
to support the Council’s relationship with the VCS portfolio tenants and provide business coaching for
the first six years.
Currently the subsidy is not distributed equally, with some VCS tenants paying rent (at varying levels
per square foot) whilst others pay none. This policy will result in a reduction in rent for 21 VCS groups
and an increase in rent for 18 groups (the remaining properties are vacant). Following the consultation
process, a longer transition period of six years is being proposed for those users facing rent increases.
Those facing decreases will receive the reduction immediately. The delay in implementing the full rent
increase will result in an income gap over the six years that totals £1.075m which will be funded from
an earmarked reserve.
In the future, under the new lease terms the Council will retain responsibility for and will fund external
building repairs including roof repairs, periodic external redecoration and replacement capital items
where the requesting organisation can show that regular maintenance has been undertaken. The
recent Capital Strategy allocated £2.25m funding for the purpose of refurbishment works to this
portfolio which is a programme anticipated to take place over three years.
Recommendations
1. To approve the adoption of the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy, in place of
the community asset transfer policy as set out in this report including the Letting Policy, Social
Value Self Evaluation Tool and VCS Panel (Appendices 2 and 3).
2. To approve a flat rate VCS rental level model of £5.75 per square foot base rent subject to further
discounts to reflect factors such as proximity to transport routes (15%) and size (25%).
3. To approve the use of £1.075m specific earmarked reserve to fund the income gap during the
implementation of the policy.
4. To authorise the Head of Valuation and Strategic Assets to complete new leases on the terms set
out in the letting policy, including the termination of existing terms and offering of new terms in line
with standard landlord and tenant protocols.
5. To approve the creation of the VCS Asset Liaison post and the allocation of the business coaching
resource.
6. To note the allocation of £2.25m from the capital programme to bring the premises back into repair
for those properties where the Council has existing repairing responsibility and for those tenants
that accept the new lease terms.

1.

1.1

CONTEXT

The development of the Lambeth Voluntary Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy was
instigated by the clear need for a sustainable, vibrant third sector in the borough. How the council
makes best use of its assets in helping deliver the Borough Plan goals was a key theme within the
VCS Strategy, adopted by the Cabinet in April 2020 as the global pandemic took hold. In the
following weeks Lambeth’s VCS sector played a huge role in helping the most vulnerable. Shared
endeavour has been a recurrent theme: stronger partnerships among the sector, with the council
2

Page 49
and other borough partners has made a real difference to so many Lambeth residents. It is clear
that we can achieve more with a strategic and more equitable approach to how we manage our
VCS property to enable the sector to do its work.
1.2

The early phases of the VCS Asset Strategy were developed through the Council’s Property
Subgroup of the Lambeth VCS Partnership Group. The Lambeth VCS Partnership Group
comprised a reference group of 25 local VCS organisations that contributed to the development of
priorities for the sector. This group took on board the Borough Plan’s big ambitions and the 20
goals which sit underneath these to genuinely improve the lives of those who work and live in the
borough: included within these goals were the better use of community facilities and fit for purpose
community assets.

1.3

The desire for change that was developing in relation to assets, which features in the 2020 VCS
Strategy, was an appeal from the sector for:





a more co-ordinated and proactive approach to affordable and available VCS property
across the borough
improvements to tenure for the VCS to allow property to work sustainably and flexibly
provision of clear information about accessing premises.
better support, information, and training on how to manage community spaces well with
clear responsibilities

1.4

As the strategy developed, overarching themes; fairness, transparency, consistency,
accountability, and clarity, emerged as principles which should underpin the strategy to ensure that
the desired change would be achieved. This paper sets out the proposed strategy for the
management of the 49 or so premises in the core VCS portfolio. Tenants Halls, properties held on
long leases and properties held in Youth & Play are outside the scope of this strategy, but will
benefit from the improvements in support, information, and training.

1.5

To ensure we that we realise these aspirations and goals we need the Council and VCS partners
to work together to improve the benefits for Lambeth residents from the use and operation of
subsidised assets, meaning that we have to build on the partnership approach between the Council
and the VCS. Using the VCS property portfolio to maximise outcomes for communities is one of
the 5 strategic objectives of the VCS Strategy, along with maximising funds and resources which
come into the borough; building the organisational capacity of VCS organisations; creating stronger
networks, relationships and levels of trust between VCS organisations; and enabling the VCS to
represent local communities and be recognised as a strategic partner.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

Responding to calls from the sector, at the core, the purpose of this strategy is to strengthen the
sector by providing a portfolio of well used, fit for purpose affordable VCS premises, with
transparency around access and availability, clarity and consistency around terms and conditions
and support for managing accommodation well and delivering social value for the benefit of
Lambeth’s residents. The proposed VCS Asset Strategy comprises several components that
together address the changes called for and meet the principles of fairness, transparency,
consistency, accountability, and clarity. The strategy comprises:





A dedicated portfolio of subsidised premises reserved for the VCS
A sustainable approach to maintenance and repair
The VCS Letting Policy, including lease terms and the rent matrix
The Social Value Self Evaluation Tool
3

Page 50



The VCS Panel
The VCS Portal and the VCS Asset Liaison Officer

2.2

This section of the report explains the strategy in more detail and how each element supports the
borough plans goals for fit for purpose well used premises and meets the needs of the sector by
providing transparency around an affordable portfolio, how it can be accessed, ensuring that the
social value sought is achieved. The strategy was developed in collaboration with the sector and
feedback from the consultation has been used to update the proposal.

2.3

A dedicated portfolio of premises reserved for the VCS at subsidised rents
This strategy responds to the call from the sector for access to affordable and available VCS
accommodation. The proposal is to reserve a portfolio of property for and made available to the
sector at a subsidised rent. It provides the clarity required around availability of premises, access
to affordable accommodation including publication of details, with a transparent application
process, when vacancies are available. The management of a waiting list will ensure that all VCS
organisations seeking accommodation will be alerted to opportunities. Support for sharing of
premises will increase the availability of accommodation, increasing the use of premises and
enhancing the benefits for residents. The potential to add new properties to the portfolio will be
possible where a quid pro quo swap is effected.

2.4

Pre Covid there were estimated to be over 1,500 VCS groups in the borough which means that
only a very small number (fewer than 7%) enjoy Council owned premises and a rental subsidy.
Most groups source their premises privately and pay market rent. A continuing series of
applications for space from the sector indicates a continued demand for accommodation. In
addition to the benefits of a dedicated portfolio this strategy retains the provision of an annual rental
subsidy to the sector in excess of £800,000 per annum. Unfortunately, it is not sustainable for the
Council to provide a rental subsidy to all VCS organisations in the borough.

2.5

A sustainable approach to maintenance and repair
When we spoke to the sector some of the issues were about maintaining premises. The condition
of many of the properties in this portfolio is currently unsatisfactory and there is a requirement for
backlog maintenance to be carried out to ensure both the safety of the premises and those who
use them. Funding of £2.25m has already been identified in the capital strategy and a programme
of works will be available, where organisations take up the principles of the new letting policy, to
bring the properties into a fit for purpose condition. This is anticipated to take place over a threeyear period.

2.6

A sustainable approach to future repairs is enabled by new lease terms which clarify the respective
responsibilities between the Council and occupier. It is proposed that tenants take responsibility
for internal repairs and maintenance together with operating costs while the Council (as landlord)
takes responsibility for external repairs including the roof. The Council will also commit to funding
periodic capital replacement items from time to time when required, where the requesting
organisations can show that regular maintenance has been undertaken. This strategy maintains
the existing level of income achieved from this portfolio. Without this income the Council’s
commitment to undertake future capital repairs from time to time will become unaffordable. While
priority will be given to Health and Safety, wherever possible energy efficiency works that promote
the Council’s pledge to be carbon neutral by 2030 will be incorporated.

2.7

The VCS Letting Policy, attached at appendix 2, including lease terms and the rent matrix
The sector called for consistency by the Council in the terms of occupation offered to VCS
organisations. These terms are set out in the VCS Letting Policy and comprise the terms of the
‘Community Lease’. The adoption of the letting policy will provide the clarity sought by the sector,
4

Page 51
but with sufficient flexibility to respond to circumstances such as redevelopment by the Council or
potential for longer leases when supported by due diligence. It is not anticipated that organisations
within this portfolio will seek grant funding for capital investment in premises, but rather that focus
is on delivering social value for residents of the borough.
2.8

In addition to providing a clear application process for VCS premises and a sustainable approach
to repairs, the Letting Policy will support the provision of flexible affordable accommodation for the
wider VCS, particularly smaller organisations through encouraging the sharing of premises.

2.9

A fair subsidised rent, payable by all VCS organisations, after a transition period for those facing
an increase, will bring to an end the historic imbalance where some organisations pay little or no
rent and others, market rent. Following the consultation, the transition period has been extended
so that the full level of subsidised rent will not be payable until year 6 of the strategy. The rent
reductions will be implemented in January 2022 with first transition rent increases due 12 months
later.

2.10

The introduction of an equitable approach to rent based on the rent matrix with reductions to reflect
factors including size (quantum discount) and distance from main roads and transport (location
discount) is in response to the engagement between the Council and the sector and the desire for
subsidy not to be provided based on the comparative value of one organisation over another. The
matrix proposal recognises that all VCS occupiers are valued equally but that buildings in better
locations are more suitable for income generation and larger buildings have a disproportionately
high operational cost burden.

2.11

The Social Value Self Evaluation Tool
In addition to seeking transparency about the availability of accommodation, the sector asked for
transparency about the use of accommodation. The letting policy recognises Lambeth’s VCS
tenants as custodians of Council assets for the benefit of the residents of the borough and this
strategy will make information available to residents and the VCS Sector about the organisations
in receipt of subsidised premises and the social value they deliver.

2.12

The use of a Social Value Self Evaluation Tool (SVSET), Appendix 3, will place an obligation on
VCS occupiers to demonstrate the social value impact or benefit they bring to Lambeth
communities and their contribution to the delivery of the Future Lambeth Borough Plan Goals and
the VCS Strategy aims. The SVSET will be used for annual reporting on-line and completion of the
SVSET will provide transparency and accountability to the community for the use of subsidised
accommodation at the same time as fostering sharing of premises with other VCS occupiers and
delivery of Council and borough priorities. The publication of the return will also increase the
visibility of the services offered, hours of operation and other useful information for residents.

2.13

The VCS Panel
Overall, the Council’s objective is to use a portfolio of Council assets to support a sustainable and
vibrant sector for the benefit of residents. The role of the VCS Panel is to ensure that, in relation to
effective use of the Council’s VCS Property Portfolio, cross sector relationships are promoted and
developed and trust between the council, other public sector partners and the voluntary and
community sector is improved. The terms of reference are being developed and will support a
partnership approach to the delivery of the property outcomes and social outcomes sought as well
as oversight where issues in the landlord and tenant relationship are not resolved through the
support mechanisms set out in the Letting Policy.

2.14

The Panel’s function will be to look at challenges faced by tenants in the round and not with a sole
focus of premises. Where relevant, Integrate Agency CIC, the borough VCS support provider, will
5

Page 52
also have an advocacy / support role to be applied to those tenants identified as needing capacity
building across a range of potential areas i.e. developing a strengthened financial strategy, bid
writing support and networking opportunities.
2.15

The VCS Portal and the VCS Asset Liaison Officer
The call from the sector, identified during the development of the VCS Strategy, included better
support, information, and training on how to manage community spaces and clarity on
responsibilities. The Asset Liaison Officer and the Portal will support this aim. The request was
for a single point of contact at the Council and the Liaison Officer will be able to provide this
resource, building up relationships with the organisations and providing guidance or signposting on
property related issues. Their focus is on using and managing property well, ensuring good
maintenance regimes, H&S compliance, timely rent payment. Early intervention and agreed action
plans will be used, with signposting to support and guidance where required. Although ultimately
legal action may be required, this will be a last resort and in consultation with the panel.

2.16

The full scope of the portal is still under discussion for development, but the intention is, in addition
to providing transparency with the publication of the SVSET, that the web becomes a tool to provide
signposting to resources, guides and information that support and strengthen the sector.

2.17

Implementation
A key element to the sustainability of this strategy has been identified as improvement to the liaison
between the Council and VCS tenants. This proposal enables the recruitment of a new VCS Asset
Liaison officer with a remit to engage with the Tenants. This will ensure best asset management
practice in compliance with the VCS Asset Strategy. The role will include insight and intelligence
gathering on the VCS portfolio, increasing the Council's understanding of the issues the sector
faces and what the sectors needs are, enabling early intervention and resolution.

2.18

The role will be crucial in building relationships between the VCS tenants and the Council and
dealing swiftly with property management queries. This is a new approach that will better enable
the Council to support the tenants, manage the portfolio and head off any issues, providing a
smoother, more responsive service.

2.19

This proposal will have the greatest impact on those organisations that face new rental payments
or face rent increases. To reduce the impact and provide time to adapt it is proposed that the
payment of rent will be phased in with no rent increases in the first year of the policy and stepped
increases for four further years. The full level of subsidised rent will not be payable until the sixth
year of this strategy.

2.20

The rollout of the initial programme of works will require a detailed analysis of a large number of
variables including the timing of access and, where necessary, decant. The overarching criteria for
prioritising repairs and maintenance will be dependent on health & safety and accessibility issues
and this will be reviewed alongside the access provisions. The standard community lease will be
offered.

2.21

During and after the formal consultation process, Officers continued to have one-to-one
engagements with all the tenants who are most likely to be affected adversely by the strategy, with
the aim of exploring new options and opportunities which could mitigate the impact of the strategy
on each organisation. These engagements will continue once the strategy is approved.

6

Page 53
2.22

The move to the new lease arrangements will be by negotiated agreement wherever possible.
However, statutory notices will be used to terminate existing agreements and offer the new lease
terms when appropriate. Each case will be reviewed in the light of legal advice with a negotiated
solution being prioritised.

2.23

The Social Value tool will bring transparency to the process of VCS groups’ own individual
performance against the Borough Plan objectives and the Panel will review disputes.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

The portfolio of 49 properties currently contributes approximately £290,000 per annum of rental
income to the general fund. The market rent for these premises is estimated to be £1.2m per
annum producing a subsidy of circa £900,000 per annum. The recommendation of a basic rent of
£5.75 per square foot, adjusted to take into account size and location factors, has been set at a
level which, in addition to maintaining the existing level of rental income from these properties will
fund a new post to support the Council’s relationship with the VCS portfolio tenants and provide
business coaching for the first six years.

3.2

Currently the subsidy is not distributed equally, with some VCS tenants pay rent (at varying levels
per square foot) whilst others pay none. This policy will result in a reduction in rent for 21 VCS
groups (23 properties), and an increase in rent for 18 groups (18 properties), the remaining eight
properties are vacant. Following the consultation process, a longer transition period of six years is
being proposed for those users facing rent increases. Those facing decreases will receive the
reduction immediately. The delay in implementing the full rent increase will result in an income gap
over the six years that totals £1.075m which will be funded from a specific earmarked reserve.

3.3

Under this proposal tenants will all pay a fair and transparent VCS rent based on a flat rate of £5.75
per square foot which is then subject to discounts to reflect the size of the property and its
accessibility, or lack of, from transport networks. The spread of subsidised rents is referred to as
the Rent Matrix.

3.4



The Quantum Discount of 25% will be applicable to premises over 1,000 sq. ft.



The Location Discount of 15% will be applied to premises located away from main roads
and the best public transport links.

Two buildings have been identified as garage/workshops and have been attributed a reduced rent
based on a reduced market rate for these types of properties.
The
Rent Matrix

Location
Reduction

3.5

Quantum
Reduction
Baseline VCS Rent Baseline less 25%
£5.75psf
Baseline less 15%

£4.31psf
Baseline less 40%

£4.89psf

£3.45psf

In the future, under the new lease terms the Council will retain responsibility for and will fund
external building repairs including roof repairs, periodic external redecoration and replacement
capital items where the requesting organisation can show that regular maintenance has been
undertaken. The recent Capital Strategy allocated £2.25m funding for the purpose of refurbishment
works to this portfolio which is a programme anticipated to take place over three years.
7

Page 54
4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 introduced the “general power of competence” for local
authorities, defined as “the power to do anything that individuals generally may do” and which
expressly includes the power to do something for the benefit of the authority, its area or persons
resident or present in its area.

4.2

The Council has the power, by virtue of section 123, Local Government Act 1972, to dispose of
land held by it in any manner it wishes. However this power is conditional and does not empower
the Council to dispose of land for consideration less than the best that can reasonably be obtained,
save by a lease of less than seven years, except with the consent of the Secretary of State.

4.3

The ODPM in its circular 06/2003 and the annex thereto (The General Disposal Consent (England)
2003) which granted a general consent for any disposal of non-HRA land in specified
circumstances, i.e.: where the difference between the unrestricted value of the land to be disposed
of and the consideration for the disposal does not exceed £2 million; and the local authority
considers that the purpose for which the land is to be disposed is likely to contribute to the
achievement of the promotion or improvement of the economic, social or environmental well-being
of all or part of its area, or of all or any persons resident or present in the area.

4.4

The circular makes it clear that, when exercising these powers to dispose of land at an undervalue,
members must be satisfied that the circumstances warrant such action and be aware of the need
to fulfil their fiduciary duty in a way which is accountable to the local community. In addition, the
authority is advised to ensure that it complies with normal and prudent commercial practices,
including obtaining the view of a professionally qualified valuer as to the likely amount of the
undervalue. The circular also points out that all disposals need to comply with the European
Commission’s State aid rules:
“When disposing of land at less than the best consideration authorities are providing a subsidy to
the owner, developer and/or the occupier of the land and property, depending on the nature of the
development. Where this occurs authorities must ensure that the nature and amount of subsidy
complies with the State aid rules, particularly if there is no element of competition in the sale
process. Failure to comply with the rules means that the aid is unlawful, and may result in the
benefit being recovered with interest from the recipient.”

4.5

Since 1 January 2021 the UK has followed the commitments on subsidy control set out in its Free
Trade Agreements (FTAs) with the EU and other countries and the World Trade Organisation
(WTO) rules on subsidies, as well as the relevant provisions relating to Northern Ireland contained
in Article 10 of the Withdrawal Agreement with the EU. The Department for Business, Energy and
Industrial Strategy have launched a consultation to seek views on the best way to design a subsidy
control system that works for the UK economy, in the interim, granting authorities and recipients
are still required to comply with their obligations on subsidy control despite a new regime not having
been implemented as yet. These controls replace the State Aid Rules the UK was subject to whilst
a member of the EU. The key characteristics of a subsidy are:
It must constitute a financial contribution provided by a ‘public authority’. The financial
contribution could be a grant, loan or loan guarantee or other form of financial assistance, such
as forgoing of revenue that is otherwise due.
ii. The award of the subsidy must confer a benefit on persons supplying goods or services in the
course of a business, which would not be available under commercial terms.
iii. The subsidy must be specific which means it benefits a particular enterprise, or enterprises in
a particular sector, industry, or region.
iv. It has, or could have, a harmful or distortive effect on trade or investment within the UK or
internationally.
i.

8

Page 55
4.6

Whilst the terminology is different the proposition behind the subsidy control regime is very closely
aligned with the former State Aid regime with similar exemptions i.e. akin to the de minimis
provision under the EU state aid rules, the EU-UK Trade and Co-operation Agreement only applies
to subsidies over the value of 325,000 special drawing rights (approximately £350,000) given to a
single beneficiary over a three-year period; this threshold is set higher, at 750,000 special drawing
rights, for services of public economic interest

4.7

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 sets out the public sector equality duty, i.e. that all public
bodies are under an obligation to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination,
advancing equality and fostering good relations in the contexts of age, disability, gender
reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, marriage and civil partnership, race, religion or belief, sex
and sexual orientation.

4.8

Section 149 (1)(b) of the Act states that: a public authority must, in the exercise of its functions,
have due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. Part of the duty to have “due
regard” where there is disproportionate impact will be to take steps to mitigate the impact and the
Council must demonstrate that this has been done, and/or justify the decision, on the basis that it
is a proportionate means of achieving a legitimate aim. Accordingly, there is an expectation that a
decision maker will explore other means which have less of a disproportionate impact. Compliance
with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more favourably than others; but
this does not permit conduct that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act.

4.9

When considering whether to adopt the recommendations of this report, the decision maker will be
exercising discretion within the constraints of the duties referred to above and should therefore
have in mind the following principles of administrative law:




the decision must be within the Council’s powers;
all relevant information and consideration, including the Council’s fiduciary duty to the
Council tax payer, must be taken into account; and,
all irrelevant considerations, including unauthorised purposes, must be
ignored.

4.10

The Council’s constitution currently delegates to the Head of Valuation and Strategic Property
Services the authority to dispose of properties to occupant voluntary sector organisations for the
best consideration that can reasonably be obtained.

4.11

This proposed key decision was entered in the Forward Plan on 23 April 2021 and the necessary
28 clear days’ notice has been given. The report will be published for five clear days before the
decision is considered by Cabinet. Should it be approved and following the publication of the
Cabinet minutes, a further period of five clear days, the call-in period, must then elapse before the
decision becomes effective. If the decision is called-in during this period, it cannot be enacted until
the call-in has been considered and resolved

5.
5.1

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
The foundation of these proposals was developed through co-production in partnership with the
public sector and VCS (including the VCS Property Group which is a sub-group of the Lambeth
VCS Partnership Group), to enable the Council to improve the partnership between the
Council/public sector and the VCS. Key goals were to develop a co-ordinated approach to the
provision of a portfolio of affordable, fit for purpose premises across the borough to enable VCS
occupiers to work sustainably with partners to maximise benefits for Lambeth residents, including
improved wellbeing, engagement, and community cohesion.

9

Page 56
5.2

Between February and April 2021, the Council offered all VCS tenants and occupiers directly
impacted by this strategy early engagement opportunities and held virtual pre-consultation
meetings with a majority. We extended this consultation with webinars and presentation to the
wider VCS sector within Lambeth, including members from the Funders Forum, and Lambeth
Community Hubs. We consulted with the VCS more widely through communications to the sector
though Integrate CIC, an agency funded by Lambeth Council to support Lambeth’s Voluntary and
Community Sector. We opened the consultation to the wider public so that any member of the
public could access and comment on the proposals

5.3

In developing the strategy and the public consultation, we had due regard to the need to achieve
goals which eliminate unlawful discrimination; advance equality of opportunity and foster good
relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t. This is
supported by published Charity Commission information, as well as existing corporate data
regarding the VCS sector and have established that a majority of the VCS tenants and/or partner
organisations in this portfolio are inclusive and deliver a range of services to a wider group of
residents who share the 'protected characteristics' as described by the Equality Act 2010; and are
therefore not confined to a particular type of protected characteristic.

5.4

We wrote to all tenants and occupiers within this portfolio between 26 February and 4 March 2021
to inform them that we were about to commence consultation on a new VCS Asset Strategy, and
that they had been identified as an organisation that would be directly impacted by the proposals.
In this initial email, we offered each occupier the opportunity to attend a virtual meeting for this
purpose with as many trustees, board members of leadership team as would like to join to hear
and understand the proposed strategy being consulted upon.

5.5

Following positive responses from over 65% of the occupiers, we undertook and delivered a series
of presentations, webinar and telephone engagements, presenting the draft strategy to the different
stakeholders and their networks on the draft proposals, the impact (positive and negative) on their
occupation and use of Council-owned property, and the next steps.

5.6

We wrote to all the stakeholders on 15 March 2021 to let them know that the consultation was live,
and how to respond. The on-line consultation ran for a period of six weeks, from 15 March to 25
April 2021.The Council’s partner, Integrate CIC, undertook two Mailchimp mailings to the sector
on; 15 March 2021 to 2,332 recipients, and on 20 April 2021 to 2,496 recipients. They also sent
out messages across their social media accounts and discussed (and continue to discuss) the
consultation in their day-to-day engagement. The web was used to promote the consultation. Over
180 responses were received, 148 online and the rest through direct email communication and
verbal feedback.

5.7

Overall, the respondents suggested a wide range of options by which the overall strategy could be
improved and delivered to ensure more transparency, consistency and fairness. Further analysis
is presented in the post consultation report. (Appendix 4)

5.8

This strategy has been updated to address key concerns. In relation to rent increases the time to
transition to full rent has been increased and the letting policy is more flexible over lease length
where due diligence indicates that this is appropriate. The feedback from the consultation in
relation to the panel and the liaison officer will be incorporated into their respective roles.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The main risks that impede on the successful delivery of this procurement and contract are:

Table 1 – Risk Register

10

Page 57
Item
Risk
1
Some groups do not
engage with the process
resulting in delays to
agreeing new leases and
carrying out works.

2

3

4

5

6

7

Likelihood
2

Impact
4

Unable
to
identify
sufficient
suitable
alternative
accommodation
for
decant during period of
works.
The social value benefits
of maintaining assets and
making them available to
organisations are not
delivered.

2

4

2

4

Cost
escalation
in
maintenance & repairs
programme.
The
SV
mechanism
results in some groups
paying a higher rent
resulting in an inability to
pay for occupation of the
premises.
Delays in rollout of
maintenance & repairs
programme
causes
uncertainty for groups
when planning service
delivery and preparing
business cases.
Difficulty in arranging
access to carry out works.

3

2

3

2

3

2

6

Implement a well-defined project
management framework to ensure
that any delays to published
programme are anticipated and
mitigated in a timely manner to
minimise holdups.

3

2

6

Ensure that the communications
and
engagement
plan
is
implemented effectively to ensure
VCS organisations have a good
understanding of the policy and its
benefits.

Key
Likelihood
Impact

Very Likely
Major

4
8

Likely
Serious

3
4

Score
Control Measures
8
The majority of groups have
engaged with the Council through
the
consultation
process.
Engagement with the sector will
continue and
where available, legal protocols
under existing lease agreements
will be utilised to support
cooperation
8
To hold vacant premises on the
portfolio for the purpose of decant
and to work closely with partners
and organisations to match
location and timing requirements
as closely as possible.
8
Deliver a social value mechanism
to reflect the value of the services
delivered by the organisations.
Implement a monitoring system to
ensure that outputs continue to
align with the Council’s objectives
and reflect the needs of service
users.
6
Ensure that procurement options
achieve value for money in terms
of balancing time, cost and quality.
6
Where the process for agreeing
rent subsidies results in a higher
rent the council will allow a 6 years
stepped rent to transition to the
new rent

Unlikely
Significant

2
2

Very Unlikely
Minor

1
1
11

Page 58

7.
7.1

8.
8.1

9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
An Equalities Impact Assessment (Appendix 5) has been completed, and it is considered that the
approval of the recommendations within this report, the VCS Asset Strategy together with the
proposed mitigation measures will promote fairness, transparency, and equality of opportunity. This
should have an overall positive impact on groups with protected characteristics and will result in
improved socio-economic benefits. The findings were presented before the Council’s Equalities
Impact Panel on 14 September 2021.
COMMUNITY SAFETY
This strategy redefines the relationship between the Council and VCS organisations occupying
property in this portfolio. As custodians of Council assets for the benefit of the residents of the
Borough and with a strengthened expectation of premises which are fully utilised and shared with
wider VCS organisations, this strategy will strengthen the relationship between the Council and the
VCS and enable earlier identification of issues that impact community, including community safety.
ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental
The adoption of this strategy will enable the development of a programme of investment in the
portfolio. Enhancing the energy efficiency of the premises will be incorporated into the work
programme.
Health
While no direct impact, many of the occupying organisations provide support to vulnerable
residents and with their community focus improve the Wellbeing of Lambeth’s residents.
Corporate Parenting
None
Staffing and accommodation
The funding of a new VCS Asset Liaison Officer, on a cost neutral basis, is envisaged to strengthen
the relationship between the Council and the VCS Tenants.

10.

Responsible Procurement
The works to the premises will be subject to separate procurement reports

11.

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
Activity

Proposed Date

Date published on Forward Plan

23 April 2021

Cabinet

4 October 2021

Minutes published

8 October 2021

End of Call-In Period

15 October 2021

12

Page 59
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name and Position/Title
Cllr Donatus Anyanwu
Cllr Andy Wilson
Fiona McDermott,
Strategic Director
Paul Bates, Director
Christina Thompson,
Director
Greg Carson, Legal
Services
Maria Burton, Democratic
Services

Date Sent

Date
Received

07.09.21

07.09.21

07.09.21

10.09.21

Finance and Investment

03.09.21

03.09.21

Strategy and Communications

03.09.21

03.09.21

Finance and Property

02.09.21

02.09.21

3.1 – 3.5

Legal and Governance

06.09.21

06.09.21

4.1 – 4.10

Legal and Governance

03.09.21

06.09.21

4.11

Lambeth Directorate
Cabinet Member for Voluntary
Sector & Leisure
Cabinet Member for Finance
and Performance

Comments in
paragraph:

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons

Regular CMB briefings up to 09.09.21
22.09.21
22.09.21
No
Yes
23.04.21
3. Meets community impact test.

Background information

Decision - Voluntary and Community Sector
Strategy | Lambeth Council

Appendices

Appendix 1 – VCS Asset Strategy Tenants
Appendix 2 – VCS Letting Policy
Appendix 3 – Social Value Self Evaluation Tool
Appendix 4 – Post Consultation Report
Appendix 5 - Equality Impact Assessment Report,

13

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 61

Appendix 1

VCS Property

VCS Tenant

Baylis Road 14, LONDON, SE1 7AA

Waterloo Action Centre

Belmont Road, site R/O Clapham Manor Primary School,
London SW4 0BZ

Vacant

Brixton Road, 143 - 145, LONDON, SW9 6LZ

Former BRYC

Cedar Tree Grove - Premises, Knights Hill, LONDON,
SE27 0QD

Lambeth Horticultural Society

Clapham Manor Street 161-167, LONDON, SW4 6DB

WEISA / WASP

Clapham Common Northside 1, LONDON, SW4 0QW

Omnibus

Coldharbour Lane 297-299, LONDON, SW9

Brixton Domino Social Club

Courland Grove 56b, LONDON, SW8 2PU

Lambeth Community of Refugees from Vietnam

Enterprise Unit 1, Overton Road, London SW9 7JR

Vacant

Enterprise Unit 2, Overton Road, London SW9 7JR

Vacant

Enterprise Unit 3, Overton Road, London SW9 7JR

Commercial Tenant until vacated

Enterprise Unit 5, Overton Road, London SW9 7JR

Vacant

Enterprise Unit 6, Overton Road, London SW9 7JR

Sangayi

Enterprise Unit 7, Overton Road, London SW9 7JR

Anointed Ministry International

Enterprise Unit 8, Overton Road, London, SW9 7JR

Vacant

Page 62

Fairfax House, Unit 1&2 Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

Emmaus

Fairfax House, Unit 3 Overton Road, LONDON, SW9 7JR

Elijah Kerr, Brixton Recording Studio

Fairfax House - Unit 4, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

Brixton Wings

Fairfax House - Unit 5, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

Abdul Azeez Williams (Education & Outreach)

Fairfax House - Unit B, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

Angel Delight

Frazier Street, Greet House - Barley Mow Clinic,
LONDON, SE1

Waterloo Community Counselling Service

Holles House - Unit 2, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

Home Start Lambeth

Kennington Lane 204, LONDON, SE11 5DL

Your Story

Kennington Park - Prince Consort Lodge, LONDON,
SE11

Trees for Cities

Kennington Park Road, Adjacent to Parks Depot,
LONDON, SE11

Bee Urban

Kennington Rd The Shop, Worcester Hse, LONDON,
SE11 6LS

Latino Help Centre / CIC Shop

Laburnum Court, First Floor, Barstow Crescent, 30
Palace Court, LONDON, SW2 3NS

Lifelong Family Link

Millbrook Road, land adjacent to 51, London, SW9

Ebony Horse Club

Oakden Street, Eastern Part of Shelly School, London
SE11 4UG

Bright Education

Othello Close, 1, First Floor, LONDON, SE11 4RE

Vacant

Othello Close, 1, Ground Floor, LONDON, SE11 4RE

Portuguese Community Centre

Paulet Road, 2 - 40, London, SE5 9HY

The Remakery

Saltoun Rd, 2b, Brixton, London SW2 1EP

Vida Walsh/Age UK

Shrubbery Road 13, LONDON, SW16

Asha

South Lambeth Road 157, Unit 1, LONDON, SW9

Stockwell Partnership

Stockwell Rd 13/15, Rear building, LONDON, SW9 9AU

LAMSOM

Page 63

Stockwell Rd 13/15, Room 2, Ground Flr, LONDON, SW9
9AU

Vacant

Stockwell Rd 13/15, Rooms 10,11, 12 & 13, LONDON,
SW9 9AU

Community of Tigrayan Refugees

Stockwell Rd 13-15, Rooms 3, 4, 5, 6, 8 & 9, LONDON,
SW9 9AU

Eritrean Saho Cultural Association

Stockwell Rd 13/15, Room 7, LONDON, SW9 9AU

Lambeth Public Transport Group

Union Road 110, Springfield Community & Medical
Centre, First Floor, London SW8 2SH

Code 7

Union Road 110, Springfield Community & Medical
Centre, Club Rooms 1&2, First Floor, London SW8 2SH

Vacant

Warwick House, Unit 4, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

Football Beyond Borders

Warwick House, Unit 5, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

Al-Shaada Mission

Warwick House, Unit 6 Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

Football Beyond Borders

Warwick House, Unit 7, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

CHIPS (Christian International Peace Service)

Warwick House, Unit 8, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

IRMO/INDO

Warwick House, Unit 9, Overton Road, LONDON, SW9
7JR

IRMO/INDO

33 Weir Road, Balham, LONDON, SW12

Weir Link Children's Centre

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 2

Voluntary and Community Sector Lettings Policy
Introduction
The Council’s VCS tenants are custodians of Council assets for the benefit of the residents of the Borough. As part of the Council’s VCS
Strategy the Council wants the impact of all assets under VCS management to be maximised; improving wellbeing, engagement and
community cohesion.
Central to this policy is the delivery of a range of affordable property across the borough made available to the Voluntary Community Sector.
In most cases the property will be managed by a lead VCS tenant with responsibility for sharing premises with smaller and new VCS
groups, encouraging creative use of underutilised accommodation and maximising activity and operating hours of these subsidised
community spaces. The review of the social impact gained from these properties will be underpinned by a new Social Value Process.

To achieve these goals, the policy sets out the responsibilities for tenant (VCS organisations) and landlord (the Council) under the
‘Community Lease’ terms and conditions. It includes, amongst other things, consistent arrangements for lease length, rent charges, rent
payments, repairs and maintenance, insurance and service charges. All properties moving to these new Community Lease terms will be
refurbished by the Council. The cost of refurbishment will not be recharged to the tenants.
Purpose and Benefits of the Policy






To ensure that buildings used by VCS organisations are fully utilised addressing
the borough’s priorities, and meeting the needs of local people.
To ensure the subsidised buildings are fit for purpose and in good repair.
To put in place a relationship between the Council and VCS organisations which is fair, consistent, reasonable and
demonstrates clearly the level of support given by the Council to VCS organisations.
To ensure that Council subsidised buildings are used effectively, and ensure they are open to a
wide range of groups thereby ensuring they provide good use of resources.
A programme of works to bring the premises back into repair will be funded by the Council where the ‘Community Lease’ terms are
taken up.

Page 65

Alongside this drive to maximise the social impact from these properties the policy is designed to address the ongoing need for the operation
of Health and Safety compliant premises which are well managed and maintained.

Who does the policy apply to?
The policy applies to voluntary and community sector organisations either occupying or seeking premises within the Council’s VCS portfolio
on the basis of the ‘Community Lease’ terms and conditions.
For the purposes of this policy, voluntary and community sector organisations are defined as: Registered charities, Charitable Incorporated
Organisations as well as other not-for-profit organisations, associations, self-help groups and community groups.
VCS organisations that currently hold tenancies which are protected by Part 2 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1954, will be asked
to surrender them, and take out a new lease, if they wish to take advantage of the terms set out in this VCS policy.
VCS organisations who are unwilling to do so should be able to remain in their premises, but will be regarded as commercial tenants,
liable to pay market rents (in the context of this policy ‘market rent’ means the rent appropriate for the property in it’s natural alterative use
i.e. shop, office, educational establishment etc) and be responsible for the repairing liabilities set out in their leases.
PROPOSALS FOR ALL NEW COMMUNITY LEASES GRANTED
Selection criteria will be used to make decisions on how to allocate Community Leases to the voluntary
and community sector.
To apply for a Community Lease, VCS organisations will need to do the following:- Present a business case for why the building or land is needed
- Submit their annual business or development plan (including the most recent set of accounts)
demonstrating: financial viability; risk analysis and management; sound governance and management
arrangements and a good track record of managing projects and/or services and sharing space.
- Demonstrate how well their services meet the selection criteria including;
 how well their services meet the aims of the Borough Plan;
 how their services benefit service users who live, work, study or are connected to the borough.
 how their services involve users who broadly represent the diversity of people living in the
borough;
 how their services reach and support the diverse needs of residents who find it difficult to
access services.
 how well their services are delivered in partnerships with other organisations.

Page 66

MAIN HEADS OF
TERMS
Eligibility Criteria for
applications for a
‘Community Lease’

The property will be assessed and scored in accordance with the criteria agreed by the VCS Panel,
following the approved application and allocation process.
VCS organisations will be encouraged to develop links with other organisations in the furtherance of
the above goals and in the spirit of improving services.
Type of Agreement
Application and
allocations process

Community Lease
The Council will manage a waiting list for subsidised VCS accommodation.
When premises become available the Council will call for a proposal for the premises, setting out clearly
the selection criteria, as agreed by the panel, and information to be submitted in the application process.
Officers from the Council’s Agents, Valuation and Strategic Assets team, Strategy and Partnerships team,
and relevant service area will assess the applications against the selection criteria, shortlist the applicants,
interview and offer the premises.

It will not be possible for the Council to allocate property on Community Lease terms to all VCS applicants
meeting the selection criteria. Officers will provide feedback to unsuccessful applicants who have not
been able to secure a property following selection. Information on which VCS organisations are granted
a Community Lease will be publicly available on the Council’s website.
Relocation

In order to develop a VCS estate that is fully utilised and in good repair and order, it may be necessary
from time to time to relocate some VCS organisations to other premises. VCS organisations will be asked
to work constructively with the Council to ensure plans for relocation are undertaken effectively
and to mutual benefit.
Relocations of this nature may well require the VCS organisation concerned to operate in multiple
occupation with other organisations at their new venue.

Social Value Process

Each organisation will provide an annual impact report through a self-assessment process. This will
include information on the building and the services provided, condition of the building, repairs,
maintenance and compliance schedules, organisational changes, and any other relevant information.

Page 67

Where providing good services and subject to due diligence, priority may be given to existing tenants
required to relocate to support other Council priorities.

Once agreed this information will be made publicly available.
Renewal

The Council will contact organisations at least three months before their lease is due to expire.
Organisations seeking to renew their lease will be re-assessed against the eligibility criteria. Decisions
on renewal will also be informed by the information arising from the annual reviews referred to above.

Lease Length

Leases will be granted for a period of up to 10 years, and will be granted outside of the 1954
Landlord & Tenant Act. Development break clauses will be incorporated at sites where the Council needs
to retain the option to develop the premises during the lease term.
Applications for grant funding to invest in these properties is not envisaged. Where organisations are
considering applications to external grant funders for capital works, these aspirations and plans need to
be developed in partnership with the Council.

Rent Level

All VCS organisations granted a community lease will be eligible for the Council’s fixed VCS rental level
in accordance with the following rent matrix.
Baseline VCS Rent

Location Reduction
for poorer public transport access

Quantum Reduction
 1000sq ft
£5.75 psf

£4.31 psf

£4.89 psf

£3.45 psf

The VCS rental level is not linked to market rent for an individual property. No account is taken of higher
property values in the North of the borough or lower in the South. There will be no rent reviews during the
transition period to allow for implementation of the policy. The rents charged under this policy will be
reviewed at the end of the transition period, and then four yearly thereafter.

Page 68

Some organisations may choose not to take a community lease. In this case they could be offered a full
repairing and insuring lease at market rent.

The Rental Subsidy on the portfolio will be published on the Council’s website. At this time the subsidy is
estimated at close to £900,000 per annum (pre-Covid valuations).
Collection of tenant rent is vital to ensure the success of this policy and to reinvest in the quality of the
properties.
Failure to pay rent will jeopardise the right to occupy the building. The Council has a strict collection
policy and provision for rent collections within this portfolio will include:

Repairs and
Maintenance

In relation to 10 year leases:
The Landlord (the Council)
Will bear the cost and responsibilities for repairs to the exterior, roof and structure of the building,
with exception of the windows and doors to render the property suitable as a basic shell of
accommodation to operate from.
The Tenant (VCS organisation)

Page 69

1. Rent being paid monthly by direct debit
2. Within 10 days of the direct debit failing a meeting will be held with the organisation, the
Council’s agents Sanderson Weatherall and the Community Assets Liaison Officer to ascertain
the exact problem.
3. Reasonable payment arrangements will be considered where there is a clear evidenced shortterm problem.
4. No possession proceedings will commence unless all other avenues to resolve rent arrears have
been explored.
5. Monthly meetings will take place to review rent collection of VCS tenants. Participants will be the
Council’s agent, the Community Assets officer and VCS Strategy and Comms officer.
6. The Panel will consider disputes and review any case prior to undertaking legal action
7. Possession proceedings will take place to ensure a fair opportunity for VCS tenants waiting for
premises.

Will bear the cost and responsibilities for all fitting out, ICT infrastructure internal decoration and
internal repairs etc required in order to carry out their service. Organisations are expected to act
as good tenants by looking after the building in line with the tenant obligations that will form part of
the lease granted. This will include statutory inspections and testing.
A Tenant Pack will be issued at the start of the lease outlining the tenant’s responsibilities.
Due consideration to other users and neighbours must be shown at all times and tenants will be
expected to notify the Council at the earliest possible stage if there are any problems with the building
or the VCS organisation’s ability to fulfil its obligations as set out in the lease.

Some repairs works will only be possible if the tenant is relocated for the duration of the works. In such
cases, the tenant will work constructively with the Council to agree arrangements for temporary decanting
as required.
Health and Safety

Overall responsibility for Health and Safety in the management and operation of premises occupied by
VCS organisations will rest with the organisations themselves, as only they know the details of the way
in which their premises are operated on a day-to-day basis. As premises managers, they will have a
duty of care both to their staff and volunteers as well as members of the public who visit or rent part of
the buildings on a regular or occasional basis.
In this regard, the organisation will be required to prepare and publish a Health and Safety Policy
setting out the arrangements for the management and operation of the building, and have proper
regard to the way the building is used. For instance, arrangements for office environments will be
different from areas used for children, and different again from space used by artists where
inflammable fluids may be present.
In all cases the policy will need to have proper regard to statutory requirements for tests and

Page 70

The Repair Works
The Council will publish the programme for undertaking the initial programme of major repairs, so all
organisations on the Community Lease terms will be clear about when the works will be undertaken to
the buildings they occupy. Health and Safety criteria will be the principal factor in determining the
programme sequence.

inspections, and other statutory responsibilities, including the testing of portable appliances and the
COSHH regulations.
All VCS organisations are required to publish and display a copy of their Health and Safety Policy, as
approved by their management committees.
Insurance

The Council will be responsible for insuring the fabric of the building and will recharge the premium to the
Tenant.
The Tenant will be responsible for all other insurances such as public liability, employer’s
liability, contents and any other appropriate insurances.
It will be the VCS organisations responsibility to apply for business rates relief, where appropriate.

Multi-occupancy
Buildings and SubLetting

Leases will not be assignable or capable of being sub-let. However, each VCS tenant will be encouraged
to share their space with other VCS groups by way of a licence, providing the permission of the Landlord
is obtained and that the group is able to demonstrate outcomes that will benefit the wider community. The
financial arrangement can be determined between the groups.
If the VCS groups are in a building that is too big for them, then they should approach the Council in the
first instance about changing the extent of the area they occupy or offering accommodation to other VCS
organisations on the waiting list; the Council keeps a waiting list of VCS groups looking for space and will
always welcome the opportunity to encourage co-sharing.

Service Charges

Where leases are for part only of premises which are maintained and managed by the Council the
tenant will be required to contribute a fair proportion of all expenses, including VAT where charged, of
cleaning, lighting, repairing, heating and maintaining any part of the building, estate or other larger
property of which the premises form part, and any other works deemed necessary by the Landlord.

Asset Management Where allegations of a breach arise, the default approach will be to engage with the VSC Tenant in
Approach
order to investigate, explore options and set agreed targets and actions to improve performance, and
arrange for any breaches to be remedied in a timely fashion.

Page 71

Business Rates

Officers will deal with and resolve most breaches at an early stage, however, in some exceptional
cases, some serious breaches may require early involvement of the Panel to diffuse any possible ill
feeling and tensions, and if necessary, further escalatory action such as Forfeitures and/or Court Action
to get back possession or close down the premises. This action will be taken as very last resort, and in
consultation with the relevant stakeholders, and on the assumption that all forms of dispute resolution
have been explored without success.
Decreasing control, flexibility, and chance of a win-win outcome
Informal Dispute Resolution Process

Facilitation

Mediation

Fact
Finding

Arbitration

Litigation

Increasing coercion, hostility, costs, and chance of a win-lose outcome

Page 72

Training

Formal Process

Page 73
Appendix 3

London Borough of Lambeth
Lambeth Council In consultation with the VCS is introducing a new VCS Asset
Strategy. This is an important element of the overarching VCS Strategy (to be inserted once
revised). The VCS Asset Strategy aims to improve the utilisation and management of the of
VCS Property Portfolio. This includes the requirement for groups to demonstrate the social
value they bring to Lambeth communities, by contributing to the delivery of the Future
Lambeth Borough Plan, and the VCS Strategy key aims.
This tool was developed and agreed in partnership. The information will enable the Council
to better evaluate social value delivered through services and activities across the VCS
Portfolio. Please note that when benchmarked against Charity Commission returns, the level
of detail in the Social Value Self Evaluation Form (SVSEF) exceeds that required by the
Commission
As part of the changes under the new VCS Asset Strategy, we require all our tenants to
complete a SVSEF, an annual return, submitted via the on-line portal hosted on Lambeth’s
website site (link to be added). The SVSEF will enable us to increase visibility, accountability
and transparency relating to the use of Lambeth’s VCS Property Portfolio. VCS groups will
also be required to publish contact details, organisation aims, service provision and
operation hours, and other useful additional information.
The content of the form was coproduced with the VCS (including the VCS Property Group
which is a sub group of the Lambeth VCS Partnership Group). It should be noted the
attached Social Value Self Evaluation Form sits in word form at present but will be developed
into an online form in January 2021 (support from the Web team).

Social Value Self Reporting Form
Annual Return 20XX
This form is to be completed and returned by XX/XX/20XX:
To:
Lambeth Council
Town Hall
Brixton Hill SW2
This self-evaluation form is designed to evaluate how your organisation sits within the
overarching borough plan and the implementation of the Lambeth Voluntary and Community
Sector Strategy, of which assets is one integral strand.
The Borough Plan and its desired goals can be found here:
https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/better-fairer-lambeth/lambeth-borough-plan

101440 borough
plan summary proof5.pdf
F:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\7\AI00051781\$5fhjofnm.docx

1

Page 74
Appendix 3
Lambeth Council’s draft Voluntary and Community Strategy can be found here:

VCS Strategy

Your organisation:
1.1

Full name of organisation, and any AKAs:

1.2

Address of organisation:

1.3

Legal status: (please including Charity Registration number if applicable)

1.4

Name of lead contact person & position in organisation:

1.5

Names and roles of the Board of Trustees:

1.6

Telephone Number (organisation):

1.7

E-mail Address:

1.8

Web address of organisation:

1.9

Brief description of nature of provision [insert drop down menu?]

1.10

Names of wards your organisation’s services cover (if all, please state ‘All’):

Section 2:
2.1

If you are a membership organisation, please provide a breakdown of the
organisations currently using your services (e.g. by size, legal status, primary
purpose/type of service provided etc):

2.2

Please detail how many organisations are currently members of your VCS
organisation?

2.3

Please detail your hours of operation (days of the week, hours of operation in the
day)

2.4
2.5

If you share your space with other groups, please detail:
The names of the groups
Through what arrangements you share your space (e.g. free/ charged, and if so,
how much)
Please detail the below population groups identified by the 2010 Equality
Act and Lambeth’s additional protected characteristics who use your
services: http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/section/4
Protected characteristic

F:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\7\AI00051781\$5fhjofnm.docx

Number of beneficiaries/service users
2

Page 75
Appendix 3
Disability
Gender reassignment
Man
Woman
BAME
LGBTQ+
Low socioeconomic status
Speaking English as an additional
language
Latin American or LatinX
Portuguese
Total
2.6

We encourage organisations to work in partnership, create networks, relationships
and trust with other VCS groups in the borough. Please detail how you work with other
VCS organisations in the borough.

2.6.1 The Borough Plan aims to make Lambeth the best borough it can be for our
residents and partners. Please list any partnerships, networks or consortiums you
are involved with.

F:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\7\AI00051781\$5fhjofnm.docx

3

Page 76
Appendix 3

Section 3:
3.1

What targets did your organisation set for 2020-2021?

3.1

Did the organisation achieve those targets and if not what are the obstacles
preventing this?

3.2

Were there any unintended benefits?

3.2

How have you consulted with service users in the designing of our services within
the last 12-24 months?

Section 4:
4.1

How do you monitor your performance internally and where do you publish this?
You will be required to share this with us and make it public on your website as part
of your obligation of occupying a Lambeth property.

Section 5:
5.1

Do you have the following documents?
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)
m)
n)

Equal Opportunities Policy
()
Constitution or Rules/MoU
()
Contract of Employment
()
Job Descriptions of staff
()
Disciplinary and Grievance Procedures ( )
Users’ Complaints Procedure
()
Client Confidentiality Policy
()
Volunteer Policy
()
User Satisfaction Survey
()
Health and Safety Policy
()
Safeguarding Policy
()
Public Liability Insurance
()
Buildings Insurance
()
Whistleblowing Policy
()

Please detail any others not listed here:
5.2

What mechanisms are in place to ensure that these are embedded into practices
and that staff are fully aware of them? I.e. training cycles

Borough Plan:
Please refer to page one of this document to see the Borough Plan and its 20 goals to
make Lambeth the best it can be. In light of this document, please detail if, and how your
organisation contributes to the relevant Lambeth’s Borough Plan goals, listed below:

F:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\7\AI00051781\$5fhjofnm.docx

4

Page 77
Appendix 3
6.1

Growth – enabling growth and development in the borough
1. Do you pay your employees the London Living Wage?
2. Do you support individuals to progress into employment which pays the London
Living Wage?
3. Do you support individuals to access affordable housing?
4. Do you support individuals to access improved transport in the borough?

Please tell us about any other aspects of your work which you think relates to the goal of
‘growth’:
6.2
Resilience – ensuring that the benefits of growth increase community
resilience
1. Does your organisation work with children/families to ensure they have the best
start in life?
2. Do you work with young people to improve their educational outcomes?
3. Do you work with adults to improve their skills in the economy?
4. Does your organisation contribute to efforts to reduce Serious Youth Violence in the
borough?
5. Does your building allow communities to be healthier and more resilient?
Please tell us about any other aspects of your work which you think relates to the goal of
‘resilience’:
6.3

Independence – reform the way we commission and deliver services with our
partners to provide and promote care and independence
1. Does your organisation support children with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) to lead fulfilling lives?
2. Do you work with vulnerable children and families in Lambeth to ensure they benefit
from opportunities?
3. Do you work to improve the mental health of those living in the borough?
4. Do you support people to live longer and healthier lives?

5. Do you support older/disabled/vulnerable people in Lambeth to live healthy
independent lives?
F:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\7\AI00051781\$5fhjofnm.docx

5

Page 78
Appendix 3
Place – making Lambeth a place where people want to live, work and invest

6.4

1. Do you contribute to making town centres and neighbourhoods feel safe and
welcoming?
2. Do you contribute to maintaining attractive neighbourhoods?
3. Do you contribute to the maintaining of Lambeth’s parks and green spaces to
promote community activity?
4. Do you have a strategy to reduce your carbon emissions and reduce waste?

Finance:
Please attach the following to this self-reporting document:
-

A copy of your most recent audited accounts

7.1
Please list all current cheque signatories (we would encourage having at least
three):

Name

Position

People:
7.2
1):

Please give details of staff members (for the question on ethnicity refer to Appendix

Name

7.2

Position

Please give details of Management Committee/Board of Trustees members (for the
question on ethnicity refer to Appendix 1):

Name

F:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\7\AI00051781\$5fhjofnm.docx

Position

6

Page 79
Appendix 3

Number of volunteers:
Please use this space to tell us anything else you wish for us to know:

8.3

We hereby certify that the information recorded in this form is true and accurate.
a)

Name of person completing this return:
Office held:
Signature:

b)

Date:

Name of Management Committee member:
Office held:
Signature:

Date:

BEFORE POSTING PLEASE CHECK THAT ALL THE QUESTIONS HAVE
BEEN FULLY ANSWERED AND THE FORM IS SIGNED

F:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\7\AI00051781\$5fhjofnm.docx

7

Page 80
Appendix 3

Appendix 1
Ethnic Classifications

White


English / Welsh / Scottish / Northern Irish / British



Irish



Gypsy or Irish Traveller



Any other White background



Portuguese

Mixed / Multiple ethnic groups


White and Black Caribbean



White and Black African



White and Asian



Any other Mixed / Multiple ethnic background

Asian / Asian British


Indian



Pakistani



Bangladeshi



Chinese



Any other Asian background

Black / African / Caribbean / Black British


African



Caribbean



Any other Black / African / Caribbean background

Other ethnic group


Arab



Any other ethnic group

F:\Moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\8\7\AI00051781\$5fhjofnm.docx

8

Page 81

Consultation on
The Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy

Consultation Report
10 September 2021

Contents

Page 82

1

Introduction

1.1
1.2

2

Background
Our proposals

The consultation

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.4.1
2.4.2
2.4.3
2.4.4

3

Consultation objectives
Who we consulted
When we consulted
How we consulted
Press activity
Digital activity
Print activity
Event activity

Responses from members of the public

3.1
Summary of results
3.1.1 Overall VCS Asset Strategy
3.1.2 Plans to implement Social Value Mechanism
3.1.3 Plans to implement a VCS Tenant Liaison Officer
3.1.4 Plans to implement VCS Property Panel
3.1.5 Plans for a consistent subsidised rent
3.1.6 Proposed Lease terms and length

3.2

Summary of post code analysis and demographics

4

Responses from statutory bodies and other stakeholders

5

What happens next

Appendices
Appendix A – Consultation Communications
Appendix B - Consultation distribution area
Appendix C – List of stakeholders consulted
Appendix D - Consultation Questionnaire

2|Page

Page 83

1. Introduction
1.1 Background
There is a significant range of Council owned properties across the borough which are
occupied by Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) groups covering a wide variety
of organisations and partners. The basis of these occupations has evolved over time
with some paying rent, some paying no rent and others paying reduced rents. This has
led to a position where there is little transparency or consistency in the management
of the portfolio; responsibility for repairs and maintenance is not always clear and there
is a lack of investment in the buildings which has, in some cases, lead to poor
standards of Health & Safety with the associated risk to building users and reputational
risks for the Council.
This proposal addresses the core VCS portfolio of approximately 49 properties totalling
approximately 85,000 sq. ft. of accommodation. The proposal seeks to adopt a letting
policy which will support a sustainable model for funding future repairs to premises
whilst also encouraging well utilised spaces delivering services and activities aligned
with the objectives of the Borough Plan.
The letting policy will be underpinned by the introduction of a social value process and
supported by a new VCS assets liaison officer. The policy includes the adoption of a
standardised VCS subsidised rent matrix that recognises differences in location and
size of premises across the portfolio. This policy replaces the Council’s community
asset transfer policy.
1.2 Our proposals
The Council’s proposed Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy, which
was the subject of a public consultation, seeks to support and enhance the work of all
VCS groups within the borough, by providing them with a consistent, fair and transparent
platform and basis for occupying Council-owned properties. Under the proposals, all
VCS tenants will be granted consistent lease terms of up to 10 years, on a low and
subsidised rent, allowing them to focus on delivering social value to residents. The
proposed policy will therefore offer improved financial support to all VCS organisations,
as well as deliver joined up and collaborative working within the sectors, in order to help
them to deliver the Borough Plan goals.
The VCS Asset Strategy is the foundation for a new relationship with our partner tenants
that sit in this portfolio. As custodians of buildings for the benefit of Lambeth residents
this policy will ensure that our community assets deliver maximum outcomes for our
communities and provide greater transparency, fairness, and consistency for all. At the
same time, underpinned by the introduction of a social value process, the policy includes
subsidised rent.
The proposed policy attempts to redress this imbalance that exists.
2. The consultation
2.1 Consultation objectives
The Council recognises the vital role which VCS organisations play in the lives of
Lambeth residents, and understands the strong delivery track record which the sector
has in supporting our residents to live better lives in accordance with the borough plan.
The introduction of a fair, and transparent policy will encourage better use and sharing
of property assets and resources, and lead to accountability to strengthen local
organisations to deliver crucial services to Lambeth residents.
3|Page

Page 84

The proposed VCS Asset Strategy seeks to:






Encourage well utilised spaces delivering services and activities aligned with the
objectives of the Borough Plan.
Adopt a letting policy and social value mechanism that will encourage a fair and
sustainable model for the provision of and ring fencing of VCS accommodation in
Lambeth.
Ensure that the use and occupation of these assets complies with all legislative,
statutory and contractual arrangements, especially where Health and Safety is
concerned. and
The funding, by the Council, of any existing maintenance backlog and future major
repairs.
Enable the Council to meet its statutory duty under the Equalities Act 2010 to
consider how we can positively contribute to building a fairer society by advancing
equality and good relations between communities in our day to day activities.

2.2 Who we consulted
We offered all VCS tenants and occupiers directly impacted by this strategy early
engagement and held pre-consultation virtual meetings with a majority. We extended
this consultation with webinars and presentation to the wider VCS sector within
Lambeth, including members from the Funders Forum, and Lambeth Community Hubs
(We are 366, Stockwell Partnership, High Trees Community Development Trust and
others). We consulted with the VCS more widely through communications to the sector
though Integrate to inform the sector of the consultation. Specific consultees
approached are identified in Appendix C. We opened up the consultation to the wider
public so that any member of the public could access and comment on the proposals.
In order to comply with our public sector equality duty, we ensured that the proposed
strategy would serve to eliminate unlawful discrimination; advance equality of
opportunity and foster good relations between people who share a protected
characteristic and those who don’t. This is supported by published Charity
Commission information, as well as existing corporate data regarding the VCS sector
and have established that a majority of the VCS tenants and/or partner organisations
are inclusive and deliver a range of services to a wider group of residents who share
the 'protected characteristics' as described by the Equality Act 2010; and are therefore
not confined to a particular type of protected characteristic.
2.3 When we consulted
We wrote to all forty-one tenants and occupiers within this portfolio between 26th
February and 04th March 2021 to inform them that we were about to commence
consultation on a new VCS Asset Strategy, and that they had been identified as an
organisation that would be directly impacted by the proposals. In this initial email, we
offered each occupier the opportunity to attend a virtual meeting for this purpose with
as many trustees, board members of leadership team as would like to join to hear and
understand the proposed strategy being consulted upon.
Following positive responses from over 65% of the occupiers, we undertook and
delivered a series of presentations, webinar and telephone engagements, presenting
the draft strategy to the different stakeholders and their networks on the draft
proposals, the impact (positive and negative) on their occupation and use of Councilowned property, and the next steps.

4|Page

Page 85

We wrote to all the stakeholders on 15th March 2021 to let them know that the
consultation was now live, together with the hyper-link for the consultation, the process
for responding to the survey and submitting written submissions to the main address
at vasa@lambeth.gov.uk.
The on-line consultation ran for a period of six weeks, from 15th March to 25th April
2021.
2.4 How we consulted
The draft Lambeth The Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy
proposals have been widely consulted using different methodologies.
The different methods consisted of:
A six weeks’ on-line public consultation, accessible on the Council’s website
https://beta.lambeth.gov.uk/consultations/have-your-say-our-voluntarycommunity-sector-asset-strategy-consultation (Figure 1).
ii) Multiple individual and group webinar presentations
iii) Presentations at meetings and forums both with external and internal stakeholders.
i)

Figure 1: Consultation Webpage with all the relevant documents

5|Page

Page 86

2.4.1 Press activity
The Council was asked to comment and provided a statement on the VCS Asset
Strategy, and in particular relating to the impact of the proposals on a single occupier,
Waterloo Action Society by the following publications:





London SE1 Community Website, 20th April 2021 (https://www.londonse1.co.uk/news/view/10527),
The Law Society Gazette, 20th April 2021
(https://www.lawgazette.co.uk/news/council-plans-could-spell-the-end-forlegal-advice-service-after-49-years/5108196.article),
Time Out London, 20th April 2021
(https://www.timeout.com/london/news/one-of-londons-oldest-communitycentres-is-under-threat-042021).

The Council issued the response below following the media enquiries:
Lambeth Council said: 'The council’s proposed Voluntary and Community Sector
(VCS) Asset Strategy, which is currently the subject of a public consultation, seeks to
support and enhance the work of all VCS groups within the borough, by providing them
with a consistent, fair and transparent platform and basis for occupying council-owned
properties.
'Under the proposals, all VCS tenants will be granted consistent lease terms of up to
10 years, on a low and subsidised rent, allowing them to focus on delivering social
value to residents. The council proposes that Waterloo Action Centre will, after a period
of transition, pay a rent that reflects an 80% rental subsidy from the council. There
would be no increase in rental in the first year, and any proposed increases will be
gradually phased over a three-year period to enable WAC to build up more capacity
and account for this proposed increase.'
2.4.2 Digital activity
The Council’s partner, Integrate, were instructed to contact tenants about the
consultation and signpost them towards the consultation documents and
questionnaire. They did two Mailchimp mailings as follows to their VCS network



15th March 2021 at 1700 hours to 2,332 recipients,
20 April, 2021 @ 1100am to 2,496 recipients

Integrate also sent out messages across their social media accounts and discussed
(and continue to discuss) the consultation in their day-to-day engagement with the VCS
sector. The web was used to promote the consultation.
2.4.3 Print activity
Due to the current COVID-19 pandemic, no printed materials were used during this
consultation. All information was shared digitally.
2.4.4 Event activity
Due to restrictions on physical group meetings, all webinars and/or discussions were
limited to online engagements during this consultation. All information was shared
digitally.

6|Page

Page 87

3. Responses from members of the public
Over 180 responses were received, 148 online and the rest through direct email
communication and verbal feedback.
3.1 Summary of results
3.1.1 Overall VCS Asset Strategy
The consultation was set out as an overall response and then on 5 Specific Themes.
Overall, the respondents suggested various implementation options and a wide range
of options which the overall strategy could be improved and delivered to ensure more
transparency, consistency and fairness. There was also widely accepted recognition
that while the sector had suffered following lockdowns last year, the strategy, if
correctly delivered, presented a positive opportunity for change for organisations,
particularly those who did not have security of tenure, were paying commercial rents
which would be reduced, or were in older properties which would benefit from
refurbishment.
Some respondents were in the process of reviewing how they deliver their services,
and whether their locations and properties would be fit for purpose post-lockdown, and
the overall strategy was a positive enabler.
As at 8th April 2021, over 71% of the respondents indicated that they ‘strongly agreed’
or ‘agreed’ with the overall aims of the proposed VCS Asset Strategy, citing the need
for consistency and transparency in the allocation of property among other reasons.
This is illustrated below.

Figure 2: Answers to the question (36): “To what extent do agree or disagree with our plans to implement
the VCS Asset Strategy?”

7|Page

Page 88

Figure 3: Answers to the question (31): “Please tell us why you think this?”

However, at the end of the consultation period, support for the strategy had now dipped to
just under 40%. On analysis of the reasons given in Question 2 of the survey, we found a
link between those who did not support the proposals and those that were particularly
concerned about the perceived impact of the proposals on their own individual
organisations, namely Waterloo Action Centre and Lambeth Horticultural Society.

Figure 4: Answers to the question (number of responses): “To what extent do agree or disagree with our
plans to implement the VCS Asset Strategy?” at End of Consultation

8|Page

Page 89

Figure 5: Answers to the question (number of responses): “Please tell us why you think this?”

The respondents who were less in favour of the proposals did not appreciate the
existing landlord and tenant contractual relationship between their organisations and
the Council; and were more likely to hold to the perception that their properties
belonged to their organisations, rather than being Council-owned. The overall strategy
deems all organisations to be custodians of Lambeth-owned assets, evidenced by
15% of respondents who were in favour that the strategy would replace the community
asset transfer, (40% neither agreed nor disagreed).
There was also recognition of the potential to improve the working relationship between
the Council and some organisations, and it was hoped that the overall strategy could
achieve this;
‘Because all the council's properties occupied by the VCS should be used to the utmost
advantage of the communities they serve and it is to the utmost advantage of the
council to build positive and stable relationships with its VCS. Because it is the
advantage of the council to monitor the services that its VCSector provide and the
assets it occupies and to create protocols that ensure that both are maintained to the
highest standards. Because far too many VCS services have for far too long been
consigned to strategic uncertainty by the lack of a clear leasing policy.’

3.1.2 Plans to implement Social Value Mechanism
Almost half of the respondents ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with our plans to implement
a social value mechanism, including the social value self evaluation form (SVSEF). A
further 21% neither ‘agreed’ nor ‘disagreed’, whilst 31% ‘strongly disagreed’ or
‘disagreed’ with the plans.
9|Page

Page 90

Figure 6: Answers to the question (112 responses): “Q6: To what extent to you agree or disagree with our
plans to implement a social value mechanism including the Social Value Self Evaluation Form (SVSEF)?”

The respondents warned that whilst the SVSEF was a good tool to capture the social
value delivered by organisations to Lambeth residents, there was a fear that it could
place extra resource strain and bureaucracy to smaller organisations that may not be
able to deal with the form. There was a suggestion of another form which would suit
smaller organisations:
‘In many ways the proposed Social Value Self Evaluation Tool is a sensible document
for large VCS organisations with the appropriate resources, staff and communication
channels to access the necessary data and complete the form. However, completion
of the form would place a huge burden on those organisations run by volunteers. At
the very least, we would suggest that at least two forms are needed, one for those
organisations with paid staff and one for those run by volunteers, with questions set
that present an appropriate workload for each’.
Another respondent wrote:
‘I would not wish Lambeth to place extra burden on small organisation who may not
have the resources or capacity to complete the online 'self-evaluation forms'. Many
organisations work and operate on a voluntary basis - so the question is, what will
Lambeth put in place to help small grassroots organisation to adhere to this initiative
and 'obligation'. All your properties are currently 'managed' by external agents - who
have a poor relationship with VCS occupants.’

3.1.3 Plans to implement a VCS Tenant Liaison Officer
Over half of the respondents ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with our plans to implement
a implement and recruit a VCS Tenant Liaison Officer. A further 31% neither ‘agreed’
nor ‘disagreed’, whilst 18% ‘strongly disagreed’ or ‘disagreed’ with the plans.
The comments demonstrate that the respondents want to have a better relationship
with a Council officer, and perhaps this is the experience of the organisations who are
on commercial leases which are managed in a commercial manner.
10 | P a g e

Page 91

Figure 7: Answers to the question (108 responses): “To what extent to you agree or disagree with our plans
to implement a VCS Tenant Liaison Officer?”

It is thought that the Tenant Liaison officer would help manage this relationship, ensure
repairing and lease obligations are met, support the sector and provide a ‘link’ to the
Council to address mutual objectives which enable and encourage information sharing.
The comments will help draw up a job description for the Tenant Liaison offer, as
evidenced by this comment:
‘A good liaison officer will be someone who (a) visits regularly, gets to know the
occupiers, listens carefully and takes notes (given that he/she has so many occupiers
to look after) (b) if possible, makes immediate suggestions - for example if the tenant
has clearly misunderstood something, or seems to be going in a wrong direction (d)
otherwise comes back to the tenant with guidance ASAP. The officer should also
proactively 'steer' an occupier in the right direction. Obviously, this will depend on the
tenant's capacity, knowledge and experience.
The above should be the main work of the liaison officer and if there is only one such
officer that work will take all of his/her time. He or she should not spend much time 'in
the office' except to do research. There could also be a programme of say monthly
talks & discussions for Occupiers, with written guidance to take away (all made
available online).
Somebody other than the liaison officer should arrange all this, e.g. 'Lambeth
Integrate'. Such talks should involve outside speakers from the likes of Locality or
NCVO, not just Lambeth in-house people. And VCS tenants/occupiers should be
encouraged to meet and mingle so as to learn from each other. Opportunities for this
(e.g. perhaps a monthly early evening VCS social in the Town Hall) should be created
by Lambeth.’

11 | P a g e

Page 92

3.1.4 Plans to implement a VCS Property Panel
Over 44% of the respondents ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with our plans to implement
a implement a VCS Property Panel. A further 30% neither ‘agreed’ nor ‘disagreed’,
whilst a quarter ‘strongly disagreed’ or ‘disagreed’ with the plans.

Figure 8: Answers to the question (102 responses): “To what extent to you agree or disagree with our plans
to implement a VCS Property Panel?”

A respondent suggested that a success criterion for the Panel would be to maintain a
strategic overview of the role and status of the voluntary and community sector in
Lambeth, and to avoid becoming a ‘mechanistic property-focused group’ but to ensure
that the wider voice of the sector can be heard and understood by all Panel members.
The appointment, makeup of the Panel, and its independence from the Council was
also a recurring theme within the written responses, and some names from Lambeth
Community Hubs were suggested as possible Panel members, as well as how the
Terms of Reference could be improved:
‘The process for appointments should be open and transparent. Members should be
unconnected with each other's organisations or interests. Ideally members would come
from be elected by the VC groups currently occupying council properties and will have
to stand for election every year. Attendance records should be published prior to
elections of panel members.’
And
‘The process for appointments should be open and transparent. Members should be
unconnected with each other's organisations or interests. Ideally members would come
from be elected by the VC groups currently occupying council properties and will have
to stand for election every year. Attendance records should be published prior to
elections of panel members.’
12 | P a g e

Page 93

The invitation and opportunity to serve in the Panel has been extended to members
from the Funding Forum and other independent bodies during the briefing webinars.
3.1.5 Plans for a consistent subsidised rent
Over 39% of the respondents ‘strongly agreed’ or ‘agreed’ with our plans to implement
a implement a consistent and subsidised rent. A further 24% neither ‘agreed’ nor
‘disagreed’, whilst 37% ‘strongly disagreed’ or ‘disagreed’ with the plans.

Figure 9: Answers to the question (106 responses): “To what extent to you agree or disagree with our plans
to implement a consistent subsidised rent for all VCS occupiers?”

A follow up question focused on the rent policy and rent matrix. A significant number
of responders (54%) ‘disagreed’ or ‘strongly disagreed’ with the rent matrix which
assesses the rent according to the overall rent that the Council needs to achieve from
the portfolio to make this strategy work.
Respondents had the opportunity to comment on proposals for all occupiers to be
charged one of the rents in the rent matrix, which applied a discount for size of property
and location of property from amenities to the base rent.
The responses were mixed, and largely depended on the perception of how each
organisation might be impacted, positive and negatively, by the proposed rent matrix.
There was recognition that the rent matrix by itself was not the issue, but rather a
question of affordability particularly in light of the pandemic which had limited income
generating opportunities for most occupiers and could be a threat for long term
operations.
During the presentations, we illustrated that there would be immediate rent reductions
for those on commercial rents, (circa 28 organisations), and long term transition
arrangements of up to four years for those whose rents would see an upwards
adjustment (circa 11 organisations). The survey did not ask for views on these points,
however, respondents sought a longer transition period for the latter group and some
flexibility in dealing with the rent adjustments.
13 | P a g e

Page 94

Organisations which were currently paying a commercial rent were more likely to
support the rent matrix, and to seek an immediate rent reduction and rent support.
‘I agree that (rent) should be affordable but not on the market rent. e.g: We are renting
the Lambeth premises paying full rent on the service which benefits the communities,
but we don’t make any profit. Like during this pandemic our space is been used for
emergency to help the vulnerable people but we still paying rent from our only
contribution. We don't get any rent support from the Lambeth council.’
And another:
‘There are organisations that provide essential services for which they charge no fee,
often because the communities they serve live in areas of high deprivation. Such
organisations are usually adept at living from hand to mouth on their own, skilled, fund
raising activities. It must be likely that some such will fail under the additional pressure
of a council rent.’
And another:
‘It all depends on where those figures have come from and whether or not the current
users / tenants are in a financially stable position that enables them to absorb these
new costs, or, as may well happen, increased rents sadly mean that they must vacate
and seek alternative premises to stay afloat.’
And another:
‘I do not know enough to comment on how these (rents) compare with the private
sector. Rents will be affected by the ongoing impact of COVID-19 and the restrictions.
It seems it could be too soon to set rents now. That aside, some allowance should be
made for the value of the social impact of any particular project, e.g. if the VCS
effectively brings in funds into the LBL or saves LBL on its expenditure on social
care/wellbeing. If there are no huge rent increases implemented every year this will
provide much needed long-term stability and consistency that VCS orgs need.’

3.1.6 Proposed Lease terms and length
We asked for comments on the proposed Lease terms of up to 10 years, as well as
some terms within the letting policy.
There was a mixed level of support for the proposed 10-year lease length, which some
respondents suggesting this was too short to support long term planning; and some
arguing that a 10-year lease would give VCS organisations better stability to help
develop their long-term strategy without the risk of eviction and rent increase. This
demonstrates that the answers were organisation specific and perhaps not a reflection
of the wider strategy.
Below is a selection of some responses:





Agree with the proposed lease term of 10 years, however, cannot agree to
reassessment when seeking to renew the lease. If in the 10 years everything met the
standards required, then the lease should be renewed without having to go through the
reassessment process.
This is good for as minimum term but an option for a longer term should be available.
Up to 10 years seems OK. But as mentioned above, a tenant should be given some
comfort (perhaps not legally binding) as to extension of the term as they may well be

14 | P a g e

Page 95







in talks with their contracting parties when the end of the 10 years approaches, and
security is essential.
It is too short. Many voluntary and community sector organisations have been in
existence for decades and a ten year planning horizon is limited and counter to making
investments in local communities.
Longer leases will support strategic planning and a sense of longevity. Will be leverage
in some funding applications. Not sure why 10-year cap? Would be helpful to have
some options for even longer.
For our organisation this would be a very long lease to enter. We would need to be
sure there are sufficient break clauses as our funding fluctuates year to year and
trustees would need to know they weren’t taking on a liability that couldn’t be managed.
However, the security of a longer lease rather than annual renegotiations would be
helpful.

We also asked, ‘to what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposed lease terms
as set out in the letting policy?’ Below is a selection of some of the responses:








Seems reasonable other than the bureaucracy of "Officers from the Council’s Agents,
Valuation and Strategic Assets team, Strategy and Partnerships team, and relevant
service area will assess the applications against the selection criteria, shortlist the
applicants, interview and offer the premises." This should be streamlined.
The requirement for the VCS organisations to demonstrate their social value, that
leases will be up to 10 years as this offers stability. That if rents are not paid then the
lease is at risk as this will give another organisation the opportunity to use the space.
VCS do not have excess cash to spend on capital investment. There is very little
funding available for it, plus the properties are council owned and so the council should
invest in them to create a sustainable community.
A consistent approach is appropriate and necessary, however, its application to the
many different voluntary organisations across the borough will be a major challenge
requiring implementation over a considerable period. The level of proposed investment
in repairs is likely to be nowhere near adequate for the repairs required across the
voluntary sector portfolio. How will decisions be made about the repairs which are
essential and to be prioritised and those which are less so?
A fair and equitable lease is important but while a basic template might apply to all
there should be flexibility in relation to the specific nature and operations of each
organisation. One size does not fit all.

We also asked, ‘do you have any comments on the proposal for structural and internal
repairs?’ Below is a selection of some of the responses:






Protected tenancies should be included in the proposed new lease terms so that
existing voluntary sector organisations that currently hold tenancies that are protected
should be able to keep the protected status. They should be ported to the new lease
agreement. To build a vibrant voluntary sector in Lambeth long term security and
stability is essential. Agree with the repair’s responsibility between the Landlord and
tenant but landlord’s responsibility should include, rewiring and responsibility for the
plumbing including pipes, boiler etc that goes with the structure of the building.
This process attempts to put all the parties on the same level. We started from different
level/places to other organisations and therefore we are at a disadvantage in this
process.
Some of the premises are not in the best shape and the policy could lead to putting the
cost of repair onto the VCS rather than LBL as the owners of the premises.

The respondents suggested various implementation options and a wide array of ways
in which the wider strategy could be improved to ensure more transparency,
consistency, and fairness. There was a widely accepted recognition that the sector had
15 | P a g e

Page 96

suffered following lockdowns last year, and many were in the process of reviewing how
they deliver their services, and whether their locations and properties would be fit for
purpose going into the ‘new normal’.

3.2 Summary of post code analysis and demographics
A total of 148 people responded to the online survey, most of them representing their
individual VCS groups. The make of respondents was made up of a variety of
respondents from across the spectrum.

Figure 6: Answers to the question (number of responses): “Are you do you represent”

Most respondents who were willing to give their age to the online survey were aged
between 35 to 74 years.

16 | P a g e

Page 97

Figure 7: Answers to the question (number of responses): “Are you do you represent”

About 72% of the respondents were of White British ethnicity and 12% were of Black
descent. Almost half of the respondents skipped this question and did not want to give
their ethnicity, and over 95% of those that did spoke English as their main language.
Finally, over 97% of the survey respondents were happy to be contacted further about
this consultation and provided their contact details.
4. Responses from statutory bodies and other stakeholders
In addition to the responses received through the online survey, the Valuation and
Strategic Assets Team received written and verbal feedback collected through a series
of engagement meetings and webinars. The proposed VCS Asset Strategy was
presented at various meetings with different stakeholders, where additional feedback
was received. The written and verbal responses further reinforced the key messages
outlined in the online survey.
Overall, feedback from most respondents, when responding about their individual
organisations, was extremely positive. There was optimistic caution in relation to how
the strategy would be implemented to achieve fairness throughout the Borough. When
talking about fairness and consistency, it was clear that respondents based this from
their own experience and relations with the Council. For example, WAC, the most vocal
of the organisations, organised a petition to challenge the proposals, however, whilst
they supported the proposals, they wanted to be excluded from the proposals. This
contradicts the principle of fairness and consistency which the very policy is seeking
to achieve.
We have received over 25 separate representations in relation to the future of WAC,
without direct response to the proposed strategy or any cognisance about how its
component parts will impact on all VCS groups within the borough. We have received
representations from the following bodies:






Coin Street Community Builders,
The Brixton Society,
South Bank & Waterloo Neighbours (SoWN)
Lambeth Pensioners Action Group,
We are Waterloo,

5. Next steps
The report will be submitted to Cabinet together with a final Equalities Impact
Assessment (EQIA) and covering report making final recommendations on the
preferred approach.

17 | P a g e

Page 98

Appendix A – Consultation communications
The following text was used to invite pre-consultation and consultation responses to the VCS
sector, particularly tenants:

18 | P a g e

Page 99

19 | P a g e

Page 100

Presentation Screen used during briefing sessions

Slide from Presentation used during briefing sessions

VCS Asset Strategy
Occupier Briefing.pdf

20 | P a g e

Page 101

Appendix B – Consultation distribution area
The consultation was limited to VCS organisations, occupiers and tenants operating within
the Borough.
Appendix C – List of stakeholders consulted
Elected members
Lambeth councillors
MPs
MPs
MPs
Police and health authorities
Metropolitan Police
London Fire Brigade
Current tenants of the VCS Property
Portfolio (contacted them directly) *
Weir Link Children's Centre
Lambeth Horticultural Society
WEISA/WASP
Brixton Domino Social Club
Brixton Wings
Bright Education
The Remakery
Age UK Lambeth
Stockwell Partnership
Code 7
Waterloo Action Centre
Angell Delight
Lambeth Public Transport Group
Abdul Azeez Williams (Education &
Outreach)
Elijah Kerr, Brixton Recording Studio
Your Story
Bee Urban
Latino Help Centre
Home Start Lambeth
Lifelong Family Links
LAMSOM
Former BRYC
Lambeth Comm of Refugees from Vietnam
CHIPS-Christian Int Peace Service
Other stakeholder or partners
Lambeth Accord - ‘We Are 336’
Stockwell Partnership
High Trees Community Development Trust
Woodlawns Hub

Name
All
Florence Eshalomi MP
Helen Hayes MP
Bell Ribeiro-Addy MP
London Ambulance Service
NHS Lambeth CCG
Voluntary and community sector groups
Lambeth Forum Network (12 geographically
spread community forums)
Lambeth VCS Partnership Group (elected
reps covering VCS sub-sectors)
VCS Property Group
Vassall & Coldharbour Consortium
Walcot Peer-to-Peer Network
Lambeth Larder
VCS Infrastructure and investment partners
(i.e., Lambeth Funders Forum)
CYP VCS Forum
Lambeth Community Hub Network (9 Hubs
with infrastructure/ buildings)
Disabilities Forum
Emmaus
Trees for Cities
Community of Tigrayan Refugees
Eritrean Saho Cultural Association
Omnibus
Sangayi
Anointed Ministry International
Waterloo Community Counselling Service
Ebony Horse Club
Asha
Vauxhall City Farm
Portuguese Community Centre
IRMO/INDO
Football Beyond Borders
Al-Shaada Islamic Mission
Longfield Hall Trust
Carnegie Hub
Minet Hub

21 | P a g e

Page 102

Appendix D – Consultation Report

22 | P a g e

Page 103

EQIA – Voluntary Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy
Q1a. What is changing?
The Council proposes to introduce a new Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) Asset Strategy, an
important element of the overarching VCS Strategy. A decision is being sought to adopt the strategy.
The VCS Asset Strategy aims bring clarity by formalising a VCS Portfolio of premises to be let on consistent lease
terms and managed with transparent and fair processes. The Council has supported voluntary and community
sector partners, whether by way of grant, accommodation, or other forms of assistance, over many years. There is
a significant portfolio of Council owned community and voluntary sector premises across the borough, however,
this strategy doesn’t impact VCS organisations that are part of other policies or strategies such as the Youth

and Play Early Adopter portfolio, the Tenants Halls or those properties that have long lease agreements with
the Council. The strategy impacts 49 properties and, once vacant premises and organisations with multiple
units are excluded, 39 organisations.
The strategy makes several changes that will define a new relationship with those VCS organisations that
occupy premises on short or medium terms agreements. The changes can be summarised as moving from
inconsistent lease terms with no support for or accountability from VCS occupiers to creating a specific VCS
Portfolio of properties let on consistent lease terms (The Letting Policy) within a specific management
framework (The Social Value Self Evaluation Tool, The Portal, The Panel and the Liaison Officer). The
overall purpose is to improve transparency, fairness and accountability for the use and management of premises.
The strategy is designed to move from the view that a building belongs to an occupying community group to the
occupying group being custodian of the asset for the benefit of Lambeth’s residents.
Existing terms of occupation have developed over time with some groups paying rent, some paying no rent and
others paying reduced rent. Similarly, an inconsistent approach to management means that many premises have
been poorly maintained. The current maintenance backlog poses potential Health and Safety risks to building
users. Another issue is that there has been little transparency about occupying organisations or accountability for
use of premises. There are estimated to be over 1,500 VCS groups in the borough which means that only a very
small number (fewer than 7%) enjoy Council owned premises, and fewer at nil or a low rent. A key purpose of the
change is to improve the social value outcomes and impact from the portfolio. The improvement, if achieved, will
have a direct impact on residents with protected characteristics.
The elements of this strategy are:


The Letting Policy, including a new consistent approach to subsidised rent and future repairs - Copy
attached



The Social Value Self Evaluation Tool - Copy Attached



The Panel – terms to reference to be finalised




The Portal – that part of the Council’s website supporting the strategy – in development
The VCS Tenant Liaison Officer – new post to develop and improve relationships with VCS Portfolio
tenants – JD to be finalised



The funding of the maintenance backlog - £2.25m set aside in the capital programme

The impact sought from the adoption of this strategy focusses on fairness, accountability and transparency and
can be summarised as follows;

Page 104



Fairness and transparency in the allocation of community facilities - set out in the letting policy



Fairness and transparency in letting terms - set out in the letting policy




Fairness and transparency in the subsidised rental levels charged - set out in the letting policy
Fairness and transparency in operation of the landlord and tenant relationship – set out in the
letting policy, and managed through the VCS liaison officer and the Panel
Support for the VCS Portfolio occupiers - provided through the liaison officer, the portal and the
panel
Transparency and accountability for the use and occupation of premises – provided through the
social value self-evaluation tool, the panel, the VCS liaison officer the letting policy and the portal






Repair of the maintenance backlog – funded by the Council on adoption of new lease terms
A sustainable model for funding future external and major repairs to the premises – set out in the
letting policy

Q1b. Who will be involved in approving this decision?
Cabinet

Q2a. What do we know about the people who will be impacted by this
change?
The strategy will affect 39 existing VCS organisations that occupy Lambeth premises for the benefit of
residents and communities. In undertaking this EQIA, we have analysed existing organisations by reference
to their leadership and those with protected characteristics that they serve. To undertake this analysis we
have relied on published charity registration information, existing corporate data provided by the VCS
organisations and responses to the VCS Asset Strategy consultation that took place between 26th February
25th April. Where organisations have set out a general policy to be inclusive or to support all residents the
analysis has not identified that organisation as supporting all protected characteristics but focused the
analysis only where an organisations has stated that they provide support specifically for individuals with a
particular protected characteristic.
As the premises identified in the strategy are used to provide community services and facilities, the changes
have the potential to impact on the users of services as well as the organisations running the buildings. The
types of services provided from the premises indicate the likely users. Across the portfolio the services are
extremely varied but key themes emerge including programmes that support, in adults; literacy, social
wellbeing, job seeking, advice and counselling. For children: programmes that support life skills, supplement
education, tackle exclusion. For the elderly; social networks preventing loneliness, providing advice. For all;
health, wellbeing and volunteering opportunities.
Some organisations focus on specific ethnic communities, such as Somalian or Vietnamese and others have
special interests such as theatre, gardening, bee keeping, horse riding. The services and special interests
intersect however making it difficult to identify specific protected characteristic that will be uniquely
impacted. Overall, however, the changes will impact a greater proportion of people with protected
characteristics as described by the Equality Act 2010. These individuals are more likely to be accessing the
services and support networks provided in well-run community facilities.

Page 105

In particular the organisations currently operating from these premises tend to support age related protected
characteristics, (babies, children, young people, adults needing support and the elderly as well as those with
a disability, race and ethnicity, health and wellbeing, socio-economic needs and language needs. Fewer
organisations focus specifically on gender reassignment, marriage/civil partnership, pregnancy/maternity,
religion, gender, sexual orientation.
When age is analysed by youth and elderly, more organisations supporting the elderly appear to be impacted by
rent increases and more organisations supporting children and young people likely to receive rent decreases.

What does your information tell you about the people who will affected by this change? Are protected groups
impacted? What information do you hold on the protected characteristics of the people affected by the change? ﴾Age,
disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race/ethnicity, religion or belief, gender, sexual orientation,
health, socio‐economic, language﴿ Are there any gaps or missing information?

Q2b. How will they be impacted by the change?
We have identified that a higher proportion of individuals with protected characteristics are likely to be users
of VCS premises, than those in the general population.
Where the strategy is designed to:


improve fairness and transparency in the allocation of community facilities,

the adoption of a formal transparent published application process (as set out in the letting policy) will
provide equal opportunity for applicants to put forward proposals for use of vacant premises and for the
equalities impact to be reviewed in considering the successful application.
Where the strategy is designed to:


improve the operation of a VCS landlord and tenant relationship,



provide support for tenants, and



improve accountability for the use of premises,

the potential impact will be an improvement in the social value enabled by the letting premises at subsidised
rents to VCS organisations. This will present a positive outcome for all protected characteristics. The
aspects of the strategy that support these outcomes are the social value self-evaluation tool which will
result in publicity about the tenants and the services they provide, the VCS liaison officer that will have a
role of helping organisations, by using the mechanisms in the letting policy, to enable improvements. The
Panel will provide oversight and support and the portal, as well as providing information about the groups,
will provide information for the groups, including signposting to support networks and signposting for VCS
organisations seeking affordable accommodation.

Page 106

For those aspects of the strategy designed to:


improve fairness and transparency of rent paid, and



improve future repairing responsibilities

this will have a different impact on different organisations in particular the change in rent. Those currently
paying no rent will be asked to start paying a subsidised rent. However, the increase will be brought in
gradually. Those paying market rent will be offered a rent reduction immediately. It is anticipated that 18
organisations will have an increase in rent and 21 organisations will benefit from a rent reduction, which will
be brought in immediately. When broken down by each protected characteristic, in every case there are
marginally more organisations facing a rent decrease than a rent increase.
The rent increases are also balanced out by the Council committing to put premises into repair on adoption
of the new lease terms and then committing to long term maintenance for the exterior of the premises and
major capital items, all organisations will benefit from the strategy in this way. Where vacant, premises will
be retained in the VCS portfolio enabling premises to be marketed to the VCS at the subsidised rent level
instead of market rent, retaining opportunities affordable accommodation for VCS groups.
The rentals level proposed have been assessed by reference to retention of the existing rental income
received from the portfolio with the addition of funding the liaison officer. This represents an overall rental
subsidy by the Council to the sector of almost £900,000 per annum. This proposal redistributes the Councils
existing rental subsidy fairly with all organisations being asked to pay a subsided rent. The subsidised rental
levels are set between £3.45 per square foot (psf) and £5.75 psf, with market rents being typically between
£17-£30psf. The rents are not however linked to market rent.
While individual organisations will be impacted differently by the rent changes, overall, the impact of the rent
increases is considered neutral. This is for three reasons as follows:


Where rent is being increased the increase will be brought in gradually. This will provide time for
organisations to adjust their approaches to income generation from grant funding, users, hiring,
sharing volunteers etc and consider reductions in outgoings,





Where rent is being increased organisations will have a decreased liability for repairs
While rent is being increased for some organisations, the rent decrease for other organisations will
balance out the impact on service provision, if service provision is impacted
While rent may impact some organisations the overall strategy, with increased focus on
accountability will support an increase in social value delivery.

In relation to leadership of organisations, 23 organisations have been analysed as having Black, Asian And
Multi Ethnic leadership. Of these 9 will see a rent increase while 14 will receive a rent decrease. Of the 23
Black, Asian And Multi Ethnic groups 11 can readily be defined as Black African / Caribbean lead. Of those
8 will be subject to a rent increase. This represents a disproportionate impact. The introduction of the
SVSET will go on to enable us to collect accurate Equalities data on both provider and their governance
structures as well as equalities data on service users which current is absent which has implications on
our ability to assess the impact of proposed changes. We are however able to use officer insights that we
do hold on groups.

Q3a. How do you plan to promote and deliver any positive impacts of the
proposal?
The policy proposes a transparent and consistent approach to the terms of occupation and levels
of rent subsidy received. This will be promoted primarily through the VCS Web Portal. The Portal will promote the
letting policy, provide access to a tenants handbook, publish elements of the social value self-evaluation, thus

Page 107

identifying services provided, signpost organisations to support networks, capture information from VCS
organisations looking for space and explain the Council subsidy to the sector. The Council’s rental subsidy for the
sector is hidden at this time. Some organisations have their rent completely subsidised and others pay market
rent.
This will be public information and available to all. It should raise awareness of the VCS organisations and the
services they deliver. It is proposed that the standard community lease will be for a period of up to 10 years. It is
anticipated that this will allow groups a reasonable period to establish services and build capacity. A central aspect
of the framework is supporting organisations to evidence social value and how they are advancing equality and
removing discrimination. Another theme is increasing utilisation of premises by encouraging sharing of
accommodation.
The impacts of the strategy will be assessed by the Panel after three years capturing the impact of the strategy on
enabling sustainable well managed organisations delivering social value from a VCS Portfolio of properties and
whether the objectives of transparency, fairness and accountability have been achieved.

Q3b How do you plan to address and mitigate any negative impacts of
the proposal?
The proposals are supported by a Council decision to carry out repair and maintenance capital works
on the properties once the tenants accept the terms of a new community lease. The condition of the premises will
thereby be improved, with a corresponding reduction in reactive maintenance costs.
It is recognised that some tenants may find themselves having to pay rent for the first time or see an
increase in the rent that they pay. We have identified that Black African /Caribbean led organisations will be
disproportionately impacted and we will ensure proactive targeted support is provided to these groups and this will
be part of the EDI objectives of the VCS Liaison Officer and Panel oversight work in line with our duty to advance
equality of opportunity.
The impact of the increase will be mitigated by immediate access to repairs to the property, and ongoing support
for major capital repairs from the Council into the future. In addition, the Council will aid the tenants facing
increases in one or more of the following ways:



a delay in the commencement of any increase in rent by one year
the introduction of stepped rent increases thereafter, with the new subsidised rental level not being paid
until the 6th year of the strategy.



signposting to grant funding opportunities and support for organisations,



ability to review property requirements if existing accommodation is under utilised



support with identifying opportunities for reductions in outgoings, and



ability to share space with other organisations and share costs,

Q4. How will you review/evaluate your proposal, mitigating actions
and/orbenefits? Who will be responsible for this?
The VSC Panel will be responsible for ensuring that the new adopted strategy supports VCS groups to deliver their
social value objectives, while paying a subsidised rent. Their particular focus will be on assessing the needs for
support from the sector. They will also oversee the self-evaluation reporting on an annual basis and review the
benefits and impact of the VCS Asset Strategy in practice, receiving the formal assessment of the strategy after
three years.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 109

Agenda Item 4

CABINET 4TH OCTOBER 2021
Report title: Budget and Performance Report – Q1 2021-22
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance & Performance: Councillor Andrew Wilson
Report Authorised by: Fiona McDermott: Strategic Director for Finance and Investment
Contact for enquiries: Dami Awobajo, Director Performance and Business Improvement,
Finance and Investment, 020 7926 4161, dawobajo@lambeth.gov.uk
Nisar Visram, Assistant Director Finance, Corporate Finance, 020 7926 9386,
nvisram@lambeth.gov.uk

REPORT SUMMARY
This report provides Cabinet with an overview of the council’s financial position at quarter 1 (Q1) 202122 and how we are performing against our Borough Plan objectives and delivering against directorate
business plans. The forecast includes £27.5m additional expenditure and £2.2m reduction in income due
to the impact of Covid and these are being covered through grant funding from central government. This
leaves a residual overspend pressure of £7.95m and Cabinet is requested to consider mitigations so as
to remain with budget.

FINANCE SUMMARY
The report sets out full year projections based on our position at the end of June 2021. There are no
additional financial implications arising from the recommendations.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Cabinet:
1) To note the latest performance update against the delivery of the Borough Plan, including both
the review of the activity taken place in the directorate business plans as well as the corporate
performance indicator outturns.
2) To note the financial position reported for Q1 and to note the budgetary risks and mitigating
measures moving forward.
3) To note the latest position of each of the directorates, looking at the budgetary position,
performance and progress towards the delivery of business plans.

Page 110
CONTEXT
1.1

This report presents budget and performance information together in a single report for Cabinet to
review.

1.2

For 2021-22 a total of 183 business plan actions have been agreed upon and mapped to the
delivery of the borough plan; This year directorates have been given the option within Pentana to
set expected start and completion dates against actions, where activity is expected to be
concentrated in specific quarters.

1.3

Whilst the impact of Covid is still evident in our performance this quarter, some performance
indicators are beginning to see significant positive swings in performance as the impact of the
pandemic begins to ease and as services have adapted.

1.4

The Council is expected to incur additional costs totalling £27.5m associated with the coronavirus
pandemic and our response. The main areas of spend include providing support to local
businesses, reopening the economy safely and expenditure within Adult Social Care to facilitate
hospital discharges and on infection control. There are also forecast income losses of £2.2m due
to lower than expected fees and charges income. At this stage, it is expected that pandemic
related pressures will be met by grant funding for the 2021/22 financial year.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS
BOROUGH PLAN DELIVERY
2.1

For 2021-22 a total of 183 business plan actions have been agreed upon and mapped to the
delivery of the borough plan. This year directorates have been given the option within Pentana to
set expected start and completion dates against actions, where activity is expected to be
concentrated in specific quarters.

2.2

The graph below maps out the number business plan actions by status against each of the
Borough Plan pillars, demonstrating which areas are behind target and require further work.

Page 111
2.3

The table sets out how each of the directorates are performing against the actions they committed
to in their business plans.

Directorate
Integrated
Health and
Care
Finance
and
Investment
Children
Services
Resident
Services
Sustainable
Growth and
Opportunity
Progress
Total

Significantly
Behind
Target

Directorate
Total

Completed

On Track

Behind
Target

0

47

0

0

47

1

36

0

0

37

1

36

3

0

40

4

24

4

0

32

2

25

0

0

27

8

168

7

0

183

TIER 1 & TIER 2 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
2.4

The 82 performance indicators in Tier 1 are those that directly track our success in delivering
against the Borough Plan. Our 37 Tier 2 indicators are priority service indicators tied either to one
of our Borough Plan pillars, or to the Enabling pillar which reflects the general capability of the
Council to efficiently deliver services to the Borough. The Q1 performance position of both tiers is
broken down in the table below.

Tier 1 and 2 performance against Borough Plan pillars
100.00%
90.00%
80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
Tier 1

Tier 2

Tier 1

Tier 2

Sustainable Growth Resilient Communities
Green

Amber

Tier 1

Tier 2

Independence
Red

Unknown

Tier 1

Tier 2
Place

Monitor only

Tier 1

Tier 2
EDI

Tier 2
Enabling

Page 112
2.5

Both tier 1 and tier 2 have seen a slight upturn in performance since Q4, with more indicators
seeing a positive change in RAG status than a negative change.
 Performance in Pillar 1 (sustainable growth) continues to be positive, with all targeted
indicators meeting target).
 Although Pillar 2 (resilient communities) contains a number of indicators currently missing
target, the majority of these are trending in the right direction (see year on year
progression graph below). This is best represented by the 494 residents supported into
employment, training or education as a result of council supported activities. This figure
far exceeds the figure of 40 from the Q1 of 2020/21 and is more in line with total annual
figures of recent years.
 Work remains to bring our EDI performance up to target. Many initiatives are under way to
address this, both in our work with the wider Borough and also within the Council itself
where our HR team are conducting a workforce transformation program to improve the
diversity of our senior workforce. It should be noted that several EDI metrics see Lambeth
significantly outperform benchmarks from other London authorities, even if our internal
targets have not yet been met. For example, 35% of Lambeth’s top 5% of earners are
from black and minority ethnic groups. This figure is both the highest in London and is
also growing more quickly than the London average.

2.6

For full, detailed information about the performance of Tier 1 and Tier 2 indicators, please refer to
the following visualisations:



2.7

The Tier 1 performance visualisation can be found here.
The Tier 2 performance visualisation can be found here.

As well as looking at the most recent performance figures, it is also important to consider the
direction in which our performance is travelling. The following table compares Q1 performance with
that of Q1 in 2020/21. Performance indicators have been broken into 3 categories:
 A marked improvement in performance since Q1 2020/21 (improvement of 10% or more)
 No, or little change in performance since Q1 2020/21 (change of less than 10%)
 A marked decline in performance since Q1 2020/21 (decline of 10% or more)
A more detailed breakdown of this data per directorate can be found later in this report. Please note
that our EDI pillar was introduced this year – no comparison to last year is available.

Page 113
Year on Year Performance Progression
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

18%
33%

33%

57%
83%

55%
43%
67%

29%
17%

14%

27%

24%

BPP1 Enable
BPP2 Increase
BPP3 Promote care BPP4 Make Lambeth a
sustainable growth and community resilience and independence by place where people
development
reforming services want to live, work and
invest
Decline

No significant change

BPP6 Enabling

Improvement

It is encouraging to note that significantly more of our indicators have seen improvement than those that
have seen a decline. We did not see a decline in any of our Pillar 4 indicators, suggesting that the easing
of lockdown has helped to improve Lambeth as a place where people want to live, work and invest. It has
been particularly pleasing to see people return to leisure centres, with over 330,000 visits in Q1, the vast
majority of which occurred in the second half of the quarter.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
2.8

Costs associated with the coronavirus pandemic continue to impact the council and expenditure is
forecast to be £27.5m in 2021/22, with the main areas of spend including providing support to local
businesses, reopening the economy safely and expenditure with in Adult Social Care to facilitate
hospital discharges and on infection control. There are also forecast income losses of £2.2m due
to lower fees and charges receipts for the council. At this stage, it is expected that pandemic
related pressures will be met by grant funding for the 2021/22 financial year.

2.9

The council is forecasting residual budget pressures of £7.095m that, without any mitigating action,
will adversely impact on the Council’s reserves. This includes pressures of £3.4m in Children
Services relating to Children Social Care and Special Education Needs Transport. There are also
pressures of £3.5m in Resident Services of which £1.7m relates to Temporary Accommodation.
Award of the new Waste contract was delayed due to Covid. Although the contract is now
mobilised and ready to go live on 1st October there is some budget pressure as savings are
realised later than expected. We have also seen a shortfall in income from Depots and Commercial
Waste.
DEPARTMENT

Adults and Health

Children Services

Income
Expenditure
Net
Income
Expenditure

Annual
Budget
£000
(65,931)
159,913
93,982
(16,542)
91,833

Forecast
£000
(68,618)
162,613
93,995
(17,627)
96,337

Forecast
Variance
£000
(2,687)
2,700
13
(1,085)
4,504

Page 114
No Recourse to Public Funds

Resident Services

Sustainable Growth and Opportunity

Finance and Investment

Net
Income
Expenditure
Net
Income
Expenditure
Net
Income
Expenditure
Net
Income

75,291
0
2,734
2,734
(258,138)
327,487
69,349
(24,844)
27,894
3,050
(6,627)

78,710
0
2,295
2,295
(268,184)
341,060
72,876
(25,501)
28,574
3,074
(6,730)

3,419
0
(439)
(439)
(10,046)
13,573
3,527
(657)
680
24
(103)

Expenditure

19,458

19,780

322

12,831

13,050

219

(1,176)
8,922

(2,375)
10,454

(1,199)
1,532

7,746

8,078

332

(373,258)
638,241
264,983

(389,035)
661,113
272,078

(15,777)
22,872
7,095

Net
Strategy and Comms; Legal Services

Total

Income
Expenditure
Net
Income
Expenditure
Net

2.10 The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is projecting to be in a deficit of £2.8m at the end of the
financial year, to be recovered from future years DSG allocations. The main pressure on the DSG
is within the High Needs block associated with Special Education Needs placements.

Dedicated Schools
Grant (DSG)
Total Gross DSG
expenditure 2020/21

DSG
Reserve
brought
forward
Deficit
2020/21
£000
473

DSG
Allocation
2021/22
£000
(226,831)

Forecast DSG
spend
£000
229,182

Projected c/f
Deficit 2021/22
£000
2,824

2.11 The Housing Revenue Accounts is forecast to overspend its budgets by £7.48m, predominantly
due to expenditure on responsive repairs, costs associated with the new repairs’ contracts,
increased spend on void properties and an overspend on legal costs associated with disrepairs.
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Housing Services
Central HRA Budgets
Strategic Programmes
Total

Budget

Forecast

Variance

£000

£000

£000

64,055

71,061

7,006

(79,596)

(80,776)

(1,180)

15,541

17,199

1,658

0

7,484

7,484

Page 115
2.12 Agreed savings of £13.4m are to be delivered in year, of which £1.4m were brought forward from
2020/21. It is forecast that £11.358m will be delivered in year with £2.05m rolled forward to be
delivered next year.
21/22 Savings
including
carry forward

21/22
Forecast

21/22
Variance

Adults & Health

£000
1,458

£000
1,384

£000
74

Children Services

2,853

2,223

630

Resident Services

7,550

6,453

997

Sustainable Growth & Opportunity

246

246

0

Finance & Investment

860

810

350

Cross Council

300

300

0

13,409

11,358

Directorate

Total

2,051

2.13 The approved capital budget for 2021/22 amounts to £273.0m. £15.6m has been spent by the end
of quarter 1 and £203.0m is forecast to be spent by the end of the year, with £69.4m carried
forward into the next financial year.

Directorate

FY21-22
Budget

FY21-22
Actuals

FY21-22
Forecast

Adult Social Care
Children Services
Resident Services
Sustainable Growth & Opportunity
Finance and Investment
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Total

£000
120
1,079
77,304
119,665
6,924
67,945
273,037

£000
0
0
5,873
3,357
0
6,401
15,631

£000
0
0
62,985
65,797
6,924
67,945
203,651

FY21-22
Carry
Forward
£000
120
1,079
14,319
53,868
0
0
69,386

DIRECTORATE PERFORMANCE
2.14 This section of the report looks at the detail for each directorate, focusing on the financial
performance, quarterly performance outturns, annual direction of travel and a review of the
progress made within each of the directorate plans.
Integrated Health & Care Performance
Budgetary Performance
2.15 Within an overall break-even in year position Adult Social Care is forecasting overspends of £2.3m
within Adults with Learning Difficulties due to continued pressures in residential care, and of £2.2m
in residential, nursing and home care for adults with mental health needs. The overall position is
managed through the use of brought forward reserves but this represents an underlying resource
pressure for future years based on the increased complexity and acuity of care packages. The
numbers of residents aged 18-64 who have had permanent admissions into residential and nursing
care homes have increased over the last two financial years, however, the total number of
permanent admissions for quarter 1 has seen a reduction to within targeted levels.

Page 116
2.16 Agreed savings for the year, including those brought forward from last year, are £1.5m. £1.4m of
these are forecast to be achieved this year
Adults and Health

Budget
£000

Forecast
£000

Variance
£000

Income

(23,154)

(21,555)

1,599

Expenditure

115,330

113,731

(1,599)

92,176

92,176

0

(32,930)

(36,137)

(3,207)

33,278

36,485

3,207

348

348

0

Income

(9,847)

(10,926)

(1,079)

Expenditure

11,305

12,396

1,091

1,458

1,471

13

Income

(65,931)

(68,618)

(2,687)

Expenditure

159,913

162,612

2,699

93,982

93,994

12

Adult Social Care

Net
Public Health
Income
Expenditure
Net
Strategy & Commissioning - Adults

Net
Adults and Public Health

Net
Quarterly Performance

2.17 There are two tier 1 and 2 indicators this quarter that have changed rag status from the previous
quarter.
Status
Change
Red to
Green

Indicator with commentary and management action
Proportion of people in community setting reviewed during the year
who receive services for 12 months +
Commentary:
Action:
Performance has seen an
Performance has met target across
improvement from quarter 4 which
most service areas and the use of
was reporting as being below target team specific targets has ensured
by 16 percentage points.
that teams are able to plan
effectively on a monthly basis.
A total of 1,985 people were in
receipt of a community-based
service for 12 months or more at the
end of quarter 1 and of those 385
have been reviewed.

Page 117
Reviewing the data, performance is
showing a slight decline in direction
of travel when compared to the
same reporting period in 2020-21,
however it has still achieved target
and is an improvement when
looking at the last 4 years.
Red to
Amber

Proportion of people in residential / nursing / Supported Living
reviewed during the year who received services for 12 months +
Commentary:
Another improvement can be seen
compared to quarter 4.
There were a total of 633 people in
a placement for more than 12
months at the end of quarter 1 and
of those 121 have been reviewed.
Performance has missed the target
by just 6 people.

Action:
Individual team targets have been
set and are monitored as part of
the monthly performance board.
Plans are being developed to share
resources between teams and
work collectively to meet the target.

Performance has been impacted by
vacancies and difficulties in
recruiting social workers in some
teams.
2.18 When reviewing the annual direction of travel for tier 1 and 2, there have been three indicators that
have seen an improvement or deterioration in performance compared to the same reporting period
in 2020-21.

Improving Indicators
Assessments Timescales

Declining Indicators
Proportion of people in community setting
reviewed during the year who receive services
for 12 months +
Percentage of people with reduced level of
need at the end of reablement

Page 118
2.19 Whilst there is only one indicator that has shown a notable improvement, there has been
a significant improvement in the percentage of social care assessments completed within 6 weeks.
In Q1 of this year, 81% of all adult social care assessments were completed within this time frame,
compared with only 60% in the same period last year. Credit should go to the team for putting a
programme in place to address the poor performance which was monitored at the monthly
assurance board.
2.20 The percentage of people with reduced level of need at the end of reablement has seen a drop in
performance by over 10%, this is primarily due to an increase in acuity of people leaving
hospital. This indicator is not targeted but is rather monitored over a longer period of time, in order
to ensure that the people who can benefit from are receiving a reablement offer. We will monitor
this performance closely as systems recover from a covid response arrangement we expect to see
this figure return to pre-covid levels.
Business Plan Performance
Directorate

Completed

Integrated Health and 0
Care

On Track
47

Behind
Target
0

Directorate
Total
47

2.21 All 47 Business plan actions are on track and have been updated in Q1.
2.22 The review of service models post-Covid in line with national review with GP Federation is
currently being completed including lessons learned for service delivery. Currently waiting for GP
Federation review of Health checks re-mobilisation and delivery in line with national guidance.
2.23 Priority remobilization of services such as Health Checks, Stop Smoking and Weight Management
after the impact of Covid on service delivery are underway. Weight management has remobilised
with a remote offer, some trialling of face-to-face contacts and looking to increase uptake to preCovid levels; 8 out of 13 pharmacy stop-smoking providers are currently operating and the rest are
being supported to remobilise.
2.24 Lambeth has agreed to extend contracts with GSTT, KCH and LGT for integrated sexual health
services for one year in 2022/23.
Children’s Services Performance
Budgetary Performance
2.25 Children Services are forecasting an overspend of £3.4m for the financial year. Within Children
Social Care there is a forecast overspend of £0.8m predominantly due to staffing related
expenditure and costs handling subject access requests (SARS) within the service. There is also a
projected overspend of £2m in Education and Learning, most of which relates to SEND
management and home to school transport. When reviewing the percentage of the annual reviews
of EHCPs completed in time, whilst performance has faltered this quarter, the numbers of plans
that have been completed compared to the same reporting period in 2020-21 has increased
fourfold, demonstrating the real demand within the service and subsequent budgetary pressures.
2.26 There are agreed savings of £2.853m for the year of which £2.223m are forecast to be delivered
with the remaining £0.6m to be carried forward into the next financial year.

Page 119
Children Services

Budget
£000

Forecast
£000

Variance
£000

Income

(4,467)

(4,996)

(529)

Expenditure

62,029

63,330

1,301

Net

57,562

58,334

772

Income

(7,631)

(7,948)

(317)

Expenditure

15,001

17,365

2,364

7,370

9,417

2,047

Children’s Commissioning & Community
Safety
Income

(4,444)

(4,683)

(239)

Expenditure

14,803

15,642

839

Net

10,359

10,959

600

(16,542)

(17,627)

(1,085)

91,833

96,337

4,504

75,291

78,710

3,419

Income

2,734

2,295

(439)

Expenditure
Net

2,734

2,295

(439)

0

0

0

Children's Social Care

Education and Learning

Net

Children Services
Income
Expenditure
Net
No Recourse to Public Funds

Quarterly Performance
2.27 There have been several tier 1 and 2 indicators that have seen a change in rag status since
quarter 4 which can be seen in the table below.
Status
Change
Red to
Green

Indicator with commentary and management action
Average waiting time for CYP to access first CAMHs (assessment)
appointment
Commentary:
Action:
Performance has seen a marked
This positive shift in performance
improvement from Q4, from an
reflects the work that has been
average waiting time of 21.52 to
ongoing to waiting time initiatives
17.54 weeks, which is positively
and the development of the newly
helping the mental health and lives
formed Alliance Board
of the young people in the borough.
Percentage of EHC plans completed within 20 weeks (including valid
exceptions)
Commentary:
Action:

Page 120
The current out turn puts Lambeth
as one of the highest performers in
the country.

Amber to
Green

Whilst this performance is
impressive, there is concern that
this achievement may not be
sustainable over the whole
year. As such the service has
asked that the target is reviewed in
line with the national figures.

Average time between a local authority receiving court authority to
place a child and the local authority deciding on a match to an
adoptive family
Commentary:
Action:
Lambeth ended Q1 with an average It is anticipated that the timeliness
of current adoption care plans will
of 191 days, this is below the local
target, but 70 days over the national improve as COVID restriction
eases and the effectiveness of the
target of 121 days. There were 6
Regional Adoption Agency (RAA).
adoptions during the period of 1st
June 2020 and 31st June 2021; of
There are national challenges with
these 6, the shortest time was 14
identifying adopters for older sibling
days and another child matched
groups, boys and children of black
within 2 months of the placement
and ethnic communities, and these
order, and the longest being 390
hard to place children experience
days (13 months).
longer waiting times. The RAA are
mitigating this through access to
adopters throughout the 4 RAAs,
stay and play sessions specifically
for sibling groups and child of black
and ethnic communities. Adopt
London is a pilot site for the
national BAME campaign to recruit
the right adopters.

Green to
Red

Percentage of eligible 3 & 4 year olds accessing 30 hours funded
early education
Commentary:
In Quarter 1 2021/2022, the number of funded places has increased by 6%
to 79.5% (74.9% in Quarter 4 2020/2021). This suggests that parents and
carers are starting to feel more confident in the safety of early years
childcare provision, which has been significantly impacted by the COVID
pandemic. This is a positive upward trend.
Percentage of annual reviews of EHCPs completed on time
Commentary:
After the positive performance seen in the previous quarter, a deterioration
can be seen in Q1, dropping from 66.67% to just 55.18%.
Despite this, when compared to the previous reporting period last year, the
performance improvement is particularly notable, increasing the number of
reviews completed on time fourfold.

2.28 When reviewing year on year performance progression for tier 1 and 2, Children’s Services have
seen a broadly positive change in performance since Q1 of 2020/21. Only two indicators have
seen a notable decline in performance, while 8 indicators have improved in performance.

Page 121

Improving Indicators
Average time between a child entering care
and moving in with their adoptive family
Average time between a local authority
receiving court authority to place a child and
the local authority deciding on a match to an
adoptive family

Declining Indicators
Percentage of Child Protection visits completed
within timescale in accordance with plan
(SG.19)
Children in Need per 10,000 population

Percentage of looked after children who had
their initial health assessment within 20 days
of becoming looked after
Percentage of EHC plans completed within 20
weeks (including valid exceptions)
Rate of Serious Youth Violence incidents (per
1000 population aged 1-24 years)
Early help assessments per 10,000
population
Percentage of annual reviews of EHCPs
completed on time
Average waiting time for CYP to access first
CAMHs (assessment) appointment

Business Plan Performance
Directorate

Completed

On Track

Behind Target

Children Services

1

36

0

Directorate
Total
37

2.29 All Children’s Services Actions are currently on track, with one action around supporting schools to
mitigate teacher shortages being completed.

Page 122
2.30 Plans within the service to support the wellbeing of staff and delivery of the organisational
development plan are well underway with 50% progress reported. In addition, plans to stabilise the
workforce are well underway with a net gain of 16 permanent Qualified Social Workers with a
further 38 going through the onboarding process.
2.31 Weekly update meetings have been held with Headteachers and Governors to keep them informed
of all legislative and guidance changes along with changes to expectations and outcomes. Up to
date data has been presented and shared with all schools and academies to enable them to make
informed decisions. School improvement advisers have been available, along with other staff to
help with any concerns or queries. Feedback from schools has been positive.
2.32 Children's social care have updated the Magnificent 7 improvement plan, based on priorities and
previous inspection findings. All services within children's social care have their own inspection
plan which is monitored weekly to ensure focus on action leading to any forthcoming inspection,
this is held by the respective Assistant Directors.
Resident Services Performance
Budgetary Performance
2.33 Resident Services are forecasting an overspend of £3.5m for the financial year. £1.7m of the
overspend relates to costs associated with Temporary Accommodation. The correlation can be
seen when reviewing the indicator measuring the number of households in temporary
accommodation, towards the end of 2020-21 the numbers increased and exceeding the target, and
whilst the targets for 2021-22 have been reset to allow for this increase, the numbers continue to
grow with a 10% increase compared to the same period last year. The most recently published
MCHLG figures for London reflecting occupations levels at the end of December report Lambeth
as having the sixth highest occupation levels in London with 2,767 households in occupation of
temporary accommodation.
2.34 There is an underspend in Environment & Streetscene predominantly due to overachievement of
parking income. Additional staffing costs in clearing COVID backlogs in Registrars, a slow recovery
in Libraries income after Covid and staffing overspends within ICT are causing an overspend of
£0.867m in Residents Experience & Digital. Within Infrastructure and Capital Delivery there are
overspends due to a projected shortfall in HMO licensing income, Market income, Food
Safety income and extra costs associated with the Golden Jubilee Bridge.
2.35 Agreed savings for the year are £7.450m of which £6.453m are forecast to be delivered this year,
with £0.997m carried forward to be delivered next year.
Resident Services

Budget
£000

Forecast
£000

Variance
£000

Income

518

588

70

Expenditure

518

588

70

0

0

0

(31,353)

(37,226)

(5,873)

Management & Transformation

Net
Housing Management
Income

Page 123
Expenditure

53,995

61,601

7,606

Net

22,642

24,375

1,733

(50,098)

(52,528)

(2,430)

Expenditure

60,373

62,074

1,701

Net

10,275

9,546

(729)

(169,279)

(172,255)

(2,976)

198,435

202,277

3,842

29,156

30,022

866

Income

(5,908)

(4,676)

1,232

Expenditure

12,666

13,020

354

6,758

8,344

1,586

(256,638)

(266,685)

(10,047)

325,987

339,560

13,573

69,349

72,875

3,526

Environment & Streetscene
Income

Residents Experience & Digital
Income
Expenditure
Net
Infrastructure & Capital Delivery

Net
Residents Services
Income
Expenditure
Net
Quarterly Performance

2.36 There have been several tier 1 and 2 indicators that have seen a change in rag status since
quarter 4 which can be seen in the table below.
Status
Change
Red to
Green

Indicator with commentary and management action
Percentage of land and highways with unacceptable levels of graffiti
Commentary:
Action:
This score represents inspections
The removal of graffiti will transfer
undertaken during the period April
over to the waste and cleaning
to July. The performance this
contractor’s responsibility from
tranche has achieved target and
October 2021. From October the
demonstrates a positive
responsibility to remove small scale
performance from the team’s
graffiti within town centres will fall
proactive approach to tackling
within the duties of the beat cleaner.
graffiti.
Larger scale graffiti that requires
specialist equipment will be
undertaken by a mobile graffiti
removal team. This hybrid approach
should provide the Authority with
more coverage for the removal of
graffiti.
Number of households in temporary accommodation

Page 124
Amber to
Green

Commentary:
At the end of June 2021 there were
2,895 households in temporary
accommodation representing an
increase of 2% when compared to
the end of Quarter 4, March 2021,
an increase of 10% when compared
to occupation levels reported on
30th June 2020.
Permanent housing is the main route
out of temporary accommodation for
families with children and single
vulnerable adults for whom a full
housing duty has been accepted. At
the end of June 2021 around 2,050
households were waiting in
temporary accommodation for
permanent homes.

Action:
Actions taken to prevent
homelessness and reduce the
number of households coming into
temporary accommodation include
supporting and sustaining existing
tenancies in all tenures through
welfare, financial, and debt advice,
including mediation with landlords
to prevent eviction; creating new
tenancies in the private rented
sector as a prevention or relief of
homelessness; securing supported
housing for single vulnerable adults

Red to
Amber

Percentage of local resolution complaints completed on time
Commentary:
Complaints completed on time have seen a bounce back in performance,
just missing the target by 3 percentage points.

Green to
Red

Average days to process change in Housing Benefit circumstances
and council tax support
Commentary:
Housing Benefit and Council Tax
support processing times are outside
target due to increased claim
volumes, alongside significant
increases in change notifications and
full case reviews from the DWP and
workload has increased
substantially.

Action:
Targeting of more crucial work
types from a customer perspective
means that those who need
assistance most are receiving it
quickly in spite of the overall target
being missed. A focus on new
claims and test and trace Lambeth
stay home support payments which
has also increased in volume mean
low value changes in circumstance
have not been prioritised.

2.37 Year on year performance progression shows a mixed picture for Resident Services indicators,
with 4 indicators seeing a decline since Q1 2020/21 and 2 indicators seeing an improvement.

Page 125
Percentage of Residents Services indicators showing
improvement or decline in performance since Q1 2020/21
Improvement

13%

No significant change

60%

Decline

27%

0%

10%

20%

30%

Improving Indicators
Number of visits to Lambeth leisure centres
Percentage of land and highways with
unacceptable levels of graffiti

40%

50%

60%

70%

Declining Indicators
Number of households in temporary
accommodation
Number of households where
homelessness was prevented or
relieved(YTD)
Average days to process change in
Housing Benefit circumstances and Council
Tax Support
The average time taken in calendar days to
process all new claims and change events
in Housing Benefit and Council Tax
Support

Business Plan Performance
Directorate

Completed

On Track

Behind Target

Resident Services

4

24

4

Directorate
Total
32

2.38 Four actions are now completed, with FM framework procurement starting in July, and the
customer Experience Strategy and Customer standards now live. The DLO setup has now been
completed with a good response to DLO recruitment, and with operatives and IT apparatus in
place.
2.39 In addition, the previously delayed waste contract is mobilized and ready for go-live on 1st
October. This is on track to be delivered in Q2 with go live at the beginning of Q3 (1st October).
2.40 The momentum of the neighbourhood working pilots has been maintained with successful delivery
of OCA community kitchen in Kennington, recruitment to senior roles has been completed. In
addition, there has been the continued delivery of community hubs and neighbourhood connectors
as well as identifying further assets to be repurposed to bring services into neighbourhood spaces.

Page 126
2.41 Four actions are showing as behind target but all are expected to be delivered within, or be back
on track by the end of Q2:





Sports and Leisure Service delivery options reported to Cabinet
Advertising contract signed and mobilisation commenced
Housing portals – all portals live
Manage and monitor delivery of Council wide capital programme

Capital Forecast Performance
2.42 Resident Services have approved budgets of £77.3m for 21/22and are forecasting to spend
£62.985m of this within the financial year, with £14.3m to be carried forward into next year.

Programme

Housing Management
Environment &
Streetscene
Residents Experience
& Digital
Infrastructure and
Capital Delivery
Total Resident
Services

21/22
Budget

21/22
Actuals

21/22
Forecast

£000

£000

£000

21/22
Forecast
Carry
Forward
£000

1,812

68

19

1,793

0

15,852

234

15,852

0

1,580

5,665

195

3,615

2,051

0

53,974

5,375

43,499

10,475

8,374

77,304

5,873

62,985

14,319

9,954

22/23 – 25/26
Budget
£000

Sustainable Growth and Opportunity Performance
Budgetary Performance
2.43 Sustainable Growth and Opportunity are forecasting a slight pressure of £0.023m due to a shortfall
in building control income. There will be a significant level of expenditure on supporting businesses
within the Borough, however this is expected to be funded from Central Government Grants and
previously agreed NCIL funding.
2.44 Agreed savings of £0.246m are forecast to be achieved in year.
Group

Budget
£000

Forecast
£000

Variance
£000

(220)

(226)

(6)

560

566

6

340

340

0

(5,323)

(5,692)

(369)

6,800

7,190

390

1,477

1,498

21

Regeneration & Housing Growth
Income
Expenditure
Net
Planning, Transport & Development
Income
Expenditure
Net

Page 127
Economy, Culture & Skills
Income
Expenditure
Net

(18,904)

(19,186)

(282)

19,978

20,262

284

1,074

1,076

2

(397)

(397)

0

556

556

0

159

159

0

(24,844)

(25,501)

(657)

27,894

28,574

680

3,050

3,073

23

Senior Management
Income
Expenditure
Net
Sustainable Growth & Opportunity
Income
Expenditure
Net

Capital Forecast Performance
2.45 Sustainable Growth and Opportunity have approved capital budgets of £119.7m for the year and
are forecasting to spend £65.8m, carrying forward £53.9m into the next financial year. The
variance largely relates to Estate Regeneration where work is ongoing to reprofile the existing
budget over the expected life of the programme.

Programme

Planning, Transport &
Sustainability
Regeneration &
Housing Growth
Economy, Culture &
Skills
Total Sustainable
Growth &
Opportunity
Programmes

21/22
Budget

21/22
Actuals

21/22
Forecast

21/22 Carry
Forward

22/23 – 25/26
Budget

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

8,413

1

8,413

0

300

104,811

3,275

52,741

52,071

43,089

6,441

81

4,643

1,797

0

119,665

3,357

65,797

53,868

43,389

Quarterly Performance
2.46 The following indicator has seen a change in rag status this quarter in comparison to Q4.
Status
Change
Amber to
Green

Indicator with commentary and management action
Proportion of further education and skills providers rated good or
outstanding
Commentary:
The proportion of further education and skills providers has improved
compared to quarter 4. Whilst the number of providers has remained

Page 128
consistently good or outstanding, the total providers has been reduced
from 11 to 10 as the Capital Engineering Group is no longer a registered
provider
2.47 When reviewing year on year performance progression there are two indicators that have seen an
improvement in performance since Q1 of 2020/21, with just one indicator reporting a decline in
performance.

Percentage of Sustainable Growth & Opportunity indicators
showing improvement or decline in performance since Q1
2020/21
Improvement

33%

No significant change

50%

Decline

17%

0%

10%

20%

Improving Indicators
Number of residents supported into
employment, training or education (including
apprenticeships) through council-supported
activities (YTD)
Number of people helped with benefits
advice by Lambeth commissioned services

30%

40%

50%

60%

Declining Indicators
Total number of homes consented

2.48 A significant increase in the number of residents who were supported into employment, training or
education in Q1 this year compared with 2020/21. In Q1, council supported activities saw 494
residents move into employment, training or education. Of these, 140 were from Ingeus Central
London Works (Work & Health Programme), and 41 from Opportunity Lambeth employment
support services. The DWP funded Job Entry Targeted Scheme (JETS), also delivered
by Ingeus in Lambeth secured 323 jobs for residents whose employment has been impacted by
Covid-19. The Q1 total of 494 is more in line with total annual figures of recent years and is far
higher than the 40 residents we were able to support into employment, education or training in Q1
of 2020/21.
Business Plan Performance
Directorate

Completed

Sustainable Growth 2
and Opportunity

On Track

Behind Target

25

0

Directorate
Total
27

Page 129
2.49 Two of SGO’s actions are completed for the year with a total of 2,800 Lambeth residents having
been enrolled on adult learning courses helping them upskill and reskill to take advantage of
training and employment opportunities. In addition the Lambeth Citizen's Assembly on Climate
Change took place to inform the production of the Lambeth Climate Change Action Plan and
updated Corporate Carbon Reduction Plan, including the road map to net zero carbon.
2.50 240 Kickstart placements have now been approved with DWP, with 211 vacancies currently live
through the Better Placed Gateway; 14 employers have now recruited young people through the
scheme, and a further 6 offers have been made for the internal Lambeth Council Kickstart
Scheme.
2.51 We have implemented 5 trial LTNs (Low Traffic Neighbourhoods) and public consultation on these
is planned for Q3 and Q4 and this helps to secure the benefits of more sustainable modes of travel
through these LTN and other Healthy Routes initiatives priorisiting Oval, Railton, Ferndale, Tulse
Hill and Streatham Hill initially, informed by the monitoring and consultation.
2.52 In total, £26,800 of Apprenticeship Levy was transferred to HfL and Lambeth Businesses in
2020/2021. Through the London Progression Collaboration, the intention is to increase this to
£190,000 in 2021/2022 with a focus on incentivising Kick Start employers to progress employees
on to apprenticeship programme.
Finance and Investment Performance
Budgetary Performance
2.53 Finance and investment are forecasting an overspend of £0.2m this year, mainly due agency staff
costs within Human Resources and Organisation Development.
2.54 There are agreed savings of £1.16m within the financial year of which £0.8m are forecast to be
delivered with the remainder to be carried forward for delivery in the next financial year.
Group
Performance & Business Improvement
Income
Expenditure

Budget
£000
0
3,316
3,316

Forecast
£000
(92)
3,415
3,324

Variance
£000
(92)
99
8

(10)

0

10

2,794
2,784

2,985
2,985

191
201

(6,617)
13,348
6,731

(6,638)
13,379
6,742

(21)
31
11

Net
Human Resources & Organisational
Development
Income
Expenditure
Net
Finance & Property
Income
Expenditure
Net

Page 130
Finance & Investment
Income
Expenditure

(6,627)
19,458

(6,730)
19,779

(103)
321

Net

12,831

13,049

218

Quarterly Performance
2.55 There are two tier 1 and 2 indicators this quarter that have changed rag status from the previous
quarter.
Status
Change
Green to
Red

Indicator with commentary and management action
General Fund variance against Revenue Budget
Commentary:
The forecast overspend includes £3.4m in Children Services; £0.8m in
Children Social Care, £0.6m Childrens Commissioning and Community
Safety. Resident Services is forecasting £3.5m, mainly within £1.7m in
Temporary Accommodation, £1.6m in Infrastructure and Capital Delivery
with a further £0.9m in Resident Services and Digital.
HRA variance against Revenue Budget
Commentary:
The Housing Revenue account is forecasting to overspend by £7.5m,
predominately due to expenditure on responsive repairs, additional costs
associated with the new repairs contracts, increased spend on void
properties and legal costs associated with disrepair.

2.56 When reviewing year on year performance for tier 1 and 2, 3 indicators saw either an improvement
or deterioration in direction of travel.

Improving Indicators
Average number of working days lost to
sickness per FTE

Declining Indicators
HRA variance against Revenue Budget

Page 131
General Fund variance against Revenue
Budget
2.57 The most notable change is with to the general fund variance against revenue budget. This is
2.6% in Q1, a significant drop from the 7.6% reported in Q1 last year when we saw a peak in Covid
related spend and a reduction in revenue from Residents Services.
Business Plan Performance changes
Directorate

Completed

On Track

Behind
Target

Finance
and
Investment

1

36

3

Significantly
Behind
Target
0

Unknown

Directorate
Total

0

40

2.58 All the business plan actions within Finance and Investment have been given a progress update,
with a supporting narrative.
2.59 To date, one action has been completed which relates to the updates from Government following
Brexit being incorporated into procurement advice for the council as well as in tendering
documents issued for future contracts. And all finance and risk actions are proceeding as planned
and are on track to deliver.
2.60 Within the data analytics team, all three members are signed up to undertake data or data science
training over the next year. The team are engaged in two data science projects, one in
collaboration with an MSc student from Southampton University. These are testbed projects that
will help the team learn how to work on a data science project in Local Government.
2.61 The new commercial and advisory team have undertaken business modelling work with the
Apprenticeship Levy and Temporary Resourcing assignments, and the team are in the process of
establishing a Commercial and Innovation forum with fellow London Boroughs.
2.62 Three actions are showing as behind target with the VCS Asset Strategy being delayed and now
going to Cabinet in October for decision rather than in May affecting two actions. The other relates
to driving value for money and developing a pipeline of projects to inform investment and
prioritisation decisions. PPIMs is now in place to track programmes and outcomes and progress
and this action is expected to deliver within the year.
Capital Forecast Performance
2.63 Capital budgets of £6.9m, which predominantly relate to the capitalisation of costs for the council’s
redress scheme, are expected to be spent this financial year.

Programme

Lambeth Redress
Scheme Capitalisation

21/22
Budget

21/22
Actuals

21/22
Forecast

21/22 Carry
Forward

22/23 – 25/26
Budget

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

6,896

0

6,896

0

0

Page 132
Programme
Management
Total

29

0

29

0

6,924

0

6,924

0

0
0

Strategy, Communication and Legal Services Performance
2.64 Legal Services are forecasting an overspend of £0.368m in the financial year predominantly due to
additional staff to support legal work in the Children Services area.
Group

Budget
£000

Forecast
£000

Variance
£000

Strategy and Communications
Income
Expenditure

(475)

(168)

307

2,740

2,397

(343)

Net

2,265

2,229

(36)

Legal Services
Income

(701)

(2,207)

(1,506)

6,182

8,057

1,875

5,481

5,849

368

(1,176)

(2,375)

(1,199)

8,922

10,454

1,532

7,746

8,079

333

Expenditure
Net
Strategy, Communication and Legal
Services
Income
Expenditure
Net

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - Forecast
2.65 The Housing Revenue Accounts is forecast to overspend its budgets by £7.48m, predominantly
due to expenditure on responsive repairs, costs associated with the new repairs’ contracts,
increased spend on void properties and an overspend on legal costs associated with disrepair. Any
overspend for the year will adversely impact HRA reserves and activity is underway to build up
HRA reserves going forward.
Group
Housing Services
Income
Expenditure
Net
Central HRA Budgets
Income
Expenditure
Net

Budget
£000

Forecast
£000

Variance
£000

(11,621)

(11,558)

63

75,676

82,619

6,943

64,055

71,061

7,006

(163,818)

(164,000)

(182)

84,222

83,224

(998)

(79,596)

(80,776)

(1,180)

Page 133
Strategic Programmes
Income
Expenditure
Net
Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
Income
Expenditure
Net

0

0

0

15,541

17,199

1,658

15,541

17,199

1,658

(175,439)

(175,558)

(119)

175,439

183,042

7,603

0

7,484

7,484

HRA Capital Forecast
2.66 Capital budgets of £67.9m are forecast to be spent in year.

Programme

21/22
Budget

21/22
Actuals

21/22
Forecast

21/22 Carry
Forward

22/23 – 25/26
Budget

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,736

7

1736

0

0

66,209

6,394

66,209

0

132,300

67,945

6,401

67,945

0

132,300

Housing Services
(HRA)
Strategic Programmes
(HRA)
Total HRA
Programmes

FINANCE
3.1

Section 2 of this report concerns the Council’s financial position as at Q1 2021-22. Any business
improvement activity to address performance will be delivered from within existing budgets.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
4.1

Section 30 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 requires Councils to set a balanced budget
for each financial year. Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires Councils to monitor
budget outturn periodically throughout the year and where an overspend is forecast against
budget, to set out the process followed to address such issues. This is outlined in section 2.10 of
this report.

4.2

There are no further comments from Democratic Services

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
5.1

The completion of the performance report relies on service managers / Heads of Services to
provide performance data and commentary on progress and management actions, particularly if
the indicators is not achieving target.

RISK MANAGEMENT
6.1.

There are no risk implications arising from this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
7.1.
The Equality Act 2010 requires organisations exercising public functions to demonstrate that due
regard has been paid to equalities in:

Page 134




Elimination of unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct prohibited
by the Equality Act 2010
Advancement of equality of opportunity between people from different groups
Fostering of good relations between people from different groups

7.2.
The Equality Act 2010 identifies the following protected characteristics: age; disability; gender
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex
and sexual orientation.
7.3.




In order to assist in meeting the duty the council:
Tries to understand the diversity of our customers to improve our services
Considers the impact of our decisions on different groups to ensure they are fair
Mainstreams equalities into business and financial planning

7.4. Reflecting this, we aim to ensure that equalities considerations are integrated into the Council’s
Corporate Performance Framework. Accordingly, we report against a number of KPIs aligned to
Borough Plan priorities concerned with ensuring that growth in the borough is inclusive and that
inequality is reduced, as well as other KPIs concerned with how we deliver our services and meet
the needs of residents. In this way, performance data can play a role in determining whether there
is any differentiation in residents’ experience of, or satisfaction with, Council services.

COMMUNITY SAFETY
8.1

There are no community safety implications arising from this report.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
9.1

Environmental
Not applicable

9.2

Health
Not applicable

9.3

Corporate Parenting
Not applicable

9.4

Staffing and accommodation
Not applicable

9.5

Responsible Procurement
Not applicable

9.6

Good Quality Jobs with Fair Pay and Decent Working Conditions
Not applicable

9.7

Quality Apprenticeships, targeted Employment for Lambeth residents and Lambeth Priority Group
Not applicable

9.8

Reduce Emissions: Lambeth Council has a commitment to being Zero Carbon by 2030
Not applicable

9.9

Single Use Plastics
Not applicable
Positive Health and Wellbeing

Page 135
9.10 Not applicable
Other Offers (Innovation)
9.11 Not applicable

TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Not applicable

Page 136
Audit Trail
Name and Position/Title
Councillor Andrew Wilson
Andrew Travers, Chief
Executive
Andrew Eyres, Strategic
Director
Merlin Joseph, Strategic
Director
Bayo Dosunmu, Strategic
Director
Eleanor Purser, CoStrategic Director
Sara Waller, Co-Strategic
Director
Fiona McDermott, Strategic
Director
Fiona Connolly, Executive
Director
Christina Thompson,
Director
Paul Bates, Director
Tasnim Shawkat, Director
Christian Scade,
Democratic Services
Fateha Salim, Assistant
Director
Nisar Visram, Assistant
Director

Date Sent

Date
Received

07/09/2021

09/09/2021

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Integrated Health and
Care

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Children’s Services

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Resident Services

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Sustainable Growth

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Sustainable Growth

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Finance and Investment

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Adults and Health

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Finance and Property

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

06/08/2021

11/08/2021

Legal and Governance

25/08/2021

26/08/2021

Legal and Governance

25/08/2021

26/08/2021

Finance and Property

25/08/2021

26/08/2021

Lambeth Directorate
Cabinet Member for
Finance and
Performance

Strategy and
Communications
Legal and Governance

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan
Key decision reasons
Background information

14/09/2021
22/09/2021
22/09/2021
Not applicable.

Appendices

None

Not applicable.
Not applicable.
Not applicable.
None

Comments in
paragraph:

Cleared

